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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after

due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there

will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility
for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever anising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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2T ER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEE
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Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony
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ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % | 3



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES (FOR THE PURPOSES OF
THE GEM LISTING RULES)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry
Ms. Foo Man Yee, Carina (ACG, HKACG (PE))
(appointed on 4 February 2022)
Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, HKFCG & FCPA Australia)
(resigned on 4 February 2022)

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Foo Man Yee, Carina (ACG, HKACG (FE))
(appointed on 4 February 2022)

Mr. YEUNG Tsz Kit Alban (FCG, HKFCG & FCPA Australia)
(resigned on 4 February 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (Chairperson)
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (Chairperson)
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (Chairperson)
Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric

4 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED #£R&EBER A F

BREAR (MGEMLHRAMS)

REEZT

{BEEL L (ACG * HKACG (PE))
(F002F2F4BEZT)

BFHEEE (FCG + HKFCG RFCPA Australia)

(R202242 B4 BEHE)

BREE

BEREX L

pEME

{BEEL L (ACG - HKACG (PE))
(20252 A4REEE)

BFHESRE (FCG ~ HKFCGRFCPA Australia)
(M2022%F2 B4 B EHE)

BEREEE

REBRE (LF)

Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM %2 4
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4

FMZEEE

Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAMYE 4 (£/&)
BMELL

WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4

REERE
sALL (ZE)
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 5L &

ERERERE
BEBRL (ZE)
ARt



AUDITOR
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Certified Public Accountants

25th Floor, Wing On Centre
I'1'l Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER AS TO HONG KONG LAW

D S Cheung & Co.
29/F, 56 Gloucester Road
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
Hang Seng Bank Limited

19/F

83 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY'I-1108
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Office No.5 on 22nd Floor, Universal Trade Centre
No.3 Arbuthnot Road
Central

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park
P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY'I-1108

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
I'7/F, Far East Finance Centre

|6 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

WWW.jiagroup.co

GEM STOCK CODE
8519
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Director (the “Board") of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022.

OUR PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGIES

Living in a digital world that changed our lives has minimised the quality of time we spend
face-to-face with family, friends, and people in general. JIA Group was established over
a decade ago, striving to enhance and build spaces in cities around the world that allow
people to connect over a table, add enjoyment to their lives, and enable them to build a

sense of home (JIA means home).

JJA Group has continuously built, executed, and conveyed well-versed restaurant concepts,
aiming to connect and engage people with storytelling, curating authentic food & drink,
and digital experiences that fuel the genuine journey of its brand portfolio. Diversification
enables its international veteran and experienced team to build meaningful brands

together, building a creative and freedom-based working environment.

JIA Group's purposes, values, and strategies are set out below:

(1) the Company's purpose is to build authentic, compelling, and consistent restaurants

to cater to a diverse customer base;

(2)  the Company's values are to ensure that the Company continues to perform
service of excellence, honesty and integrity, consistency, adaptability, and to strive

to execute food and beverage spaces that cater to its valued customers; and
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CHAIRPERSON’S STATEMENT
ITEHES

(3)  the Company's strategies are (i) to adapt to food tastes and preferences in different
markets and locations; (i) to pay attention to small details in food, beverage, and
experiences to deliver consistent services and experiences; (iii) to upkeep ongoing
market research for innovative ideas; and (iv) to develop a diverse team with a

wealth of knowledge to serve a mass market.

JJA Group's purpose, values, and strategies align directly with its culture.

OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Revenue of the Group for the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021 were
approximately HK$217.0 million and approximately HK$221.3 million respectively,
representing a decrease of approximately 2.0% during the year under review. The Group
recorded a loss and total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to owners of

the Company of approximately HK$19.7 million for the year (2021: HK$19.5 million).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Hong Kong's food and beverage industry
encountered challenging business environment with the resurgence of the COVID-19
pandemic in Hong Kong, the rising inflation across the globe and the slowdown in the
world economy, which caused the Group's restaurants to fail to operate as usual, resulting
in a decrease in revenue and have a pressure on the Group's profitability. During the
year, the Group closed the restaurant “Bibi & Baba” in September 2022 due to poor
performance, and disposed of shares in Between Hong Kong Limited (“Between HK") in
August 2022 upon which Between HK ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The
closure and disposal will reduce the level of liabilities of the Group and hence improve the
asset-liabilities structure of the Group. Further, that will also help to further improve the

profitability of the Group and also will improve the Group's overall cashflow and liquidity.

At the time of writing, with the significant relaxation of domestic epidemic prevention
policies by the Hong Kong and China Government, the Company believed that with the
implementation of relevant normalization measures, Hong Kong's food and beverage

industry is expected to recover in the short term.
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CHAIRPERSON'’S STATEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGE

Finally, | would like to express gratitude to the Board of Jia Group, all business partner,
employees, investors and customers for their unwavering support for the Group. Despite
the lingering headwinds for the global economy, premium catering services remain a basic
need of people. | am still very optimistic about the long term prospects of the Group.
With the talent and strength of the management team, | am confident that the Group will
resume sustained growth after the threat of the COVID-19 situation is lifted.

Chairperson

Wong Pui Yain

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M mE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 3| December

HAaRE BZENA3IALEE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 T
Revenue LN 217,005 221,344
Loss before taxation BRI AIEE (22,409) (19,295)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FRBEREZERZAE (23,000) (21,262)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year RRAFEEANEIEEE
attributable to owners of the Company BEERZERAXEHE (19,744) (19,476)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES As at 31 December
BEREE R12B318
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FRnBEE 69,937 97,114
Current assets RENEE 28,620 38912
Total assets BEEHAE 98,557 136,026
Equity and liabilities Bakak
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 22,060 38999
Current liabilities RBEE 79,361 77275
Total liabilities BELE 101,421 116274
Total (deficit)/equity (B5Al) /HEwmies (2,864) 19,752
Net current liabilities REBEETE (50,741) (38,363)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEBFIRNR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a well-known Hong Kong hospitality group with award-winning restaurants.
Currently, the brand portfolio of the Group consists of 10 brands, namely “Duddell’s",
“Louise”, “MONO", "And 0", “Estro”, “Agora”, 208 & Ramato", “22 Ships”, “MakMak"

and "Chachawan’, to provide customers with diversified options.

In terms of segment revenue, the revenue from fine dining catering services increased by
approximately 10.4%, mainly due to the restaurants of “Estro” and “Agora” opening in
September 2021 and April 2022, and the re-opening of the restaurant “Duddell's Hong
Kong Airport” in November 2022, respectively. The revenue from mid-market dining,
specialty coffee and casual dining catering services decreased by approximately 24.7%,
52.0% and 9.1% respectively. Such decrease was mainly due to the disposal of shares
in Between HK in August 2022, upon which Between HK ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company, closure of the restaurant “Bibi & Baba" in September 2022, and “208 &

Ramato” being under renovation from February to March 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of the Group decreased by
approximately HK$4.3 million to approximately HK$217.0 million compared with last year.
The deterioration in the Group's results was mainly attributable to the adverse impact
to our business arising from the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic as well as social
distancing restrictions and measures effective in Hong Kong during the period, especially
the fifth wave of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong.
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[ Chachawan] * REEE RS TTAL B o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue from external
customers based on their nature for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the

comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2021

EEENWmE DM

B35 18
L'ON

TR AEED BIREZE2022F 12831 B

IHFEERZFHEMINEE /KA R
MMER202 | FRIEH R ET

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3NALEE

2022 2021
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FidsE TER FET

Catering services EHR
~ Fine dining —RIREH | 152,503 138,174
— Mid-market dining —HiREHR 2 21,236 28210
— Specialty coffee — FEam gk 3 7,470 15,571
— Casual dining — KB 4 35,796 39,389
217,005 221,344

Note |: Duddell's (Central), Louise, And O, Estro, Agora and Mono are classified as fine dining.

Note 2: Ramato (formerly known as “208 Duecento Otto") and 22 Ships are classified as mid-
market dining.

Note 3: Between is classified as specialty coffee.

Note 4. Mak Mak, Duddell's (Hong Kong Airport), Chachawan, and Bibi & Baba are classified as

casual dining.

Note 5: The Group opened “Estro”, “Agora” and “Duddell's Hong Kong Airport” in September
2021, April 2022 and November 2022, respectively. The restaurant “Bibi & Baba" was
closed in September 2022 and shares in Between HK were disposed of in August 2022
upon which Between HK ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and Between ceased

to be a restaurant of the Group.

aEl: MEF & (FR) - Louise ~ And O -
Estro * Agora X Mono 2 S8 ARImE K

Ramato (B #E [ 208 Duecento Otto]) %22
Ships D $A AH IR EER

PiaE2:

BiEE3: BetweenD 3 ATERUNLE o

Mak Mak * HZEFEE (FEHE)
Chachawan M Bibi & Baba 7 $8 AR EI B &K

MizE4:

FiaES: AEE [Estro] « [Agoral R [ BB HIGHE
Flefg o BIR2021F9A8 2002548 K%
2002F || AFRE « REER2022F9 A
FAZ B [ Bibi & Baba WM 2022F8 A&
Between HKAR17 » i 18 Between HK B A
KRRQF 2B R B MBetween NEARNEH
ZEE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEWR DM

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$217.0 million (2021: HK$221.3 million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$4.3 million or 2.0% as compared with the corresponding period of last year which
was mainly due to a decrease in revenue from specialty coffee and casual dining catering
services of approximately HK$8.1 million and HK$3.6 million, respectively, as the Group
closed the restaurant “Bibi & Baba" in September 2022 and disposed of shares in Between
HK in August 2022. The revenue from mid-market dining decreased by approximately
HK$7.0 million, due to “208 & Ramato” being under renovation from February to March
2022. On the other hand, the revenue from fine dining catering services increased by
approximately HK$14.3 million or 10.4% compared with the last year, which was mainly
due to the opening of “Agora” in April 2022 and the re-opening of “Duddell's Hong Kong
Airport” in November 2022, respectively.

Raw materials and consumables used

Raw materials and consumables used by the Group include, but are not limited to,
vegetables, meat, seafood and frozen food etc. That is one of the major components of
the Group's operating expenses which amounted to approximately HK$60.7 million and
HK$62.0 million for each of the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively,
representing approximately 28.0% and 28.0% Group's total revenue for the corresponding
periods. As a percentage of revenue, raw materials and consumables used remained stable
at 27%-28%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Staff costs

Staff costs represented one of the major components of the Group's operating
expenses which primarily consisted of Directors’ emoluments, salaries and allowance,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other benefits. The staff costs increased by
approximately HK$4.8 million from approximately HK$87.1 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 to approximately HK$91.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such increase was mainly due to the opening of “Agora” in April 2022 and the re-
opening of “Duddell's Hong Kong Airport” in November 2022, respectively.

Property rentals and related expenses

Apart from raw materials and consumables used and staff costs, property rentals
also represent one of the major components of the Group's operating expenses.
Property rentals and related expenses increased by approximately HK$1.7 million from
approximately HK$8.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
HK$10.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The increase was mainly due
to the opening of “"Agora” in April 2022 and the re-opening of “Duddell's Hong Kong
Airport” in November 2022, respectively.

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

As a result of the foregoing, loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$19.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 representing an
increase in loss of approximately HK$0.2 million as compared with a loss of approximately
HK$19.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The increase in loss attributable to owners of the Company was primarily attributable to
the increase in staff costs, depreciation, property rentals and related expenses and other

operating expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations primarily through cash generated from operating

activities and interest-bearing bank borrowing,

The Group recorded net current liabilities of approximately HK$50.7 million as at 31
December 2022 (2021 net current liabilities HK$38.4 million).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's current ratio was approximately 0.4 (2021: 0.5)
and the Group's gearing ratio calculated based on the total debt (excluding trade nature
balances, tax balances and provision) at the end of the year divided by total equity at the
end of the year was approximately -2,349.4% (2021: 403.9%). The negative figure was

mainly due to the Group incurred significant loss during the year.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings are subject to variable interest rate of the
higher of 2.50% per annum over HIBOR or the bank’s cost of funds and 2.50% per annum
below Prime Rate or the bank's cost of funds. The weighted average interest rate is 2.8%

per annum as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 2.8% per annum).

The capital structure of the Company comprised ordinary shares only. As at 31 December
2022, the Company has 1,159,780,000 ordinary shares in issue after cancelling |,410,000
of the Shares repurchased. Total equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted

to approximately HK$2.7 million as at 31 December 2022 (202 1: HK$22.0 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLOSURES UNDER RULES 17.22 TO 17.24 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Certain bank loan facilities of the Group are subject to certain covenants on financial
gearing and capital requirements as commonly required under lending arrangements
with financial institutions. The Directors became aware that the Group has technically
breached the loan covenant as the Group has failed to fulfill certain financial criteria in
which the calculation is based on the Group's financial information. The Group has been
communicating with the banks to resolve the breach of the aforesaid bank covenants
in order to maintain the existing banking loan facilities. As of the approval date of
these financial statements, the lenders have not made any demand for immediate loan

repayment.

The Board is of the opinion after taking into account that the existing bank balances and
cash, internally generated funds and available banking facilities, the Group has sufficient

working capital from the date of this report.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group during the period under

review.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE RISKS

The Group operated mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group's transactions settled
in Hong Kong dollars. As such, the Group did not have significant exposure to foreign

exchange risk during the year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2022, the Group's pledged bank deposits in the amount of HK$5.0

million was pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities (31 December 2021:
HK$9.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to floating-rate
bank borrowing, and fair value interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits and
non-interest bearing amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder
and non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and amount due to an associate. The
Company is mainly exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to non-interest

bearing amounts due to subsidiaries.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of

HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2022, the maximum exposure in relation to credit risk of the Group
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Board considers
the credit risk of the Company is immaterial. The Group trades with a large number
of individual customers and trading terms are predominately on cash and credit card
settlement. In view of the Group's operations, the Group does not have significant credit

risk exposure to any single individual customer.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged bank deposits of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed banks. The Group
has concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and bank balances

are placed with two banks in Hong Kong.

Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash

and cash equivalent deemed adequate by the management of the Group to finance the

Group's operations and mitigate the effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any capital commitment in respect of
property, plant and equipment (31 December 202 1: HK$0.9 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities (31
December 2021: nil)

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Except on disclosed herein, as of the date of this report, the Group did not have any
future plans for material investments or capital assets, material acquisition and disposal of

subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures in the coming year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2022, Between HK; the then wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a Share Swap Agreement with Hanneng Limited (“Hanneng"), which is wholly
owned by Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, the spouse of Ms. Wong Pui Yain. Prior to the Share Swap
Agreement, Ever Creation Asia Investment Limited (“Ever Creation”) was owned as to
40% by Hanneng and 60% by Big Team Ventures Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Pursuant to the Share Swap Agreement, the Company sold its 40% interest
in Between HK in exchange for Hanneng's 40% interest in Ever Creation, which resulted

in the Company holding 100% interest of Ever Creation through Between HK.

On 12 August 2022, Big Team Ventures Limited (the “Vendor”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a share purchase agreement with Colour Bright
Global Limited (the “Purchaser”), a Company wholly owned by Ms. Wong Pui Yain,
pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchase has
conditionally agreed to purchase 41 issued shares of Between HK at a consideration of
HK$2,721,990. After the disposal, Between HK was owned as to 19% by the Group
and ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. Please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 12 August 2022 for further details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
have any significant investments, material acquisitions nor disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

Placing completed on 24 September 2020 (the “Placing I”)

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on 7 September
2020 and 24 September 2020 in relation to the placing of new shares under the general

mandate.

On 7 September 2020, the Group and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the Group appointed the placing agent to procure altogether not less
than six placees (who and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and
not connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within the meaning
of the GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of 171,910,000 placing shares at a
placing price of HK$0.08 per placing share. The closing price for the Company's shares on
7 September 2020 was HK$0.096 per share.

The Placing | was completed on 24 September 2020 with gross and net proceeds of
approximately HK$13.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.08 per placing share)
and HK$13.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.077 per placing share) as set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 7 September 2020 and 24 September 2020. The
Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) developing the cloud kitchen business of
the Group; (i) upgrading the sales channels of the Group, including “JIA Everywhere”, the
online/offline delivery platform of the Group; (iii) investing in potential PRC or overseas
food and beverage related investment opportunities; (iv) developing new catering outlets

of the Group and for brand management; and (v) loan repayment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Planned use of
proceeds as

described in the

Actual use of

Unused total

announcement Approximate net proceeds net proceeds
dated percentage of up to up to
Use of net proceeds from the 7 September total net 31 December 31 December
Placing | 2020 proceeds 2022 2022
B %2020
9A7H EZF200F EZ2NF
HAEMRE  (ERERE 12H318 12A31 8
Frig Rt & FHE NAEREFRE B 1 R B A
REIMESHEFERAR Jickes BHEDH BERAE BREHRFE
HKS million % HKS$ million HK$ million
BEAT % BEAT BEBT
Developing the cloud kitchen business ??ﬁﬁlﬁﬁr ES G
and upgrading the sales channels T 45 34.1% 1.9 26
Investing in potential PRC or overseas &ﬁ:ﬁ/{‘qﬂ@@iﬁiﬁl‘ﬂ"]
food and beverage related ieaite=viil:
investment opportunities RARE 25 18.9% 25 -
Developing new catering outlets BIARHRI G 12 9.1% 12 -
Loan repayment ERER 50 37.9% 50 -
Total st 132 100.0% 10.6 26
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEBNWmRDM

Placing completed on 18 June 2021 (the “Placing II”)

Reference is made to the announcements issued by the Company on 25 May 2021 and

18 June 2021 in relation to the placing of new shares under the general mandate.

On 25 May 2021, the Group and a placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the Group appointed the placing agent to procure altogether not less
than six placees (who and whose ultimate beneficial owner(s) are independent of and not
connected with the Company and any of its connected persons within the meaning of the
GEM Listing Rules) for placing up to aggregate of 134,280,000 placing shares at a placing
price of HK$0.135 per placing share. The closing price for the Company's shares on 25
May 2021 was HK$0.149 per share.

The Placing Il was completed on |8 June 2021 with gross and net proceeds of
approximately HK$18.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.135 per placing
share) and HK$17.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$0.1301 per placing share)
as set out in the Company’s announcements dated 25 May 2021 and 18 June 2021. The
Company intended to use the proceeds for (i) expanding the specialty coffee business;
(i) developing casual dining business; and (iii) investing in PRC and overseas food tech

investment opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DM

Planned use of

proceeds as Actual use of Unused total
described in the Approximate net proceeds net proceeds
announcement percentage of up to up to
Use of net proceeds from the dated total net 31 December 31 December
Placing Il 25 May 2021 proceeds 2022 2022

B %2021 F
5A25A EF200F EZ200F
WREFEE GRRENE 12A318 12A318
Fri&sRE FE NREREFE i R B A
REIMEHEFEAR g ik BHES T BERRZ AMERREE
HK$ million % HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT % BEAT BEBT
Expanding the specialty coffee business AR MIYEARTS 9.0 514% 6.5 25
Developing casual dining business; ERARERER 53 30.3% 53 -

Investing in PRC and overseas food ~ RERF B LGN

tech investment opportunities YRR E S 32 18.3% 32 -
Total st 17.5 100.0% 15.0 25

The Company intends to continue to apply the proceeds from the Placing | and Placing I RATREEE X TN ERRE &
in a manner consistent with that mentioned above and it is expected that these proceeds FREIFT1S 3UIE - TRERZ S PT1R SOE R R 2023
will be fully utilized by 31 December 2023. The Directors will continue to evaluate the 12 A3I BRIZERH B A - EEHRERMF

Group's operations and financial performance when applying the proceeds. REREETHAEENEERTBERA -
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENGSREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (“Ms. Wong”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 21 August 2015, and is the founder and a controlling shareholder. She
is the Group's chairperson, chief executive officer, executive Director, the chairperson
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee and legal
compliance committee. She is currently responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of the Group's business development and operations and is also a director

of each of the members of the Group.

Bom in Singapore and educated in The University of Western Australia with a Bachelor's
Degree in Economics, Ms Wong is an entrepreneur and restaurateur with 22 years of
experience. She was awarded “Asia’s Best Young Entrepreneurs” by Businessweek 2008
and "Rising Star Award — Women in Asia” by Financial Times/RBS Coutt's 2009. In 2013
she was named one of the 10 “Women of our Time" by South China Morning Post,
“Restaurateur of the Year" by Hong Kong Tatler in 2016 and “Young Entrepreneur of the
Year" by Asia Corporate Excellence & Sustainability 2017.

Ms. Wong is an executive member to the Chamber Women Executives Club (WEC) and
a primary member of the YPO Hong Kong Chapter Limited. She was previously a non-
executive Director of Gameone Holdings Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8282) and
resigned on 6 January 2022.

Ms. Wong is the sole director and sole shareholder of Giant Mind Intemational Limited,

the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry (“Ms. Wan”), aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 21 August 2015, and is the senior operations director and
the chairperson of the legal compliance committee. Ms. Wan is responsible for formulation
of corporate development strategies, execution of daily management and administration

of business and operations, and regulatory compliance.

Ms. Wan obtained a higher diploma in hotel and catering management from the Hong
Kong Technical College in July 1996. Ms. Wan has approximately 20 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry. From November 1996 to April 201 1, Ms. Wan worked
at Gaia Group. She served Va Bene Ristorante from November 1996 to February 2001.
Ms. Wan worked as an assistant manager of Gaia Ristorante from March 2001 to March
2008. Her last position was operations manager of Gaia Group. During her office in
Gaia Group, Ms. Wan was primarily responsible for purchasing, staff hiring, manager and
staff training, menu planning and the daily operations of eight restaurants in Hong Kong
and two restaurants in Shanghai, the PRC. Ms. Wan was also awarded “Most Influential
Woman in Hospitality 2018 — Hong Kong” by APAC Insider in 2018.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM (“Mr. Chanmugam”), aged 46, was appointed as

an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit committee and
the nomination committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board, the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the

nomination committee.

Mr. Chanmugam joined Deutsche Bank AG in Hong Kong in July 2000 and worked for
Deutsche Bank AG in Singapore as vice president from May 2002 to September 2005. Mr.
Chanmugam served as a vice president (fixed income, currency & commodities division)
based in Tokyo at Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. from October 2005 to September 2007.
From October 2007 to May 2013, he relocated to Hong Kong and his last position
at Deutsche Bank AG was managing director (fixed income, currency & commodities
division). In August 2014, Mr. Chanmugam established Elezeno Capital Limited and
served as its director. In July 2000, Mr. Chanmugam obtained his bachelor's degree in
mathematics and economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science

in the United Kingdom.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric (“Mr. Leung”), aged 59, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is the chairperson of the
audit committee and a member of the nomination committee and the legal compliance
committee. He is responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to
the Board, the audit committee, the legal compliance committee and the nomination

committee.

Mr. Leung graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in May 1986 with a
first class honour in Bachelor of Business Administration. He has been a member of the
HKICPA (formerty known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) since 1989 and a CFA
charterholder since 2008. Mr. Leung has more than 21 years of senior management
experience in financial markets. Mr. Leung is currently the vice chairman and chief
executive officer of Venture Smart Financial Group. Mr. Leung had been the managing
director of Crosby Securities Limited and SAIL Advisors Limited respectively, a director of
Deutsche Bank, the head of finance of NatWest Securities Asia Limited and the regional
financial controller of Lehman Brothers Asia Holdings Limited. Mr. Leung was an executive
director of AID Life Science Holdings Limited (formerly known as Crosby Capital Limited),
a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8088) from October 2010
to September 201 3.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEREERE

Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony (“Mr. Wee”), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 23 January 2018, and is member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee. He is responsible for supervising and
providing independent judgment to the Board, the audit committee and the remuneration

committee,

Mr. Wee has more than |2 years of experience in the finance industry. He has been with
UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited since December 2003 and is currently an associate
director of UOB Kay Hian (Hong Kong) Limited. He has been licensed to engage in Type
| (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO™) since December 2003. Mr. Wee
was awarded a bachelor of arts degree in economics from Pepperdine University in the
United States in April 1995.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. TSANG Yin Mei, aged 61, is the Group's administrative manager and member
of the legal compliance committee. She is responsible for the office management and
administration of the Group. She has over 33 years of experience in secretarial work,
including secretarial support in trade/logistics firms. She worked for Citizen Watches (HK)
Ltd., Update Electronics, Reliance Agency Ltd,, Capital Asia Trading Co Ltd and Orbotech
Pacific Ltd. as a clerk, secretary and executive assistant, respectively, between June 1982
and September 2001. Further, she also worked for PC Asia Limited as an administrative

Manager.

She obtained a diploma in business secretarial studies from the Hong Kong Young
Women'’s Christian Association Professional & Business Youth Department in May 1982,
and passed the Office Practice and Secretarial Practice courses offered by the Hong Kong
Baptist College Division of Continuing Education with distinction in April 1986 and with
credit in August 1986, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's annual

report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

INTRODUCTION

The Group is committed to establishing and ensuring high standards of corporate
governance and adopting sound corporate governance practices. The Company's
corporate governance practices are based on the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. The Directors strongly believe that reasonable and sound corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for safeguarding and

enhancing shareholders’ interests.

Except for the deviations from code provisions C.2.1 of the CG Code (as defined above),
the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the

year under review.

Code provision C2.1 of the CG Code, stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Ms.
Wong Pui Yain is both the chairperson of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Company. In view of Ms. Wong's role in day-to-day operations and management of
the Group since 2015, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to
have Ms. Wong taking up both roles for effective management and business development.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of
the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance and the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group's operations and sufficient checks and
balances are in place. The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles
of the chairperson and the chief executive officer at a time when it is appropriate and

suitable by taking into account the circumstance of the Group as a whole.
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Our Purpose, Values, and Strategies

Living in a digital world that changed our lives has minimised the quality of time we spend
face-to-face with family, friends, and people in general. JIA Group was established over
a decade ago, striving to enhance and build spaces in cities around the world that allow
people to connect over a table, add enjoyment to their lives, and enable them to build a

sense of home (JIA means home).

JJA Group has continuously built, executed, and conveyed well-versed restaurant concepts,
aiming to connect and engage people with storytelling, curating authentic food & drink,
and digital experiences that fuel the genuine journey of its brand portfolio. Diversification
enables its international veteran and experienced team to build meaningful brands

together, building a creative and freedom-based working environment.

JJA Group's purposes, values, and strategies are set out below:

(1) the Company's purpose is to build authentic, compelling, and consistent restaurants

to cater to a diverse customer base;

(2)  the Company's values are to ensure that the Company continues to perform
service of excellence, honesty and integrity, consistency, adaptability, and to strive

to execute food and beverage spaces that cater to its valued customers; and

(3)  the Company's strategies are (i) to adapt to food tastes and preferences in different
markets and locations; (i) to pay attention to small details in food, beverage, and
experiences to deliver consistent services and experiences; (iii) to upkeep ongoing
market research for innovative ideas; and (iv) to develop a diverse team with a

wealth of knowledge to serve a mass market.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which give true and fair view of the Group. The Directors are aware of the
Group's net current liabilities of HK$50.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
and these conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast

significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Further discussion on this issue has been set out in the note 3(b) to the consolidated

financial statements in this report.

A statement by the Independent Auditor about its reporting and its responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages |17 to 124 of this Annual Report.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include the formulation of the Group's overall
strategies, the setting of management targets and the supervision of management
performance. The management is delegated with the authority and the responsibility by
the Board for the management and administration of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees of the Company.

Further details of the Board committees are set out below in this report.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the success of the
Company by providing direction and supervision of the Company's business and affairs,
and the ultimate responsibility for day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the management. To this end, periodic financial and operational information are
provided to the Board for assessing the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.
For significant matters that are specifically delegated by the Board, the management
must report back to and obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the Company. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group and for
providing the Board with updates in a timely manner, including giving an assessment of the

Company's performance and position to enable the Board to discharge its duties.
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The Board is responsible for, amongst other things, performing the corporate governance

duties as set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which include:

(8)  developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations;

(b)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

the Directors and senior management;

(c)  reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if

any) applicable to the Directors and employees; and

(e)  reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in the

corporate governance report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As of the date of this report, the Board is comprised of five Directors, including two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, and the Directors'

details during the year and up to the date of this report are set out below.

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain (chairman and chief executive officer)
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM

Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

34 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED £ R&EBAR AT

EXeRE (HPeR)BTEEEATAS
A2 HESFRIBSCREIME R ERBE © B

@ BIERBRAARENSREAHRLT
R WIS

b RIAMEFEELRSREEENEIIR
PREEXER

O RIAMERAEEEETEIEREER
THEOBREER

d) HIE A RERE %%%%&1%%
BT RARTM(WE)

EEEAM

BEARERY EFEemhRESMAN
BRMANTEER=RBIFNTES
REAREEARE A HNESFEHIIW

BAFHTES

Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAME &
REBEE
WEE Keng Hiong Tony 5t 4



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Directors have appropriate professional qualifications and/or substantive experience
and industry knowledge. The Board composition as a whole reflects an appropriate
balance of skills and experience. The composition of the Board satisfies the requirements
of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. There are three independent non-
executive Directors and at least one of them has the requisite accounting professional
qualification. With more than one-third of the members of the Board being independent
non-executive Directors, the Board has a strong independence element in terms of its

composition.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board brings a diverse
range of expertise, skills and independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategies, performance, conflicts of interests and management process to ensure that the

interests of all shareholders of the Company are duly considered.

The details of Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of Board of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 24 to 29 of this report. There are no family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was appointed as a Director on 21 August 2015 and was re-
designated as an executive Director, the chief executive officer and the chairperson of the
Board on 23 January 2018. Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry was appointed as a Director on 21

August 2015 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 23 January 2018.

The chairperson of the Board provides leadership to the Board and is also responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practice and is responsible for the overall corporate management of the business
development strategies of the Group. The executive Directors are responsible for the
implementation of the business strategies, policies and objectives set out by the Board and
are accountable to the Board for the overall operations of the Group. These functions

and responsibilities are currently being shared by the management team.

According to paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairperson and the chief
executive should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
During the year, Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the chairperson of the Board, was responsible for
overseeing the overall financial matters of the Group. The day-to-day operations of the
Group are delegated to another executive Director, Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, and the

management of the Group is responsible for different aspects of the business.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong

Tony were appointed as the independent non-executive Directors on 23 January 2018.

With their professional knowledge and experience, the independent non-executive
Directors serve an important function of advising the management of the Group on
strategy development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards in financial
and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole. They also
participate in the Company's various committees including the audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the legal compliance

committee (the “Legal Compliance Committee”).
Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their

views to carry weight. The functions of independent non-executive Directors include:

. bringing an independent view and judgment at Board meetings;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

. serving on Board committees if invited; and

. scrutinising the Company's performance and monitoring performance reporting.

The independent non-executive Directors have made a positive contribution to the
development of the Company's strategies and policies through independent, constructive
and informed comments. They benefit the Board and the Board committees by their skills,
expertise, varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular attendance and active

participation in the meetings of the Board and the Board committees.
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In addition to the regular Board meetings, the Chairman met with the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other executive Director during the year

ended 3| December 2022,

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors a
written confirmation of his or her independence in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM

Listing Rules, and therefore, considers each of them to be independent.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy in accordance with the requirement as

set out in the CG Code, which is summarised below.

The Board diversity policy of the Company specifies that in designing the composition of
the Board, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. All Board members’ appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates for the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, culture, ethnicity,

educational background, professional experience, knowledge and skills.

Board Diversity Policy

It also sets out the Board's commitment to gender diversity and other diversity aspects,

with the ultimate goal of achieving gender parity on the Board.

During the year 2022, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board to ensure that its composition complies with the GEM Board Listing
Rules and reflects an appropriate mix of skills, experience and diversity that are relevant
to the Company's strategy, governance and business, and contribute to the Board's

effectiveness and efficiency.

The Company discloses the composition of the Board in the corporate governance
report every year and the Nomination Committee oversees the implementation of the
Board diversity policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be

required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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As at 31 December 2022, an analysis of the Board composition based on the range of

diversity perspectives is set out as follows:

P2002F 128318 - EFemEKR% Tt
BEAEENDITEIIWT

Number of Years of
Directors Gender  Designation Age Group Group Skills and Knowledge
EEAH MR B FiR AR 3 £ 29 R AN
Administration and business management
5 Female Executive Directors THRINEE
£°8 WITESF <50
Development strategy and marketing management
BRREMMSEHERE
over 5
Independent BiE5E Internal Control and Risk Management
Mal 5 S B drn A £
3 EEa ¢ Non-executive Directors AR RERERE
- BITEE 0

Each of the Board members possessed different skills and knowledge, including business
development strategy, marketing management, financial management, administration
and business management, investment development management, etc. The Board is
characterized by significant diversity in terms of gender, age, designation, length of service,

skills and knowledge.

The Nomination Committee undertook a comprehensive review, considering the gender,
age, tenure, cultural/educational and professional background, skills, knowledge and
experience of each Director, as well as the structure, composition, size, commitment and

independence of the Board.

The Nomination Committee was of the view that the existing Board was satisfactory
and effective in terms of its size, structure, composition, commitment, independence and
diversity. The Committee concluded that, in order to support board succession planning
and long-term growth, the Board will require expertise in technology and digital media,
finance and accounting, risk management, and environmental, social and governance (ESG)
matters in future. Gender diversity should also be taken into account in Board refreshment

and succession planning.
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As at 31 December 2022, the workforce (including senior management) comprised of
51.56% female and 48.44% male, which the Board considers to reflect that a gender

equality principle has been adhered to by the Group.

The Group is determined to and will continue to maintain gender diversity and equality in

terms of the board and the general workforce.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) provide that at each annual
general meeting ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation and that every Director shall be subject to retirement at

an AGM at least once every three years.

All of the Directors, including both the executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors, are appointed for a specific term. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a period of three years subject to the rotation requirement and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by either party giving at least one month's notice in writing.
In accordance with the Company’s Articles and, at each AGM of the Company, the

Directors will retire from office by rotation but will be eligible for re-election.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS AND COMPANY SECRETARY
AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director has been given a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment. Subsequently, the Directors will receive updates on the
GEM Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the latest development
of the Group's business and are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop their knowledge and skills. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Directors have participated in continuing professional development (“CPD"). All
Directors have provided the Company with their records of training received for the year.

A summary of their records of training is provided as follows:

EEROQFAMERIIREETRER

ERRIREXRRR

BENZANESHEZARES2E
ﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬁ§\MEﬁﬂ°E&~§$%
EHMGEM EmRA - EZRREMEERTE

*m%%%ﬂ&$gﬁﬁﬁmwﬁﬁﬁym
TUBRB2EBBEEERRE  UEREEN
MR REE - REBE200NENANBILEE
N EFE2ABEEXEYR ((HESEY
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FEEIBINLE - RENFILEHE
mr
Directors Types of CPD Subject of CPD
= BRER BEAR
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(P=E L) (FyEE2)
Executive Directors
HiTES
Ms. WONG Pui Yain BMEZL 2 A B
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry RERELT l,2 A B
Independent non-executive Directors
BYNFUTES
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric REBAAE 2 A B
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam 54 [2 A B
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony WEE Keng Hiong Tony 7t & [2 AB
Note I BEl:

\ Attending in-house briefings/trainings, seminars, conferences or forums

2 Reading newspapers, journals and updates

Note 2:

A Businesses related to the Company

B. Laws, rules and regulations, accounting standards
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PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF BOARD MEETINGS

Board Meetings

The Board holds at least four meetings a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Additional meetings would be arranged, if and when required. The date of each meeting
is decided in advance to enable the Directors to attend the meeting in person. For those
Directors who are not able to attend these meetings in person, participation by telephone

conference is available.

To ensure that all Directors are properly informed about the matters to be discussed at
each regular Board meeting, documents in relation to the regular Board meeting are sent

to each Director at least three days prior to the meeting.

During the year 2022, the Directors made active contributions to the affairs of the Group
and seven Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various transactions
contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the quarterly results, interim

results and annual results of the Company.

Schedules and draft agenda of each Board meeting are normally made available to
Directors in advance. At least 14 days' notice should be given for a regular Board meeting.

For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details of matters considered and
decisions reached at the meetings are duly kept by the Company Secretary and are

available for inspection by the Directors.

The Articles contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such Directors or

any of their associates have a material interest.
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Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to

all Directors at least 3 days before each Board meeting or Audit Committee meeting to

keep the Directors apprised of the latest developments and the financial position of the

Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

Details of Directors’ attendance at the AGM, Board and Board Committee meetings in

the year 2022 are set out in the following table:

EEENMHERMAEES =
ARNBREFEERAELZE
RBET2REFUEEENEALFN
RER LA

RSN

\\_

»3
BHER M BARRALEF
RTE e

EEHFERE

BAIE

/\El Eﬁ\

TREJNEEN0NFHERRBEFAE
EXeNESZBReANFE

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBITERRE
Legal
General Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Compliance
Meeting Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
ERER
BRAE Exg BEKEEE FHZEEE REZEE ZE®
Executive Directors
BITES
Ms. WONG Pui Yain 11 717 - 171 I/1 11
ALt
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry 11 717 - - - -
BEELL
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHITES
Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM 11 717 5/5 11 11 /1
Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM %5 4
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric 11 717 5/5 - /1 -
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony [/1 717 5/5 11 - /1
WEE Keng Hiong Tony %t 4
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Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may have affected
the Group's business, including those changes to relevant rules and regulations, and are
able to make further enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for approval. They
also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related materials.
A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board
has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing

their Directors’ duties at the Company's expense.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage to Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against the Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage and amount are reviewed on an

annual basis.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Legal Compliance
Committee, with delegated powers for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's
affairs. Each of the committees of the Company has been established with written terms

of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, meetings shall be held not
less than four times a year and the external auditor may request a meeting if they consider

that one is necessary.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Leung
Yuk Lun Ulric, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony, and is
chaired by Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board by providing an
independent view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, risk management
and intemal control systems of the Group, to oversee the audit process, to develop and
review the policies of the Group, and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
Audit Committee

During the year, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held to review and approve
the financial results of the Group, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted, risk management and internal control systems, the scope of non-audit services
provided by the external auditors and its independence, and financial reporting matters
(in conjunction with the external auditors for the audited results). The Audit Committee
endorsed the accounting treatments adopted by the Group and, to the best of its ability,
assured itself that the disclosures of the financial information in the Company's quarterly,
interim and annual reports comply with the applicable accounting standards and the GEM

Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the auditor's remuneration, the
independence of the auditor, BDO Limited (“BDO"), and recommended the Board to re-
appoint BDO as the Company's auditor for the year ending 31 December 2022, which is
subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
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The Company's annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which opined that applicable accounting standards and

requirements have been complied with and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. The terms of reference setting out the
Remuneration Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the

GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, a meeting shall be
held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors: Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr.

Wee Keng Hiong Tony, and is chaired by Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include without limitation: (a)
making recommendations to the Directors regarding the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all the Directors and the senior management of the Group and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management of the Group; (c) reviewing and approving the management's
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;
and (d) considering and approving the grant of share options to eligible participants
pursuant to the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the sole shareholder of the

Company on 23 January 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The Remuneration Committee determines Directors’ remuneration by reference to
the benchmarking of the market. The Company also considers individual Director's
competence, duties, responsibilities, performance and the results of the Group in

determining the exact level of remuneration for each Director.
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Remuneration Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held to review the
structure and remuneration policy of the Group and to approve the remuneration package
of the Directors. The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the Remuneration
Committee according to the Directors’ respective responsibilities, individual performance
and prevailing market conditions and recommended the Directors' remuneration package

to the Board's approval.
Senior Management’s remuneration

The remuneration paid to the Group's Senior Management for the year ended 3

December 2022 falls within the following bands:

HK$
BT

FHEES
RAEE  FHWEEGRRT - REFEUR

AASEEEREWBR A RBEES 25
ME - FMEESRBEEFEENEMT
R &RBRERFTREESHTMETR
WEFESHMEBAEESSE

EREEREOHM

HE2F1NAIBILEFE  AAEESHK
EREBYNOHENELTIREA

Number of individuals

N

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0Z 1,000,000/ 7T

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals are set

out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group for the Directors and the senior management
was based on their experience, level of responsibility and general market conditions.
Any discretionary bonus and other merit payments are linked to the performance of the

Group and the individual performance of the Directors and the senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 23 January 2018 in compliance
with paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code. The terms of reference setting out the Nomination
Committee's authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM website

and the Company's website.
Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, a meeting shall be

held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall so

request.
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The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors Ms. Wong Pui Yain, Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric and Mr. Devin

Nijanthan Chanmugam, and is chaired by Ms. Wong Pui Yain.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to (a) review the structure, size
and composition of the Board on a regular basis; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members; (c) assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to

the appointment or reappointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the Board diversity policy as well as discussed matters regarding the retirement
and re-election of Directors.

Nomination Committee

During the year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was held to review the
structure, size, composition and diversification (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board, review the policy of Directors’ nomination related matters,
assess the independence of INEDs, make recommendations to the Board on the proposal
of re-appointment of Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment of a new Director.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted the Nomination Policy on 20 September 2018.

Details of the Nomination Policy are set out as follows:

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing the suitability

of a proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

2. Accomplishment and experience in different industries;
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3

4,

Commitment to the Board in respect of available time and relevant interest;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and

length of services.

These factors are not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee

has discretion to nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

48

The secretary of the Nomination Committee or the Company Secretary shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from
Board members, if any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are

not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee

shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not assume
that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the general

meeting,

In order to provide information on the candidates nominated by the Board to stand
for election at a general meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set out the lodgment period
for shareholders to make the nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration
and any other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules
and regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to

shareholders.
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5. Ashareholder can serve a notice to the Company Secretary within the lodgement
period of its intention to propose a resolution to elect certain person as a Director,
without the Board's recommendation or the Nomination Committee’s nomination,
other than those candidates set out in the shareholder circular. The particulars of
the candidates so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for information by a

supplementary circular.

6. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his or her candidature at any time before
the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the Company Secretary or

Chairman.

7. The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its recommendation

of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may obtain independent professional advice, at the

Company's expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a legal compliance committee on 23 January 2018. The
terms of reference setting out the Legal Compliance Committee's authority, duties and

responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and the Company's website.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Legal Compliance Committee, a meeting shall
be held at least once a year and additional meetings should be held if the committee shall

so request.

The Legal Compliance Committee consists of Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry, Ms. Wong Pui
Yain and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric, and is chaired by Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry. Please
refer to the section headed “Business — Internal control and risk management measures — .
Establishment of the legal compliance committee” in the Prospectus for further details of

the principal responsibilities of the Legal Compliance Committee.

The primary function of the Legal Compliance Committee is overseeing compliance
with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the adequacy and

effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.
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During the year, the Legal Compliance Committee reviewed and is satisfied with the
compliance with laws and regulations relevant to the Group's operations and the

adequacy and effectiveness of the regulatory compliance procedures and system.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities for the audited consolidated financial

statements

All Directors understand and acknowledge their responsibility for ensuring that the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for each financial year are prepared to
provide a true and fair view of the state of affairs, the financial results and cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and the
applicable accounting standards. In preparing the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board adopted appropriate and consistent
accounting policies and made prudent, fair and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting records which reflect with
reasonable accuracy the state of affairs, operating results, cash flows and equity movement
of the Group at any time. The Directors confirm that the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable

accounting standards.

The Directors also confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability

to continue as a going concem.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The
auditor's statement in their reporting responsibilities on the audited consolidated financial

statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company's auditor are set out in the Independent

Auditor's Report with the full text included in pages |17 to 124 of this report.
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S EM N =

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration for the audit and non-audit ~ REZE2022F 12 A3 B ILFE - RAFHZE

services provided by the Company's auditor to the Group was as follows: A A A ER M E T RIEFEARBOM S 0
N
Type of services Amount
PR35 25 ]
HK$'000
F87L
Annual audit service for the year ended 31 December 2022 EZE202F 12 A3 BIEFERFE R R
~BDO Limited —BAUERREHMEHHERAF 880
Non-audit services JEST AR (M) 753
Total 85t 1,103
Note: Non-audit services include tax compliance services. 3T« IEBRTRIS R IET S A HIRT -
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS SEERREE
No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board is responsible ARARRYERICEERRESG &%
for performing the corporate governance functions such as developing and reviewing CEHENTLEE AR  WHIE RS AR
the Company's policies, practices on corporate governance, training and continuous DRIGEERNBRERER  REZFRER
professional development of the Directors and senior management, and the Company'’s EREREBEILBEEXEEE  BRARQ
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. ARERERTREELEERES

The Directors review the Group's corporate governance policies and compliance with the EEFAVREERTAEENDES AR
CG Code each financial year and comply with the “Comply or Explain” principle in the RNETLPEELRTHNER  WEBTAE
corporate governance report which is or will be included in the reports of the Company. MEEERREPEN [ EBTHEE R

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Bl HRIKHARRBNRS -

EENEHRS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on ARBBETERGEM LRI 5.48 £55.67
terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 BB RERERRNIERRNES#E
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company TREHEXHHNBRETH - ARFHERZ
confirmed that all of the Directors complied with such required standard of dealings and BEXRELARSH BATBESENER
its code of conduct regarding directors' securities transactions during the year ended 3| 002F N2 A3IAEFEREEARERDRE

December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

FLAR S RTEERABEERTELR
SHRIETE -
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS Edfg SRR

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with the shareholders ARBBNERRREFERR  KATE
and in particular, through AGMs or other general meetings to communicate with the BRERBFASHAEMBRERNLHERRE
shareholders and encourage their participation. B WERERRE 2T -

The Company will ensure that there are separate resolutions for separate issues proposed AREBERIERBRREAGRENS EEE
at the general meetings. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be HERER - REGEM ETRA - FIBERK
voted on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on ~ RAE FREMAZRBUREFRETE
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner after each R REERBRBRRAS % R TIER
shareholders’ meeting, RN A R B AR o

The Company will continue to maintain an open and effective investor communication ~ ANAREEBRFARLERMNIREEER
policy and to update investors on relevant information on the Group's business in a timely HE SBREEREBEBEEAEEERN

manner, subject to relevant regulatory requirements. HEAER - HEBETIHAEERT

(@)  Significant Changes in the Constitutional Documents (@ EERXHMNEAZE
For the year ended 3| December 2022, there has been no significant change in BE200FNA3ALEFE  ARFIE
the constitutional documents of the Company. The Articles are available on the PRI mEREE o 408 AT
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. U R AR R A AR o
Subject to obtaining Shareholders” approval by way of a special resolution, new FURRIAZREGRRAER - BRA
memorandum and Articles of Association will be adopted by the Company at the AR ERFIBF ARG R AR
forthcoming annual general meeting, with the primary objectives (a) to bring the ERRAMARMA - FEBHRE@QTHR
Articles in line with the amendments made to the applicable laws of the Cayman RS HSEREERCEM ETRBIM
Island and GEM Listing Rules, in particular to conform with the core shareholder EERTRF —3 BRI RRFAGEMLET
protection standards as set out in Appendix 3 to the GEM Listing Rules; (b) to RIS = PR O IR R IRIB IR
allow all general meetings to be held as a physical meeting in any part of the world (b) o A AT 5 A — sk %
and at one or more locations, or as a hybrid meeting or an electronic meeting, to WEARZEELEAEARETER
allow meetings of the Board and its committees to be held by electronic means, to EABRITHERRAS  AFFEFER
allow for votes to be cast by the Shareholders electronically, to allow instruments HZEeMERUEFARET 25
of proxy to be retumed to the Company by electronic means, and to make other BREUNEFHFAERE « RFFEERKE
consequential and housekeeping amendments. NXBENEFHAREARA RIEHEAM

HERABER ZER] -

(b)  General Meetings with shareholders (b) BRERXE
The Company's AGM will be held on 12 June 2023, ARBRFBEREHR2023F6A 12
SR
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(@)

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having
the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. Shareholders also have the right to propose a
person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on the websites of

the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board to the extent such
information is publicly available to the Company Secretary who is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board's purview to the
executive Directors of the Company, communications relating to matters within
a Board committee’s area of responsibility to the chairperson of the appropriate
committee, and communication relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, enquiries and consumer complaints, to the appropriate management of
the Company, in writing to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong

Kong.
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()  Putting forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcome to put forward proposals relating to the operations
and the management of the Group to be discussed at shareholders’ meetings.
The proposals shall be sent to the Company Secretary by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should convene an extraordinary
general meeting by following the procedures set out in "Convening an

extraordinary general meeting” above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is the key to
enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure
of corporate information to its shareholders and the public investors. The Company
updates its shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance
through annual, interim and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.jiagroup.co) has provided an effective communication platform to the public and

the shareholders.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Subject to the approval of the shareholders and requirements of relevant laws, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to the shareholders if the Group is profitable, its
operational environment is stable and there is no significant investment or commitment
made by the Group. The Company's ability to pay dividends will depend upon, among
other things, the Group's actual and expected financial performance, retained earmnings and
distributable reserves, liquidity position, future cash requirements and availability, restriction
on payments of dividends that may be imposed by the Group's lenders, the general

market conditions and any other factor(s) that the Board may consider appropriate.

Any declaration and payment of future dividends under the dividend policy are subject to
the Board's determination that the same would be in the best interests of the Group and

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

54 | JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &R &EBERA T

(0 REBRRASREZR

ARABARRIBZAMAEEEENR
BENEZENRRAE LW - AR
FABBEABREITAANE - #
REEZZNBREER EX[ARKRE
BRIKE I8 MiEF B RBRERIX

&= o
=

REEREZ

ARAEGE  #RSERERREARELR
RHOBRE  YHNRFEMERRELRRE
ERALERRBERARERMNER - AR
BRFE PHRFERETMRRENER
MEBEREIBRER - RRAIH DAL
(www.jiagroup.co) B A ARA T KA —
ERMEBRTS

IR BB
ERGERRIELTAEREERENER
T WAREZEEF - KLRERERK
SEYETNEARESRE - KRAREAR
BRI FERE - RARREDIRMNBRERK
BURR (R 8 AEENER RIERM %
KB REBNRADEHE  RBESM
o RRREFRRAFM - REEAHR
ARSI LR B IR R 1) ~ —fRTRIA
FEZENRRR/BEENEMEMEE -

AR08 B B R BOR R HR B /B (B
FEMRTE - DERMEHABRESEHTE
A E R A A TR R BB AR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY

The Group has established a whistleblower policy. Whistleblowing channels are published
in all workplace. The policy is to facilitate employees, partners and customers to report
complaints and internal malpractices to the Finance Department of the Company, who will
review, investigate and follow up these complaints. Once cases are verified, investigation

results will be announced within the Company as warnings

COMPANY SECRETARY
On 4 February 2022, Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina of CS Legend Business Services Limited,

an external services provider, has been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company. Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Wong Pui Yain, the

chairperson of the Group.

The Company Secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board's policy and procedures, and the applicable laws,
rules and regulations are followed. All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable laws are
followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating communications

among Directors as well as with management.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company Secretary undertook more than
I'5 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

Access to Information

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that may have affected
the Group's business, including those changes to relevant rules and regulations, and are
able to make further enquiries when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information
have been provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for approval. They
also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with board papers and related materials.
A monthly update which gives a balanced and concise assessment of the Company's
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail is provided to all Directors to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge his or her duty. The Board
has also agreed that the Directors may seek independent professional advice in performing

their Directors’ duties at the Company's expense.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Group's systems
of risk management and internal control include a defined management structure with
limits of authority, which is designed to help achieve business objectives, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and

achievement of the Group's objectives.

An organisational structure with operating policies and procedures, lines of responsibility
and delegated authority has been established. The division/department head of each
core operating division/department is accountable for the conduct and performance of
the respective division/department within the agreed strategies (which are set by the

respective head together with the Board) and reports directly to the Board.

The Group has in place a policy on the handling and disclosure of inside information,
setting out the appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. The Board has delegated the responsibilities for the handling
and dissemination of inside information to the executive directors and management
team who will maintain appropriate and effective reporting procedures responding to
the development or circumstances of the Group in timely manner so that the Board can

decide whether disclosure is necessary.
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In the course of conducting the business, the Group is exposed to various types of risks.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the following principal risks of the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and

compliance risks.

Risk Areas
Bk A

Principal Risks
TERR
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Strategic Risks
reputation risk
RESE R

Operational Risks

2ERR BPNHETR - TH - BARMREGTT

Financial Risks

Lupi e

Liquidity risk; credit risk; interest rate risk; inflation risk

/}IL@J ﬁ%ﬂ 1;‘%“ PR *ljtﬂ PR @HEEW&

Compliance Risks

HHFBROSRIE - RIFARMEEP @K - MGHFER

Insufficient labour supply; workplace injury; disruption of IT system

Sensitivity to government policies; keeping up with new technologies and customers' taste; market competition risk,

% BERER

Risk related to occupational safety and health; risk of non-compliance with ordinances related to employment; changes

of the GEM Listing Rules and relevant company regulations and ordinances

AHRER HR XL MEFRARNER -

B4

The Board is ultimately responsible for the risk management of the Group and it has
delegated to the executive management, the responsibilities to carry out the risk
identification and monitoring procedures. The objectives of the risk management are to
enhance the governance and corporate management processes as well as to safeguard the

Group against unacceptable levels of risks and losses.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, amongst others, (i) an annual risk
identification and analysis exercise which involves assessment of the consequences and
likelihood of risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the risk management plans and fine

tuning of the implementation plan when necessary.
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During the year under review, the management outsourced its internal audit and risk
management function to an external consultant. The external consultant reported
directly to the Audit Committee on all internal audit matters. The internal audit plan
was submitted to the Audit Committee for approval prior to the commencement of
the internal audit work. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal audit and risk
management report and monitored the implementation of the improvements required
on intemnal control weaknesses identified. They also reported any observations identified
by them in the course of their work to the Group, and satisfied that there is an ongoing
process in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the

Group.

Even though the Group does maintain an internal audit function, the Board has overall
responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Based on the review of the Group's internal control systems, the Directors
were satisfied that effective internal control measures as appropriate to the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were implemented properly and that no significant areas

of weaknesses were identified.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will continue to review its corporate governance standards on a timely basis
and the Board endeavours to take the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the

required practices and standards including the provisions of the CG Code.
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RIE - HERERRS
REPORT OVERVIEW

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “Report”, "ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG") initiatives, plans and
performances of Jia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group” or “We"), and demonstrates its commitment to sustainability

development.

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all the applicable provisions as set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide") under the Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

Reporting period

This ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and measures taken by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”, “Year” or “FY2022").

ESG Management Approach

Being a pioneer in the luxury dinning industry, the Group strives to provide the best dining
experience and the highest food quality to food lovers. To be a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group is committed to protecting the natural environment, efficient use of
natural resources (i.e, food ingredients and energy) and social beings of the community.

Such commitment is achieved by complying with all relevant laws, regulations, and policies.
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Reporting boundary

The Group is a well-established restaurant group in Hong Kong with award-winning
restaurants serving a variety of cuisines including Chinese, Spanish, Italian, French, Nyonya
and Thai, and specialty coffee under different brands and themes. This ESG Report
covers its core business with information obtained from internal source of control,
restaurants operation in Hong Kong, which include the Hong Kong office of the Group,
and restaurants in Hong Kong including: Ramato, Agora, 22 Ships, Chachawan, Duddell's
(Airport), Duddell's (Central), Louise, Mak Mak, MONO, And0 and Estro.

There are updates of reporting scope in FY2022 due to operational changes. “Bibi & Baba”
was closed in September 2022 and “Between” was disposed in August 2022, these two
restaurants were not included from this Report. Restaurant, Agora, was opened in April
2022 which was newly added to the reporting scope with data disclosure covering period

from April 2022 to 3| December 2022.

Reporting Principles

The following principles have been applied when preparing this Year's ESG Report:

Materiality: The Materiality assessment was conducted to identity material ESG issues
during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the confirmed material ESG topics as
the focus for the preparation of the ESG report. Material ESG issues were reviewed
and confirmed by internal and external stakeholder engagement with the ESG task
force. Please refer to the sections headed “stakeholder Engagement” and “Materiality

Assessment’” for further detalils.
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Quantitative: Quantitative data with supplementary notes are used for KPI disclosure to
represent a measurable result and to explain the standards, methodologies, and source of

conversion factors used during the calculation of emissions and energy consumption.

Consistency: The preparation approach of this ESG Report was substantially consistent
with methodologies applied in previous year, and explanations were provided regarding

changes in reporting boundary.
Forward-Looking Statements

This Report contains forward-looking statements which are based on the current
expectations, estimates, projections, beliefs, and assumptions of the Group about the
businesses and the markets in which it and its subsidiaries operate. These forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to market risk,
uncertainties, and factors beyond the control of the Group. Therefore, actual outcomes
and returns may differ materially from the assumptions made and the statements

contained in this Report.

Contact and Feedback

Your feedback is valuable to our continuous improvement, and we welcome any
comments and suggestions you may have on this Report or our ESG reporting in general.

Please share any comments or suggestions regarding the Group's ESG performance at

info@jiagroup.co.
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BOARD STATEMENT & ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Oversight of ESG Issues

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds the ultimate responsibility on monitoring
the Group's ESG issues, including ESG management approach, strategy, and policies.
To better manage the Group's ESG performance and identify potential risks, the Board
conducts materiality assessment where necessary with the assistance of the ESG taskforce
to evaluate and prioritise material ESG-related issues with reference to the opinions of
our stakeholders. The Board sets up a general direction for the Group's ESG strategies,

ensuring the effectiveness in the control of ESG risks and internal control mechanisms.

ESG Taskforce

The Group has established an ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce™). This Taskforce comprises
core members from different departments and is responsible for collecting relevant
information from our ESG aspects for preparing the ESG Reports. This Taskforce
reports to the Board and assists in identifying and evaluating the Group's ESG risks and
the effectiveness of the internal control mechanisms. This Taskforce also examines and
evaluates our performances in different ESG-related goals and targets such as environment,
health and safety, labour standards and product responsibilities. Following the direction set
by the Board, the Taskforce ensures the execution of various ESG related strategies and

policies.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group aims at developing a sustainable approach in its ESG strategies to enhance
its performance at environmental protection and social responsibility. Comments from
stakeholders are being valued, the Group strives to understand, respond, and address
the main concemns of different stakeholders through close communication with major
stakeholders. To facilitate communication and incorporate stakeholder feedback
into sustainable management and ESG strategies development, a diverse group of

communication channels are established.

The Group communication channels with stakeholders and stakeholder expectations are

summarised as below:
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Stakeholders Possible Issues of Concern Communication Channels
KiE BEBIER BERE
Government/regulatory authorities . Compliance with policies and regulations . Routine reporting and disclosure
. Operational compliance . Announcements
. Press releases
BT/ BB « ETEERERD < PlITHRERRE
- ARKE - RE

Customers . Food and service quality
. Delivery time
EF +  RmKRBEE

Suppliers . Supplier management
. Customer service
it - fHERERE
- BPR®
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Stakeholders Possible Issues of Concern Communication Channels
B BEBEEE BRERE
Employees Rights and benefits Employee training

Remuneration and compensation
Career development and training
Working hours

Occupational health and safety

Working environment

Employee communication meetings
Performance reviews

Employee handbook

B8 M Rz 7 EEE
FrEHEL R (E EREREE
BRI RBRGHE
TR &8 F 1t
BERFEEZE
THERE

Shareholders and Investors

Corporate governance system
Business strategies and performance

Corporate transparency and reputation

Annual/ Extraordinary general meetings
Annual reports and announcements

Company website and email

BER KRB EE EERERHE BRASF HHlKkeg
RERERER FHREAE
CREPERBE NERUE R EE
Community Community environment Community activities
Employment and community development Employee voluntary activities
Social welfare Community welfare subsidies
Charitable donations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a materiality assessment survey for
identifying and prioritizing the most material ESG issues to the Group business by internal
and external stakeholder engagement. The management team selected and invited key
stakeholders with high level of influence and dependence on the Group to offer feedback
through filling in a survey. The survey aims at allowing the Group to have a better
understanding of the significance of impact of each ESG topics on the Group business
and on the stakeholder assessment. The Group identifies risks and opportunities through
materiality assessment and integrates ESG issues into its business forecast and strategy

establishment. The result of the assessment is as below:
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Material Topics of the Group

BIR - HERERHE

FEENERSE

l. Emissions 7. Occupational Health and Safety
L B 7. BERRRAZE
. Waste Disposal 8. Development and Training
2 EYRE 8. BREE
3. Water Consumption 9. Prevention of Child and Forced Labour
3 KER 9. FBHEREIR®RES
4. Energy Consumption 0. Green Supply Chain Management
4. BERERE 0. ArEfEREE

5. Climate Change I,
5 RIREM .

Food Hygiene
Rmfirt

6. Recruitment, Promotion and Remuneration 12, Customer Satisfaction and Food Quality
6. B BTEEH 2. EPREEERREE

The Group reviewed the materiality assessment results and considered that the said resuft
is applicable to the Group. The Group will continuously monitor the Group's business

operations comparing with its ESG performances.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Emissions

The Group is committed to conserving the environment and minimizing the negative
impacts on the natural environment caused by its business activities. Continuous
improvement in sustainable performance is placed at the top priority of the Group, while
striving for business growth in the future. The Group has established its ESG goals and

implemented proactive measures to mitigate negative impacts on the environment.

During the Reporting Period, there is no record of non-compliance for environment
compliance issues. The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong, including but not limited to Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal

Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance and Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance.

[3. Customer Data Privacy Protection

13, BPENLRERE

14, Protection of Intellectual Property

14, RENBER

I5. Technology Innovation

5. RHXAET

6. COVID-19 pandemic
l6.  2019BHRBEERERS

I7. Anti-Corruption
7. R&ER

8. Community Participation
8. HE2H

AKBECEHNBERMFEER LR/
BREARAKE - AEESBEERELIE
BHXHEEYRARE  #HEREREN
EITHE -

R
B

AEERHRERBEVRERELERED
HEARSNAETE - EFHIRRERE
ROAK HEXSTREZREMRAE
Eméﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ‘ﬁ

FERBEBRUERESNERELESE -
*/F R EIRENBETZE -

REEH YERETRAEARMENT
ﬁ°$%lﬁ%‘#§%ﬁﬁi@&iﬁ
BRERETRICERRESIED) - (BEMER
BIRD)) - (RZEHIRD) RCRBEZF BN
{E&51>
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BRI HEREBRE

Air Emissions

Major source of air emissions is generated from the consumption of town gas in its
F&B operations' kitchens. Oily fumes from F&B operation causes odour to nearby
neighbourhoods. To reduce emissions, the Group set out emission reduction measures,
including the installation of efficient filtering equipment and regular maintenance of
ventilation systems. The Group also reduces influence to surrounding residents by applying
spatial strategy of restaurants location, picking locations where are less-densely populated

areas.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's exhaust gas emissions performance was as

RER B

REHEREBZXRAEERXTNEER R
7o BREBELNBERMALBTERE
%o MBI - ARBEHERBER - B
RERRWEBRELEHEERRRLS -
AEBEEEREN FRATERE - i
ARBERENMT - RO HHEERS

=7
-

RIFEH - AEERERIBAERAT

follows:

Indicator EE Unit FY2022 FY2021
B 2022815 2021 B

— NOx Emission — NOJEH kg 19.04 2299
TR

— SOx Emission — SOHBER kg 0.1 0.06
Fr

— Particulate matter — R kg 0 0
Fr
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R HERERBRE

GHG Emissions BERBIER
The consumption of electricity at the office as well as town gas consumption for the F&B WNEINE

operations are the major sources of GHG emissions of the Group. GHG Emissions is

stated as below.

HREARBEREBHRRERE

RAGEREREHFMOIENR - BER

RARERIMT -

Indicator BE Unit FY2022 FY2021
By 202281 2021 BHEE

Scope | - Direct GHG Emissions' HE | -ERREREIN tCOe 252.78 30571
— Town gas —ER W_EfirEE 25278 305.71
Scope? — Indirect GHG Emissions HED - EEREYN tCOze [,531.35 |,794.27
— Purchased Electricity —BENES W_EftiREE 147303 172338

— Purchased Town gas —EBENER 5832 70.89
Scope3 — Other Indirect GHG Emissions HE3-HEREEREFR tCOe 40381 2604
— Electricity generated from processing Freshwater —HRREEENE S W-RtiREE 30.38 2453

— Electricity generated from processing Sewage —AKEEEENE S 1043 151
Total GHG Emissions RERBEY AR tCOLe 1,824.94 2,12603

WS tikE e
Intensity” 72 tCO,e/mil rev 84l 9.79

ME—ACiREE

BEBTEA
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RE - HBREREE

Note |:

Note 2: Per million revenue is used for calculating intensity data, FY2022: HK $217mil, FY2021 is

The Group is determined to reduce GHG emissions to cope with the target of zero-
carbon economy in 2050 of Hong Kong, by setting the target of 10% reduction in carbon
emission intensity by adopting holistic management plan and implementing energy-
efficiency plan over the next 10 years, with FY2021 as base year of comparison. Ongoing

monitoring and evaluation of the progress will be regularly reviewed for goal achievement.

70

GHG emissions data is presented in carbon dioxide equivalent and was in reference to,
including but not limited to, the reporting requirements of the "GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard” issued by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the HKEX,
the “Sustainability Report 2021" published by the Hong Kong Electric Investments Limited,
the 2021 Sustainability Report” published by the CLP Power Hong Kong, ESG Report
2021 published by Towngas, Sustainability Report 2021 from Water Services Department,
Sustainability Report 2021 from Drainage Service Department, and “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report (AR5), 2014.

HK$22 [ mil.
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Sewage Discharge

The Group complies with relevant sewage regulations. Water pollution control license has

been approved by the Environmental Protection Department of Hong Kong for its F&B

BIR - HERERHE

SEIKEE

AEEETHRANETER - BEREXHE
BREERRREZHENKSREH R -

operation. To reduce water pollution, sufficient equipment has been installed to ensure RTRDIKEHR BB LR ETHREAE
sewage is properly processed before discharge. RITKRBERAIFRIZERIE o
Indicators BR Unit FY2022 FY2021
B 202281 2021 B
Sewage discharge A IKBERR m’ 49,687 41,184
intensity E m?/mil rev 229 186
YHKR/
BEETHA
Waste Management B EE

The Group complied with the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) when handling and disposing of waste. The major types of waste generated from
the Group's operations were waste cooking oil, food waste from the Group's diners, and

bottles from pre-packaged beverages.

Handling of Waste Cooking Oil (“WCO”)

Major type of wastes generated from restaurants operation was WCQO. Environmental
Protection Department put in place the administrative measures to register eligible local
WCO collectors, processor, and exporters, to strengthen the regulation of handling and
flow of WCO as well as conserving the environment. The Group assigned qualified WCO
collectors for collection and recycling of WCO. WCO was collected and processed into
biodiesel. Biodiesel is a green energy which is 100% repurposed by waste oil that can

provide new source of sustainable energy.

AEENRERGEEEYEETEEENS

34E(BEMRERD) - AEEZEELNT

%32}?*%7%@533 CAREREENRMESRK
KEBERE -

EEEERMAM ([EH])

ZRCEESENTIZEMERRER - RE
REBHETHIER - B Aa BRHE
MR - REEREOR - ANNREERE
BRI RN - WIRERE - AEEEEA
BREEmU SR  UER e B YRR o R AR I
SWMIKENSE D - EYEME—BEE
REIR  100%A] BB M BE AL - ARG EY
ATFHERL RO ©
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BRI - 4B RERERE

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of generating any hazardous
waste. All waste cooking oil has been recycled as biodiesel. During the reporting period,
the F&B operations recorded a generation of 5,736.00 litres of waste cooking oil with an

intensity of 26.43 litres/mil rev.

Applying “5Rs” concept — Reduce, Recycle, Reuse, Repurpose & Replace in Waste

Management

The Group applied "5Rs"” concept in waste management. This concept does not only
apply to recycling WCO for biodiesel, but also applies to other phases of operations such

as food wastage and bottles from pre-packaged beverages.

Portion controls is one of the essential steps taken by the Group to avoid excessive food.
Noticing that some diners with smaller appetites, staff are trained to offer customers to

bring leftover food as take-away to promote green lifestyle.

Inventory control is another vital step taken to reduce food wastage, procurement team is
provided with operational manual and training on food ordering and processing guidelines

to ensure better inventory control and minimize food wastage.

Apart from recycling WCO and food wastage, the Group established proactive measures
to reduce waste disposal. Pre-packaged beverage is another major source of waste such
as bottle of still and sparking water. To cure from the source, the Group introduced a tap
water filttering system last year, Nordag, as an environmental-friendly solution for premium
water, in some of its restaurants such as Louise, And0, Duddell's, etc. It is believed that a

significant reduction in bottle waste will be achieved in long term.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Waste management is extended to office operation in Hong Kong, paper waste is the
major source of office waste. Paper saving culture is promoted, encouraging duplex

printing, recycling used paper and avoid printing unnecessary documents.

R HERERBRE

BENERTHRERERLEEN - BRIN
RERMNTIBRR - ZAUREEHHBEX
£ ZEERHIEL - EREERR @25
T BB

Indicators BE Unit FY2022

By 2022815

Non-hazardous waste — Office Paper BEEY-BLEAR tonnes [.17
W

intensity HE tonnes/mil rev 0.0l
W/ AEB A

In the future, the Group will keep on reviewing and monitoring the waste disposal and

management scheme as part of the sustainable strategies.

The Group has formulated waste management policies to handle wastes generated from
our operation activities. The Group has complied with waste disposal regulations, including
but not limited to waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for

waste management.

AR AEBESEERTNERBNEE R
EEE - FRATRERREMN K7 -
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Use of Resources

The Groups F&B operation has significant use of energy such as town gas for cooking,

electricity, and water for restaurants daily operation.
Energy management

In response to the Updated Climate Action Plan 2050, the Group has set a target of
10% reduction in energy consumption intensity by reinforcing energy efficiency plan
over the next |0 years, with FY2021 as base year for comparison. Electricity is the major
decarbonisation target of Hong Kong according to the Climate Action Plan, the Group
implemented responsive measures with the focus on reducing electricity consumption to

cope with the local plan.

To minimize energy consumption, the Group introduced the use of high energy efficiency
equipment, including air conditioners and refrigerators with Grade | Energy Label;
Energy-saving concept for interior design of the restaurants is applied such as use of LED
light; Adding alarms and auto-closers to walk-in cooler and freezer doors; Operational
workflow is streamlined to reduce energy consumption through improved communication

and management.

The Group strives to nurture the resources saving culture at workplace and raise the
employee awareness of environmental protection. Proactive measures taken by the Group
includes encouraging staff to have green working practices, such as minimizing unnecessary

use of energy and water, switching off lights and machines when not in use.
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The Group's energy consumption performance is as follows: REFBNREREERT
Indicator BE Unit FY2022 FY2021
B 202281 F 2021 BAFF
Direct Energy BEER
— Town gas —ER MWh 132225 1,596.71
KELR
Indirect iz
— Purchased Electricity —BEMED MWh 2,086.10 242876
KR
Total Energy Consumption BREREE MWh 340835 4,025.47
KB
Intensity HE MWh/mil rev [5.71 18.50
R,/
BEBTRA
Water management KEREE

The bill of water consumption of the Group's offices is included in the property HRAEERAERAKEREEBEEYME

management fee, the water consumption from our office is therefore not included in BEREARN  ANARE HE8RERWRS
this ESG Report. Regardless of limited water consumption, we still promote behavioural MAMARERKE - BREAKEAR - &M
changes at the office and encourage water conservation. Pantry and toilets are posted MHERREHETRNE RZBELAK -
with environmental messages to remind the employees of water conservation, which R MEZKE KA FERMIRRER @ 12E2
results in enhancing our employees’ awareness of water conservation. EEEHAK  HMRESEENEKER

Due to the Group's business nature and geographical region which our operation is mainly HRAASENZEBHME - BRMEHHIEM
based in Hong Kong, the issue of sourcing water that is fit for purpose is not relevant to B X 2 A E S » BUERKEUE B /KR HEHE
the Group. REEER -
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Use of Packaging Materials

The group consumed significant amount of packaging materials such as takeaway boxes
and plastic bags, mainly attributed to the takeaway service in the restaurant operations, to
ensure food hygiene and food quality. During past few years, temporary dine-in ban was
imposed by the Hong Kong Government due to COVID-19, which increases the demand

for takeaway service and consumption of packaging materials.

To cope with this issue, the Group set out guidelines to employees for minimizing usage
and put recycling and reuse practice in place. The Group started to consume recyclable
and biodegradable packaging materials, to lessen the impacts and pressure on the natural

environment.

The disclosure of actual amount of packing materials is not available for the Reporting
Period due to fluctuation in demand of packaging materials. The Group will disclose the

information when packaging materials data collection system is ready in the future.

Impact on the Environment and Natural Resources

The Group pursues the best practices in environment protection. Sourcing top quality
food ingredients globally is an important step for offering luxury dining experience to
customers. Excessive plantation and resources exhaustion will cause negative impacts
on the planet. The Group formulated procurement manual to procurement team, as a
guidance to source ingredients from sustainable sources including Marine Stewardship

Council (MSC) certified, or those that are organically farmed.

The Group has participated in donation to “Zero Foodprint” which turning the
atmospheric carbon into healthy soil carbon through different farm projects. According
to Zero Foodprint, “Scientists has confirmed that 1% is enough for soil to save the world
from climate change”. Through different farm projects, carbon emission is put down to

the soil and reduce the impact of climate change.
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Indoor air quality in our restaurant is regularly monitored and measured. By conducting
regular cleaning of the air conditioning system, we managed to maintain good indoor air

quality and filter out pollutants, contaminants, and dust particles.

Climate Change

Business nature of the Group, F&B operation, is largely related to climate change as
quality food supply is an essential part in delivering luxury dining experience to customers.
To ensure sustainable development of the Group, climate-related risk identification and
assessment are conducted. In accordance with the reporting framework developed
by the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"), there are two
major categories of climate-related risks, physical and transition risks. The Group has

implemented risk management exercise in identifying and mitigating climate-related risks.

Physical risk

It is expected that global warming and extreme weather includes drought, flooding, and
continuous rise of temperature, which will reduce vegetables and livestock supply. Increase
in cost of food is expected due to decrease in food supply caused by climate change,

which in terms reducing the revenue to the Group.

Climate change also limits the choices and quality of food ingredients due to poor harvest
under unanticipated natural hazards, which places restriction on innovation of menu design
and choices of ingredients used. Transportation of food supply is also heavily affected by
extreme weather. Delivery of specific ingredients will be blocked by flooding, implying
that there is a challenge to the Group on the launch of seasonal menu promotion, which

requires specific seasonal ingredients.

BIR - HERERHE
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Transitional risk

The Group identified market risk of unstable food supply and lower food quality caused
by climate change. Global warming will cause a change in pattern of precipitation event,
micro-climate, biodiversity, and gradual increase of temperature, which is changing the
ecosystem and food chain, such as, warming New England are contributing to shifting
lobster populations, Pacific salmon are changing their migration behaviours, the grapes ad
growing season in California wine country are being impacted and shortage of coffee over

the next few decades. The Group revenue could be adversely affected by transitional risk.

According to the United Nations, the food sector accounts for around 30% of world total
energy consumption and for around 22% total greenhouse gas emissions. Restaurants will
inevitably be impacted by vigorous fluctuations in energy prices. The future uncertainty of

carbon tax that may also be a transition risk.

Opportunities due to climate changes

The Group understands the significant impacts of global warming on the Group through
risk identification, it is believed that climate-related risks can be mitigated, through

incorporating ESG considerations into strategy development.

Sustainable sourcing is implemented to reduce pressure on the environment, the Group
purchases Marine Steward Council (MSC) certified ocean products, and sustainable meat
sources globally from suppliers which put ESG issues at top priority. Procurement team
does not only conduct sourcing in other countries, but also sourcing high-quality food

ingredients locally, to reduce air and GHG emissions released by transportation.

Sourcing locally also ascertains the delivery of ingredients and reduces pressure on food

supply, smoothen seasonal menu launch.
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The Group strives to tum risks into opportunities, analysis on dining and drinking habits
are carried out to mitigate market risk. Change of customers’ dining habit is identified,
the Group decided to widen its customer base through menu enhancement. New menu
design caters for clientele with different dining habits, by offering a wider variety of cuisine.
Besides, procurement team will keep looking for sources of fresh ingredients to minimize

procurement difficulty.

Technological innovation is introduced. The Group invested in IT system upgrade to
streamline its workflow. Efficiency and productivity of day-to-day operation is improved

resulting in a reduction in operating cost from the use of natural resources.

The Group will keep on identifying climate-related risks and opportunities and its influence
on operational and financial retum. It is predicted that investment in technology and widen
targeted group will improve operational efficiency and minimize operational cost for

revenue growth in the future.

SOCIAL

Employment

Employees are the largest and most important asset of the Group. Our excellence in
human resources is our core competitive advantage. We have established relevant
policies to fulfil our vision of people-oriented management to realise the full potential
of the employees. Human resources managing procedures are formally documented in
the Employee Handbook, covering resources planning, performance evaluation, training,

recruitment, resignation, transfer, remuneration and welfare, etc.

Fair employment with competitive packages is offered for talent acquisition. Prosperous
career development is offered to employees for building up employee loyalty and
encouraging their involvement in the Group's success. Every employee is treated as equal
with no discrimination. Equal opportunities are offered to all employees regardless of
their gender, age, pregnancy, marital status, disability, family status, race, etc. Performance
evaluation mechanism is established, to ensure employee contribution is recognised with
a fair judgement. Appraisal is conducted annually as an evaluation tool for reward and
employee promotion. The Group has no tolerance on unfair dismissals and makes sure

the dismissal procedure is fair and open.
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Rk HERERRE

By Gender
gkl E iy

Female

ziE
52%

Male

=]
73

48%

By Age Group
BREREE D

56 or above

S6m A Lk
[1%

15-25 years old
15-255%

46-55 years old 18%
46-558%

15%

36-45 years old
36-45
23%

26-35 years old
26-355%
33%

By Employee Category
BETERES

Middle Management

FREEAE
7%

Senior Management
BREBAR
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Others
Hith
35%

49%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with
employment and labour practices related laws and regulations that would have a significant
adverse impact on the Group. The Group has complied, including but not limited to
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Minimum Wage
Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 388 employees, with an annual

turnover rate of 56%.

Summary of employment structure is represented as below.

R HERERBRE

HEHE  ARBL T ANBENEUAEE
ELEBATNEENBEERERERSTE
RERERRERNER - ARECET (2
REARR)BBEHES7EREGED) K
BEREDIF 0B E(RETE KD -

HZE02F 128318 - KREBLF38LE
B FEEBIRARAS%-

T RERREL -

Number of Employees  Percentage of employee

Category 5 (“FY2022")  breakdown (“FY2022")
EEAE EEA7 LA
(1202281 % 1) (12022815 1)
Total number of employees EE®E 388 100%
By Gender RMERIE S
Male St 188 48%
Female pegd 200 52%
Total #Et 388 100%
By Employment Type ZERERES
Full-time 28 252 66%
Part-time B 136 34%
Total s 388 100%
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BRI HEREBRE

Number of Employees

Percentage of employee

Category 5l (“FY2022")  breakdown (“FY2022”)
BEEAY EESHD LA
(M2022815 1) (M02281% )
By Age Group REREES
15-25 years old 15-255% 68 18%
26-35 years old 26-355% 129 33%
36-45 years old 36-455% 90 23%
46-55 years old 46-555% 59 15%
56 or above 567% 3 A £ 4 1%
Total 85t 388 100%
By Geographic Region Rt EE S
Hong Kong 5 240 62%
Others Hit 148 38%
Total 5t 388 100%
By Employee Category RETEHES
Senior Management =RREEAE 36 9%
Middle Management FREEAR 29 7%
Frontline and other staff AR EMET 187 49%
Others it 136 35%
Total 5t 388 100%
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Details of employee turnover rates is as below. ToIREERKAEFE

Indicators EE FY2022 FY2021
20228 2021 BH4E

By Age Group REREES

18-25 18-255% 53% 92%

26-35 26-355% 75% 76%

36-45 36-455% 57% 43%

46-55 46-5575%, 36% 48%

56 or above 5673 A £ 33% 29%

By Gender EMRIE S

Male St 64% 69%

Female it 50% 54%

By Geographic Region ZitEE S

Hong Kong B 48% 63%

Others Hit 70% 63%

Health and Safety RERZZ

The Group is highly aware of occupational health and safety of employees at restaurant EREBME  FAEBREEREELEET

operations due to its business nature. Providing a safe working environment to employees BEEMNBERELRZE - REBRHEZEHN

is always at our top priority. Health and Safety at Work Policy has been set out by the TEBRBE-BEREMNEEEH - AEET

Group, to provide guidelines and raise the safety awareness of employees, particularly for & T LIER2R R T2 HR - NIRHE5| 112
the F&B operation. AEENLZZ2EHR  HEREBMEERN
It

Staff are encouraged to report accidents through internal reporting system, cases will be KMBBEESERANBREZREZMEN
assigned to relevant departments and handled promptly according to the Group standard BRABAE S EERBHFINRENEER
procedure. Health and Safety Committee has been set up to oversee occupational ERFREEE - ZAEKIBRERLZ2E
risks, organising regular meetings with operations teams to facilitate communication and Bg NERBERR THHRELEHES
strengthen the understandings of their concerns in relation to work environment. EVABER R - THRREHTERENEY) -
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Employees are required to attend health and safety training to minimize work injury and
severe cases, training content includes first aid, fire evacuation and other emergency

procedures during initial training and refresher programs on a regular basis.

During the Reporting Period, the Group endeavours to minimize work-related risks and
did not identify any material non-compliance regarding occupational safety and health-
related laws and regulations,, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and

Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Law of Hong Kong).

In FY2022, the Group recorded 36 lost days due to work injury and zero case of fatality.
There is a significant improvement in the reduction of fatality cases, with 8 cases last years

and zero cases in FY2022, which is contributed by the efficient health and safety measures.

B EBAN AR KEEREBRETHL M
@RRkZ2EI - KEKRERD THRE
BER  BIATBRESM  EHRHMLE
R o

VREH AEEBORNEARERD TE
HERR AU EZRETAEEERBEL
2RRERBZZER (BRETNRRES
EDISE509 B (R % 2 MR BE)D) BER ©

202814 - AEEETEER36ARER
THER - BRZRERNBEMZ2ERE - K
ERERIRTERFEARGEERS &
FH8H - M0 HFHEH -

Fiscal Year Unit FY 2022 FY2021 FY2020
BREE By 202 F B 2021 FEIE 2020 BAEF
Fatalities due to work Cases 0 8 3
NI (EES

Lost days due to work injury Days 36 333 59
AT GEARE X

COVID-19 Preventive Measures

To combat COVID-19 to ensure a safety workplace to employees, employees are
required to wear surgical masks when entering shops and any of the Group premises;
Rapid test must be conducted every day for office staff, while restaurants staff must take

preventive measures according to regulatory requirements.

Training and Development

Delivering excellent and professional service standard is one of the successful elements.

To ensure employees are equipped with sufficient knowledge in the F&B operation and

customer service industry, different training programs are assigned to staff, to assure

service quality of the Group.
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To maximize resource allocation and efficiency, role-specific-trainings are provided to
employees working at different sections of the restaurants’ operation. Training topics
includes food preparation and preservation, customer services, quality control and various
dietary requirements, etc. Staff are equipped with professional knowledge that is required
for their job positions, to avoid resources misallocation. The Group strives to allocate
training resources to employees, ensuring staff are equipped with adequate knowledge by

participating in orientation training and ongoing trainings.

The Group emphasizes career advancement of employees, ensuring staff are enriched with
adequate knowledge for their job tasks through orientation trainings and ongoing trainings
provided by the Group. All employees have been enrolled in 4 hours orientation training
on the first day at work. Ongoing internal training will be provided to every employee,

external trainings will be arranged if required.

During the reporting period, the Group encountered difficulty in arranging external
trainings under COVID-19 pandemic at restaurant venue. Some employees also have
working-at-home arrangement. There is no detail of training hours recorded. The training

record will be gathered once there is relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions.

Labour Practice

The Group is devoted to operating in full compliance with labour regulations, with zero
tolerance to child labour and forced labour employment within its business operation.

Multiple control measures have been implemented.

Responsive measures such as background checks and identity verification have been
implemented in the recruitment process, to ensure all employment contracts meet the

regulatory standard.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any material non-compliance
with child and forced labour-related laws and regulations, including but not limited to

Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Supply Chain Management

Achieving high level of service and sourcing quality food for safe consumption is one
of the Group's ultimate goals. The Group requires its suppliers to deliver services or
products meeting our quality standards. The Group has established a supply chain
management system, offering suppliers engagement policies to procurement department
for supplier engagement process. The designated procurement staffs are responsible for
supplier selection, monitoring and reviewing, ensuring the efficiency of the supply chain

management.

For supplier selection process, the Group shall only purchase from pre-approved suppliers
who have passed the Group's assessments. Suppliers with relevant certificates or those
which meet specific food standards, will be prioritised for engaging in business relationship
with the Group. The Group also conducts supplier training and capacity building activities
to strengthen the communication with suppliers. Reputation of suppliers is also one of the
important selection criteria. Due to food variety. each restaurant outlet may also have its
own assessment for the suppliers. The Group will normally choose the one with highest
reputation in industry. Chef also shares the responsibility of quality procurement and
responsible for checking the ingredients during food preparation procedure. The Group
only serves food that passed the selection process and checked by the Chef. Food supply
that could not obtain a pass grade of the Group are returned to suppliers and will affect

the suppliers’ rating in our system.

The Group understands that delivering consistent food quality to avoid customers
disappointment is essential. Regular meetings and performance reviews with suppliers are
conducted for food quality assurance and performance review. Suppliers who fail to fulfil

the quality standard of the Group, would be removed from the supplier list.

During the reporting period, the Group has removed 60 suppliers as fail to meet the
Group's standards and replaced with 49 new suppliers which meet the standard of the

Group.
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Summary of Supplier List for FY2022 is shown as below:

BIR - HERERHE

20028 UL ER B EM AT

Total number of suppliers Regions Number of removed suppliers Number of newly added suppliers
HERAR & BARORERHE MBRERYE
296 Hong Kong 60 49
B
Green Procurement HRETE

The Group implements green procurement to protect the environment and conserves
natural resources for sustainability enhancement. To ensure marine ecosystem is
conserved and avoid marine resources being exhausted, the Group purchases from
sustainable sources whenever possible, such as Marine Steward Council (MSC) certified
ocean products and sustainable meat sources around the globe. Continuous cooperation
with local farms to secure a sustainable and stable supply of safe and fresh ingredients.
The Group supports responsible farming practices, by purchasing local, sustainable, and
humanely produced products. Sourcing locally to reduce air and GHG emission generated
by vehicles consumption. Ongoing effort will be placed to develop sustainable food
chain by the Group, by taking consideration of ESG issues into procurement process.
Maintaining a healthy and balanced biodiversity through sustainable consumption of natural

resources.

Product Responsibility

Dining Experience

The Group is committed to provide a memorable dining experience to valued customers,
with high quality food and professional service are delivered. To understand the shift in
diners” expectations and innovation, the Group consistently communicates with valued
customers for their preference and special dietary requirements relating to allergies,
religion and beliefs, etc. This information is useful for designing new menus, which cater for

a larger potential customer base.
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BRI - 4B RERERE

To ensure our service quality, employees are provided with professional trainings, to
ensure they are qualified to deliver excellent service and deal with queries in professional
manner. The Group offers guidance to staff for handling guest complaints. Customer
complaints are to be handled in a systematic approach. All customer complaints must be
handled by a senior staff or restaurant manager. All major customer complaints must be

reported to the Operations Directors.

Customer Safety and Food Hygiene

To maintain food hygiene and safety is the highest priority of the Group's business
strategy. The Group strictly complied with all food safety-related regulations, including
but not limited to Cap. 612 Food Safety Ordinance in Hong Kong. Internal control and
risk management system are implemented to maintain high standard of food hygiene.
Employees are provided with food safety and internal control guideline for food

preparation and food handling to mitigate food safety risks.

To maintain cleanliness in food preparation. The Group implemented comprehensive

measures regarding food safety and quality control, including but not limited to the

following;
. Cleaning of food preparation equipment frequently
. Cleaning schedules are established to ensure regular cleaning of freezers, ovens,

stoves, microwaves, chopping boards and knives.

. Staff are required to have the highest standard of personal hygiene such as hand

washing and using disposable glove for food preparation.

. Freezer storage and temperature are set as correct temperature to avoid food

contamination and food poisoning.

. Hot food must be held at optimum temperature during transfer, display & service.

. Ensure quality and hygienic source of food ingredients such as using portable water

for ice making, using pasteurised egg for dressing preparation, etc.
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To prevent the spread of COVID-19 at operational level, additional precautionary
measures have been taken to mitigate the risk of infection for diners. The F&B department
increases the frequency of disinfecting the restaurants, provides protective equipment such
as protective masks and hand sanitisers to employees to prevent virus transmission. Diners

are provided with mask holders to avoid infection of COVID-19.

During the Reporting Period, no material products and service-related complaints were
received. No recalled cases of products sold or delivered due to health and safety reasons

have been recorded.

Technology Innovation

The Group invested in technology innovation to streamline the restaurants’ operation
and improve operational efficiency. Due to COVID-19 pandemic and economic instability
that spilled into 2022, the Group has developed online ordering system and engaged
in delivery Apps service, marketing digitally at different social media platforms, and

accelerating digitalization on every step of our operations.

Advertising and Menu Setting

The Group carefully selects marketing materials published to the public, to avoid
exaggeration of products description. Responsible content of marketing materials is in
practice within the Group to comply with relevant regulations, including but not limited
to the Trade Description Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During
the Reporting Period, the Group does not identify any material non-compliance with

advertising and labelling-related laws and regulations.
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BRI - 4B RERERE

Customer Data Privacy

The Group respects customer data privacy and complies with relevant data privacy
regulations, including but not limited to Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (chapter 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “PDPQ"), regarding data collection, data processing, use
of personal data and data storage. Data collected will only be used for the stated purpose
and information will be kept confidentially. Employees acknowledged that they should
keep customers data confidential during the business process, with reference to relevant
terms and conditions set out in employment contract and interal policies. Employees are
not allowed to disclose confidential data to any third party, breach of such policies may
result in termination of employment without prior notice. During the reporting period, the

Group did not record any non-compliance with the PDPO.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group respects intellectual property rights and set out the Intellectual Property
policy to comply with relevant regulation, including but not limited to Cap. 528 Copyright
Ordinance. Intellectual Property Rights includes but not limited to patents, rights to
inventions, copyright and related rights, trademarks, trade names and domain names. The
Group will seek for the approval from the inventor or creator for using their ideas, work
or trademarks which are covered by the IP Rights. Intellectual Property Rights is included
in the employment contract. Employee should comply with the regulations. During the
Year, the Group did not record any material non-compliance with intellectual property

issues.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is determined to promote a culture of top-level commitment on adopting
ethical and anti-corruption business practice, maintaining high standard of integrity and

zero tolerance to corruption. Anti-corruption policy has been formulated to comply the

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap.201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “POBQO").
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In respect of the policy, clear guidelines of supplier due diligence, segregation of duties,
declaration of conflict of interest are executed with proper record keeping. The employee
handbook clearly states the employees code of conduct, including the responsibility of
employees and misconducts such as bribery, kickbacks or accepting any advantage from
any person, company, or organisation having business dealings with the Group, or any

subordinate, are forbidden.

There were no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the

Group or its employees during the Reporting Period.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest standards of openness,
probity, and accountability. As such, the Group set out Whistle-blowing policy to
encourage employees reporting suspicious cases of misconducts, to prevent harms to the

Group or third parties.

This policy is intended to cover serious concems that could have an impact on the Group,
including but not limited to the breach of rules of conduct, polices or internal controls of
the Group; breach of legal or regulatory requirements; malpractice, fraud and corruption,

and miscarriage of justice.

Identity of whistle blowers will be kept confidential. Reports and complaints received
will be handled in a prompt and fair manner. The Group will conduct investigation for
reported cases, which will be diverted to relevant regulators or authorises if needed. Such
policy also aims at protecting whistle-blowers from unfair dismissal, victimisation, and

unwarranted disciplinary actions.
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Anti-Corruption training

The Group strives to enhance employee awareness of anti-corruption, regular trainings
are provided to staff. The Group has regularly invited Independent Commission Against
Corruption (“ICAC") to deliver anti-bribery talks to the Group employees, to strengthen
the employee compliance awareness. During the Year, Directors have also enrolled |
hour of anti-corruption training. The awareness on anti-corruption of the Group has been

enhanced.
Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group gives back to the community through
different voluntary projects. To enhance social harmony and strengthen social tie with the
community, ongoing effort has been contributed by the Group. Currently 1% revenue
from Ando, Estro and MONO is donated to “Zero Foodprint”, which is an NGO running
different farm projects, it aims to achieve carbon neutral by putting the bad atmospheric

carbon back to soil and help combat global warming.

The Group also encourages employees to participate in voluntary projects through
donations and community services during their leisure time. We keep on seeking ways for
community investments and improving communication with stakeholders for their goals

and needs, to achieve better resources allocation.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEERE

The Directors hereby present their report together with the audited consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal

activities of the Group is the operation of restaurants in Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out on pages
125 to 127 of this report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years is set out on pages 242 to 244 of this report.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Use of Proceeds from Placing of New Shares
under General Mandate” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group had no

definite future plans for material investments and capital assets.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year

ended 3| December 2022 are set out in note |7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group at 3| December 2022 are set out in note 28 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended 3|

December 2022 are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company are set out in note 37 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not have any reserves available for
distribution to owners (2021: approximately HK$2.6 million available for distribution to

owners).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company repurchased a total of 6,410,000 shares of the Company at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$69 1,000, during the year ended 31 December 2021,
in which 5,000,000 shares was cancelled during the year ended 3| December 2021, while
the remaining 1,210,000 shares and 200,000 shares were cancelled on 10 January 2022
and |3 May 2022 respectively.

Following the cancellation of shares, the issued capital of the Company was |,159,780,000
shares. Except as disclosed herein, the Directors confirm that during the year under
review, there has been no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's listed securities
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Pui Yain
Ms. WAN Suet Yee Cherry

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Devin Nijanthan CHANMUGAM
Mr. LEUNG Yuk Lun Ulric
Mr. WEE Keng Hiong Tony

Pursuant to article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least one-
third of the Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam and Mr. Leung Yuk Lun, Ulric shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given the Company an annual

confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The

Company considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

and meet the independent guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

(@)

Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a renewal service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 January 2021
(subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the relevant service
contract), which may be terminated by not less than one month's notice served by
either party on the other. The appointments are subject to the provisions of the
Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and removal and retirement

by rotation of Directors.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a period of three years commencing from 23
January 2021 (subject to termination in certain circumstances as stipulated in the
relevant letter of appointment), which may be terminated by not less than one
month’s notice served by either party on the other. The appointments are subject
to the provisions of the Articles with regard to vacation of office of Directors and
removal and retirement by rotation of Directors. Save for the directors' fee, none
of the independent non-executive Directors is expected to receive any other
remuneration for holding their office as an independent non-executive Director

and a member of any board committees of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no Director has entered into any service agreement with any

member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The emoluments of the Directors is recommended by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the benchmarking of the market. The Company also looks at individual
Director's competence, duties, responsibilities and performance.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 24 to 29 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or an entity connected with any
of them had any material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, parent company or subsidiaries of the parent
company was a party and subsisting at any time during or at the end of the year ended 3|
December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, no contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the Company or

any of their subsidiaries.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT
SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme" in this report, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that enables the
Directors or chief executive of the Company (including their spouses or children under
18 years of age) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its specified undertakings as defined in the Companies (Report of the Board of Directors)
Regulation or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Company did not enter into or have any management
and/or administration contracts in respect of the whole or any principal business of the

Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Directors are not aware of any business and interest of the Directors nor the
controlling shareholders of the Company nor any of their respective close associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the
Group and any other conflict of interests which any such person has or may have with the

Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Ms. Wong Pui Yain and Giant Mind International Limited (“Giant Mind") (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition dated 23 January 2018 (the
"Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the Company (for itself and each of its
subsidiaries), pursuant to which each of the Controlling Shareholders has, unconditionally
and irrevocably, undertaken to the Company in the Deed of Non-Competition that she/
it will not, and will procure her/its close associates (other than members of the Group)
not to, for herself/itself or jointly with or acting for any other person, firm or company as
shareholder(s), director(s), partner(s), agent(s), employee(s) or otherwise, and whether
or not for profit, remuneration or other purpose, directly or indirectly be involved or
engaged in or undertake any business (other than the business of the Group) that directly
or indirectly competes, or may compete, with the Group's business or undertaking
(the “Restricted Activity”), or hold shares or interest in any companies or business that
compete directly or indirectly with the business engaged by the Group from time to
time except where the Controlling Shareholders and/or her/its close associates hold less
than 5% of the total issued shares of any company (whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange or other stock exchange) which is engaged in any business that is or may be in
competition with any business engaged by any member of the Group and they do not

control 109% or more of the composition of the board of directors of such company.
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Further, each of the Group's Controlling Shareholders has undertaken that if any new
business investment or other business opportunity relating to the Restricted Activity (the
“Competing Business Opportunity”) is identified by or made available to her/it or any
of herlits close associates, she/it shall, and shall procure that her/its close associates shall,

refer such Competing Business Opportunity to the Company on a timely basis.

For further details of the Deed of Non-Competition, please refer to the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Non-competition undertaking and

corporate governance measures to manage conflicts of interests” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company of her/its compliance
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up
to the date of this report. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition have been complied by each of the Controlling Shareholders during the year

ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

a) Interests and short positions of Directors and chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated

corporations

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO™) as (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which the Directors and chief executives of the Company were taken or deemed
to have pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO), (ii) recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by directors of listed issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

EEERE

peoh o AEBEERBE RO A - WESHE
ERETHEA B RESEAEBZ RS
XBOMEBRESEMGRBHE ([HFXE
BEE]) ERREREEEETBREAR
BAARBHENBRRT XHHE -

BETHFRENE-SHE  F2HAER
B[ EERRROBE - THIAERERE
MaEBROEERE R

FEEBRBRREAARABDERERNEZ2002F
12A3IBIEFEREEARREBHETIE
FRE - BUFRTESEERHEOBR
VRS ERBRFEREZ202F12A31H1E
FEREZAREAHETIHFRLEET
R HG o

ESHEHE

2) EBERBETHRAESRAAARLES
EENRE - ERROREERNERS
R%R

R20202%F 128318 ARAEE KK
BITBRABRAD RIS EREEE (B
EREBEDIESTI EELRPEED
(IEBHREEED))EXVED) BkH -
RN SERZT - #E()REES
REEGHIEXVEET RS D EEME
ARB MBI ER KA (BER
BEAFRPERAEXVIETRSDE
BEEIRBARARNEERESTTH
ABBEBHERZRAR) « (iVRARE
EHE NGO FEIS2EBEENER
A ER kAR - (i) RIEGEM L
MR AIES A6 E5.67 FFTHLA ET ST
ABZETRINATEESTHER
RAIRBRETHER AR T -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 &% | 99



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEERE
(i) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company ()  RERGRGRIEERGHETE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Equity derivatives capital of
Capacity in which Interests in ~ (share options) the Company
Name of Director interests are held Shares (Note 3) Total interests (Note 1)
RAESTEIA EARFCERST
(R RRHE) N EER o d
EBps BEERZED RRf8ER (M&E3) ERAHE (M)
Ms. Wong Pui Yain (Note 2) Interest in 409,670,000 (L) 536,346,000 46.25%
BETL(T2) a controlled
corporation
RiEH B ER
Beneficial owner 79,766,000 (L) 1,850,000 (L)
ESfBA
Interest of spouse 44,510,000 (L) 550,000 (L)
R
Ms. Wan Suet Yee Cherry Beneficial owner 1,850,000 (L) 1,850,000 (L) 0.16%
BEEXL ESHAA
Mr. Leung Yuk Lun Ulric Beneficial owner 750,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 0.06%
REBRE ESfBA
Mr. Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam Beneficial owner 750,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 0.06%
Devin Nijanthan Chanmugam %4 EaBA
Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony (Note 4) Beneficial owner 1,000,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 750,000 (L) 0.15%
Wee Keng Hiong Tony e (FitsE4)  BE&EAA
(L) denotes long position L  E®TRHE
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As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company is
1,159,780,000 shares.

Ms. Wong Pui Yain was interested in a total of 536,346,000 Shares, of which
her interest in (i) 79,766,000 Shares was held in her capacity as beneficial
owner; (i) 409,670,000 Shares was held through her controlling corporation,
Giant Mind, in which she is the sole legal and beneficial owner, in which she
is deemed to be interested under Part XV of the SFO; (iii) 1,850,000 Shares
relate to Shares which may be issued pursuant to options granted to her
under the Share Option Scheme; and (iv) 44,510,000 Shares and 550,000
Shares relate to Shares which may be issued pursuant to options granted
pursuant to Share Option Scheme held by her spouse, Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan,
which is deemed to be interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

Such interests relate to Share which may be issued pursuant to options

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Wee Keng Hiong Tony, was interested in a total of 1,750,000 Shares, of
which his interest is (i) 1,000,000 Shares was held in his capacity as beneficial
owner; and (ii) 750,000 Shares relate to Shares which may be issued pursuant

to options granted to him under the Share Option Scheme.
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares in associated

corporation of the Company

(i)  RERAEHZERGREEK
HHILFE

Name of

associated Number of Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity shares shareholding
EEns B EE A g% BHEE BRESH
Ms. Wong Pui Yain Giant Mind (Note) Beneficial owner 1,000 (Note) 100%
=2MEZ L Giant Mind (PiizE) BESBBA 1,000 (FifzE) 100%
Note: BisE

Giant Mind held 409,670,000 Shares, representing approximately 35.32% shareholding

in the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or the
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and/or short positions which the Directors or the chief
executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO); (i) recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or (iii) otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by directors of listed
issuer as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Interests and short positions of the substantial shareholders and other persons

in shares and underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, so far as it is known to the Directors, the following
persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had or were
deemed to have interests or short positions in Shares or underlying Shares which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, or which would fall to be disclosed under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO:

(i) Long positions in Shares

EEERE

TERRRHEMALREADTRG KA
BRONERRAR

M002F 1 A318  RESHA - LT
AT (WFARBRESLARRTHRAR)
RO IARERD P EBE SR AES
TARRAREES KBEEHIF336
GEBENEZMALREES EE
EHIEXVEHELRINBIEBETHER
MERSAR

()  REGHEFE

Number of Approximately
Capacity/ Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Interested Shareholding
fifs/ BAER
BR#E/£B 5t/ ERtE KoEE BasRaEt
Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan (Note 2) Beneficial owner 45,060,000 (L) 46.25%
B E () B
Interest of spouse 491,286,000 (L)
B
Giant Mind (Note 3) (Fff#£3) Beneficial owner 409,670,000 (L) 3532%
Es5HAA
Mr. Ko Kin Hang (Note 4) Beneficial owner 64,990,000 (L) 5.57%
BRITEE(HE4) EEHAA

L) denotes long position

L) RREgE

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 %% | 103



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

Notes:

As at 31 December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company is
[,159,780,000 Shares.

2. Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan was interested in a total of 536,346,000 Shares, of
which his interest in (i) 44,510,000 Shares was held in his capacity as beneficial
owner, (i) 491,286,000 Shares relate to Shares held by his spouse, Ms. Wong
Pui Yain, which he is deemed to be interested in under Part XV of the SFO;
and (iii) 550,000 Shares relate to Shares which may be issued pursuant to
options granted to him under the Share Option Scheme.

3. Giant Mind is a controlled corporation owned as to 100% by Ms. Wong Pui
Yain, the controlling shareholder of the Company and a Director.

4. 64,999,000 Shares were owned by Mr. Ko in his personal capacity.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors have not been
notified by any person who had interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or which fall to be disclosed under the provision of

Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the Share Option
Scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the Shareholders passed
on 23 January 2018. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the

provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to

shareholders. The Board may offer to grant an option to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who is an
officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Employee”); (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates (“Secondee™);
(3) any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or
any of its affiliates; or (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof (collectively
the “Eligible Person”); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible Person or his or her
immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible Person or his or her

immediate family members.

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No
option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this will result in the limit
being exceeded. The maximum number of shares that may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the shares in issue following the
completion of the capitalisation issue and the share offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares. As at
the date of this annual report, a total of 86,000,000 shares, representing 7.42% of the

Company's issued shares, were available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.
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No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted and
to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date of the latest grant
exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time. Any further grant
of options to a participant in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval by
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such participant and his/her
close associates (or associates if the participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting. Prior to seeking such approval, the Company shall issue a circular containing such

information as required by the GEM Listing Rules to the shareholders of the Company.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. The Board may, in its discretion, determine the vesting period
of options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Participants of the Share Option
Scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0 upon acceptance of the grant 28 days
from the date of the option offer (or such period as the Board may specify in writing).
The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and

shall not be less than whichever is the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets

on the offer date;

(b)  the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation

sheets for the five Business Days immediately preceding the offer date; or
()  the nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8

February 2018, after which no further options will be granted or offered.

On I'l January 2021, 3,750,000 share options were granted to the executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors, employees and consultants of the Group,
respectively, in order to reward the Directors, employees and consultants for the
development of the Group. These share options have an exercise price of HK$0.13 per
share and an exercise period ranging from || January 2021 to 10 January 2024. The
closing price of the Company's shares at the date of grant was HK$0.122.
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On 19 January 2022, 7,600,000 share options were granted to executive Directors,

independent non-executive Directors, employees and consultants of the Group, in order

to reward the Directors, employees and consultants for the development of the Group.

The exercise price of these share options is HK$0.10 per share and shall be exercisable

from 19 January 2022 to 18 January 2032. The closing price of the Company's shares at

the date of grant was HK$0.089.

Movement of Share Options during the year under Review

Particulars of share options under the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option(s)")

outstanding at the financial year ended 31 December, 2022 and the Share Options

granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the financial year ended 2022 are as follows:
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Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balanceasat  immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price  Balanceas at Cancelled/ 31 December  before date of date
Grantee Date of grant period per Shares | January2022  Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2022 grant (Note 4)
SR1TEE rmE RE ROKERENH
HK$  Runf Bi#/ AR RLEMA  SRER
ARA R AH T8 Bn |BIBM&ER  cRY  Bff P MEs  NERER GET)
Directors
£
Wong Pui Yain 11012021 11012021 - 0.13 850,000 - - 850,000 0.121 N/A
&A 10012024 FER
(Note 284)
(W2 R4)
19012022 1901.2022 - 0.10 - 1,000000 - - 1,000,000 0093 N/A
18012032 (Note 7) (Note 8) TER
(Note 384) (FtzE7) (FtzEs)
(MeE3R4)
Subtotal 3T 850,000 1,000,000 1,850,000
Wan Suet Yee 11012021 11012021 - 0.13 850,000 - - 850,000 0.121 N/A
Cherry 1001.2024 TR
BEE (Note 284)
(M2 R4)
19012022 19012022 - 0.10 - 1,000000 - - 1,000,000 0093 N/A
18012032 (Note 7) (Note 8) TR
(Note 384) (Ft&E7) (FtzEs)
(M3 R4)
Subtotal i 850,000 1,000,000 1,850,000
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Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balanceasat  immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price  Balance asat Cancelled/ 31 December  before date of date
Grantee Date of grant period per Shares | January 2022 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2022 grant (Note 4)
BRITER JVUIES RE ROKEEN
HK§  RnE Bif#/  NANAR  REAMA  SRER
ARA RiLAA i Ar |AIBNER CRE  BRE &% NEk  HSRER (Hit4)
Leung Yuk Lun Ulric 11012021 11012021 - 0.3 350,000 - - 350,000 0.2l N/A
238 10012024 i
(Note 284)
(ME2R4)
19012022 19012022 - 0.10 - 400,000 - - 400,000 0093 N/A
1801.2032 (Note 7) (Note 8) iR
(Note 384) (B3£7) (fzE8)
(KizE3R4)
Sub-total 350000 400,000 750,000
Devin Nijanthan 11012021 11012021 - 0.3 350,000 - - 350,000 0.2l N/A
Chanmugam 1001.2024 Ol
(Note 284)
(M2 R4)
19012022 19012022 - 0.10 - 400000 - - 400,000 0093 N/A
1801.2032 (Note 7) (Note 8) iR
(Note 384) (Bf£7) (fifzE8)
(MEE3R4)
Sub-total N 350000 400,000 750000
Wee Keng Hiong 11012021 11012021 - 0.3 350,000 - - 350,000 0.121 N/A
Tony 10012024 NER
(Note 284)
(ME2R4)
19012022 19012022 - 0.10 - 400000 - - 400,000 0093 N/A
18012032 (Note 7) (Note 8) NER
(Note 384) (Fzx7) (Fzks)
(W3 R4)
Sub-total T 350000 400,000 750,000
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Price per Price per
share share
Exercise Balanceasat  immediately  on exercise
Exercisable price  Balance asat Cancelled/ 31 December  before date of date
Grantee Date of grant period per Shares | January 2022 Granted  Exercised Lapsed 2022 grant (Note 4)
BRITER JVUIES RE ROKEEN
Hs  Ram# Bif#/  NANAR  REAMA  SRER
ARA RiLAA i Ar |AIBNER CRE  BRE &% NEk  HSRER (Rt 4)
Employees
&8
Employees 11012021 11012021/ 0.13 500,00 - - - 500,000 0.121 N/A
[E8 100172024 i
19012022 19012022/ 0.10 - 3300000 - - 3,300,000 0093 N/A
1801.2032 iR
Sub-total 500000 3300000 3800000
Consultants
BB
Lo Yeung Kit, Alan 19012022 1901202/ 0.10 - 550000 - - 550,000 0093 N/A
(Note 5) 1801.2032 Ol
B (WD)
Leung Man Yee, 11012021 11012021/ 013 500,00 - - - 500,00 0.121 N/A
Sophia (Note ) 10012024 Ol
285 (Wito)
19012022 19012022/ 0.10 - 550000 - - 550,000 0093 N/A
1801.2032 iR
Sub-total 3t 500000 1,100,000 1,600,000
Total &3 3,750,000 7,600,000 11,350,000
Notes: FiEE
I, Asat 3| December 2022, the issued share capital of the Company is |,159,780,000 shares. l. R20202F 127318 - AREBETRAR
1,159,780, 000 {7
2. The option period of the options granted on || January 2021 shall be three years from the 2. R2021 41 A 1| B O ERE 2 FERIER
date of acceptance and the options shall be lapsed at the expiry of the option period. RepEMmBER =4 - W ERESR
JEmE R o
3. The options granted on 19 January 2022 shall be exercisable for a period of ten years 3. #2022 1 B9 AR EMBRETREE T
commencing from the last date of acceptance for the grant of share options (ie. 19 January, BREMELEBEMNBE (B202F 1 A198)
2022) and ending on 18 January, 2032. HE2032F | A18B IEHFEIRTTHE -
4. No share option had been exercised, cancelled and lapsed as at 3| December 2022. 4. R00NFNA3IE - BEERERTE 2

R
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5. Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, Alan is the consultant of the Company and spouse of Ms. Wong Pui Yain.

6. Ms. Leung Man Yee Sophia (“Ms. Leung") has been engaged by the Company to provide
advice to the chief executive officer of the Company on corporate strategy in administrative
and head office-related matters as a business consultant of the Group over the years. Ms.
Leung is independent of and not connected with the Company and its connected persons (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company. The share options were granted to Ms.
Leung (i) as part of her remuneration for services provided; and (i) with a view to further
incentivise her to provide continued services, and contribute to sustaining and improving
the organisational efficacy, performance and productivity, of the Group. The grant of the
share options constitutes reward for services rendered and will furnish her with a personal
stake in the Company. The Directors believe the grant of share options to Ms. Leung will
serve to incentivise her to remain retained with the Group and to contribute further to the
development and growth of the Group for the benefit of the Shareholders.

7. No fulfillment or vesting period condition were associated with the share options.

8. The total fair value of the share options at the grant date on 19 January 2022 was
HK$381,000 (2021: The total fair value of the share options at the grant date on | | January
2021 was HK$229,000). For details of the methodology and assumptions used in calculating
the fair value of the share options, please refer to Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

At the date of this report, the Company had | 1,350,000 options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 0.98% of the Company's
issued shares as at the date of this report. The Company had 3,750,000 and | 1,350,000
share options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as at | January 2022 and 31
December 2022 respectively.
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CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following confirmations from Directors, save
as otherwise set out in this report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(I) of the GEM Listing Rules since the
Company’s last published interim report. The change of Directors’ information as required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules is set out below:

The salary of Ms. Wong Pui Yain will be increased to HK$75,000.00 per month
with effect from | April 2023.

2. The salary of Ms. Wan Suet Yee, Cherry will be increased to HK$75,000.00 per
month with effect from | April 2023.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in the sub-section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Directors are aware, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant operator, the Group has a large and diverse customer base. There
is no customer that significantly dominates the Group'’s revenue. For the year ended
31 December 2022, purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 20.7% (2021: 24.2%) of the Group's total purchases of raw materials
and consumables. During the same year, purchases from the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 5.7% (2021: 6.8%) of the Group's total purchases of raw
materials and consumables.

Save for the purchases from related companies as set out in note 32 to the audited
consolidated financial statements, none of the Directors, their respective associates, or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any significant beneficial interest in the major
customers and suppliers disclosed above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In January 2022, Between Hong Kong Limited (“Between HK"), the then wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Share Swap Agreement with Hanneng Limited
("Hanneng™), which is wholly owned by Mr. Lo Yeung Kit, the spouse of Ms. Wong Pui
Yain (“Ms. Wong"). Prior to the Share Swap Agreement, Ever Creation Asia Investment
Limited was owned as to 40% by Hanneng and 60% by Big Team Ventures Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the Share Swap Agreement, the
Company sold its 40% interest in Between HK in exchange for Hanneng's 40% interest
in Ever Creation, which resulted in the Company holding 100% interest of Ever Creation

through Between HK (the “Previous Disposal”).

On 12 August 2022, the Vendor, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a share purchase agreement with the Purchaser, a Company wholly owned by Ms. Wong
Pui Yain, pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchase
has conditionally agreed to purchase 41 issued shares of Between HK at a consideration
of HK$2,721,990 (the “Disposal”). After the Disposal, Between HK was owned as to 19%
by the Group and ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company.

As the Previous Disposal took place and was completed within a 12-month period, the
Previous Disposal is required to be aggregated with the Disposal as a series of transactions
pursuant to Rule 19.22 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Ms. Wong is an executive Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company. The
Purchaser is wholly-owned by Ms. Wong and is therefore an associate of Ms. Wong. As
such, the Purchaser is regarded as a connected person of the Company, and accordingly
the Disposal constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 12 August 2022 for further
details.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
Except disclosed in Management Discussion and Analysis under the headed “Significant
Investments, Material Acquisitions and Disposal of Subsidiaries”, none of such related party
transactions constitutes a connected transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual
review, announcement and/or shareholders” approval requirements under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of corporate
governance standards and will review and improve the corporate governance practices
and standards constantly.

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 58 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive or similar rights under the laws of Caymans Islands
or the Articles which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to the existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Companies Act, every Director is entitled under the Company's Articles to
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses that may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as he or she
shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty.

The Company has maintained a directors’ and officers liability insurance during the year
ended 31 December 2022. To the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance, a
directors’ liability insurance is currently in place to protect the Directors against potential
costs and liabilities arising from claims brought against the Directors.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a workforce of 388 employees (2021:
338). Total staff costs for the year ended 3| December 2022 were approximately
HK$91.9 million, as compared to the staff cost of HK$87.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms and in accordance with the
performance, qualification(s) and experience of each individual employee. Discretionary
bonuses, based on each individual's performance, are paid to employees as recognition
and in reward for their contributions. Other fringe benefits such as medical insurance,
retirement benefits and other allowances are offered to all the Group's employees.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is formulated by the Remuneration
Committee (as defined below) with reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience
and competence of individual employees. The same policy also applies to the Directors.
In addition to salaries and discretionary bonuses relating to the performance of the
Group, employee benefits included pension scheme contributions. The emoluments of
the Directors are reviewed annually by the remuneration committee of the Company

(“Remuneration Committee”).

As incentives and rewards for their contributions to the Group, the employees of the
Group and all the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) may also
be granted share options by the Company from time to time pursuant to the share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 8 February 2018.

The Group provides various training to its employees to enhance their technical skills
and knowledge relevant to the employees’ responsibilities. The Group also provides its
employees with quality control standards and work safety standards training to enhance
their safety awareness.

The employees in Hong Kong are enrolled in the Mandatory Provident Fund under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Monthly contributions are
made by the Group which are 5% of the monthly income of the employees as stipulated
under the relevant requirements (if applicable), with the maximum contributions of
HK$ 1,500 monthly.

During the year under review, the Group did not experience any strikes, work stoppages
or significant labour disputes which affected its operations in the past and it did not
experience any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining qualified staff. The Directors

consider that the Group has maintained good working relationship with its employees.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships with its key
stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, to meet its immediate
and long-term business goals. During the year ended 3| December 2022, there were no
material and significant disputes between the Group and its employees, customers and

suppliers.

The Group recognises employees as one of its valuable assets and strictly complies
with labour laws and regulations and regularly reviews its existing staff benefits for their
enhancement. Apart from reasonable remuneration packages, the Group also offers other
employee benefits, such as medical insurance. The Group provides good quality services
to its customers and keeps a database for direct communications with recurring customers
so as to develop a long-term trusted relationships. The Group also maintains effective

communication and develops long-term business relationships with its suppliers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Company as well as a discussion and analysis of the
Group's performance during the year ended 31 December 2022 and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position can be found in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section set out on pages 12 to 23 of this report. These discussions form part

of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The environmental, social and governance report, which forms part of this report, is set

out on pages 59 to 92 of this report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The forthcoming AGM of the Company will be held on 12 June 2023, the notice of which

shall be sent to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles, the

GEM Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain entitlements to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7 June 2023 to
Monday, 12 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will

be registered.
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EEEHRE

Shareholders are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 7/F, Far East Finance Centre,
|6 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 pm on Tuesday, 6 June 2023.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year have been audited by
BDO Limited who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be submitted to the AGM to re-appoint
BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Jia Group Holdings Limited

Wong Pui Yain
Chairperson

23 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVR 3 LTS

Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
|

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jia Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 125 to 241, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$23,000,000 during the financial year ended 3|
December 2022. As of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$50,741,000 and the net liabilities was HK$2,864,000. These conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concem. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the “Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have determined the matters

described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

REVENUE FROM CATERING SERVICES OF THE GROUP’S
RESTAURANT OPERATIONS

(Refer to notes 4(c) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements)

We identified revenue from catering services of the Group's restaurant operations
as a key audit matter, due to the significance of revenue from catering services of the
Group's restaurant operations to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from catering

services of the Group's restaurant operations amounted to HK$2 17,005,000.

The recording of revenue involves high volume of small amount transactions through
various systems. Any errors arising from capturing of data or interfaces of data amongst
the various systems may have significant impact on revenue. Therefore, it required

significant time and resources for the audit.

Our response:

. Obtaining an understanding of the Group's revenue recognition process and
validating the management’s key internal controls over the revenue recognition

process;

. Performing analytical procedures on revenue through comparing the actual result
of current year with that of prior year and assessing reasonableness of its trend in

relation to the Group's restaurant operation;

. Verifying the daily sales reports, cash receipts and credit card settlement on sample
basis; and
. Verifying the accuracy and completeness of the daily sales reports generated from

the back end systems on sample basis.
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IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(Refer to notes 4(e), 5, 17, 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements)

The Group had significant assets on its consolidated statement of financial position,

including property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022.

Management is required to perform an impairment assessment where indicators of
impairment are identified on these assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
these assets were allocated to cash generating units (“CGUs"), and management has
assessed the recoverable amount of these assets based on higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to appropriately identify CGUs and to determine
the key assumptions and estimations. Based on the above assessment performed, for
the year ended 31 December 2022, management concluded that impairment loss of
approximately HK$5,314,000 in respected of the Group's property, plant and equipment
and HK$3,545,000 in respect of its right-of-use assets were made.

Our response:

. Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology in respect of the

assessment of the recoverable amount;

. Assessing the appropriateness of the management's identification of CGUs based

on our understanding of the Group's business;
. Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions and estimations used; and

. Assessing the appropriateness of key input data used in the assessment of the

recoverable amount.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. The

Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of interal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

. conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lo Ngai Hang

Practising Certificate no. P04743

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023

124 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBAERA T

REEFEBNFET  BFHTHAHE
BARMBRRNEZEZMEZRNSEE - AM
BREIEEZZR BFERIEIHRETH
ML FEFER - BIDEEIOER I AFARERK
BEH (EERFLANERT  MRAE
EHMEESHRETABRFRERNA TR
REBELNLRNE - AIBFRENEE
HETEBZEE -

BERUCEREMERMERAT
HEREAD

ERfE

HEBERR : P04743

&7 - 202338231



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GoRERkEMEEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nFENA3BLEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
pixE Fib7 Fi5T
Revenue A 6 217,005 221,344
Other income HAA 8 14,422 4622
Other gains and losses HAh s & 18 9 2,163 250
Raw materials and consumables used P FRIR IR (60,672) (61,950)
Staff costs BIMA 12 (91,866) (87,104)
Depreciation nE 12 (34,250) (33212)
Property rentals and related expenses MEMRE RABRER (10,528) (8,785)
Utility expenses HERX (6,037) (5651)
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERRAY (8,705) (9,238)
Other operating expenses Hias & 10 (30,703) (28511)
Finance costs AR I (3,185) 3,151)
Share of results of associates - YNSIE 3 20 (307) -
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 13 ~ B KR BHIREEE 19 (5,314) (4,961)
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets FREEERNRERRE 19 (3,545) (2,948)
Impairment loss on amounts due JE U5 BBt 7 SRIR Y
from related parties RIEBE (887) -
Loss before taxation BT AT ES 1B 12 (22,409) (19,295)
Income tax expense iR iaha 13 (591) (1,967)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FESIE I 2 T A S 4850 (23,000) (21,262)
Loss and total comprehensive expense T AT REEFAEER
for the year attributable to PHMXEE
— Owners of the Company S YNCIE 2PN (19,744) (19,476)
— Non-controlling interests — RS (3,256) (1,786)
(23,000) (21,262)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARKEE (BL) 16 (1.70) (1.77)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
20225128318

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o3 TER TAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER T 17 20,364 30,713
Right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁé BE 8 23,675 42,442
Investments in associates REE A RIERE 20 1,317 -
Financial assets measured at fair value through BATERTETABRN
profit or loss SREE 21 3,147 3,167
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 31 2,327 1,858
Deposits ®e 22 14,107 13934
Pledged bank deposits BHEMIRITER 23 5,000 5,000
69,937 97,114
Current assets REEE
Inventories "E 24 6,283 5726
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5 KE MR IE
prepayments B RIBRAFIA 2 9,656 13,524
Financial assets measured at fair value through BATERTETABRD
profit or loss EREE 21 1,783 -
Amounts due from related companies & i B RS 2 7] 25 747 768
Amounts due from a controlling shareholder e 1% ﬁxﬁx% 25 - 608
Amounts due from associates gL /NE] IE 25 531 747
Tax recoverable A @A 279 |14
Pledged bank deposits BIEIFRITER 23 - 4,500
Bank balances and cash RITHERRE S 23 9,341 12,925
28,620 38912
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and accrued charges g5 KEMERNTIERESER 26 33,883 31,879
Contract liabilities AHAE 27 4,962 6,127
Amounts due to related companies JEE 1~ B RSE A 7] 25 2,399 2,165
Amount due to a controlling shareholder e 12 HXHX% 25 939 -
Amounts due to an associate FETE & A E] IE 25 94
Bank borrowings RITER 28 8,191 11,184
Tax payable eI TR 648 370
Lease liabilities HERRE 18 26,126 25,550
Provision B 29 2,119 -
79,361 77,275
Net current liabilities REBAETHE (50,741) (38,363)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRBAR 19,196 58,751
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e I EMRR R

AS AT 3| DECEMBER 2022

R202% 12831 H

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BisE TET FAT
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Provision B 29 2,357 4,450
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE 31 505 51
Contract liabilities BRAE 27 9,082 10,267
Lease liabilities HMEAE 18 10,116 24,231
22,060 38,999
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (2,864) 19,752
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital ¥ 30 11,598 11,612
Reserves T (8,900) 10,341
Fquity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANAFIHAB AEIEEZR 2,698 21,953
Non-controlling interests FEER R R (5,562) (2,201)
Total (deficit)/equity (B54k) B (2,864) 19,752

The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 24| were approved and authorised FESOR2023FE3 A2 B HE R IEET)REE

for issue by the board of directors on 23 March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: RESEM B2 5480 BHRE - WE T
ATRBEE
WONG PUI YAIN WAN SUET YEE CHERRY
=2WE BES
Director Director
EF =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ARGE2ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nFENA3BLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATHEARE

Capital

redemption ~ Treasury Share  Other Non-
Share  Share reserve - shares option  reserve  Accumulated controling
capital - premium (notec)  (noted) reserve  (notea) losses Toul interests Total

&

ROR% EERG Rftfe
Bx BftaR (W) (Wkd BREREE (ML)  HER & FERER  BR4E
HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000  HKS000 HKS000  HK$000 HKS000  HK§ 000

Tén  Tin Thn TR TR TEn Tén T TR TEn

At January 2021 R0IE(RIR 10319 85265 - - - 103 (80670 103 (1500  135%
Loss and total comprefensive expense ERERRERREE

forthe year - - - - - - (19476)  (19476) (I78) (21260
e ofshares (1ot b) 1A (k) 133 1478 - - - - -8 R
Repurchse of haes note 3) BERIA (R0) 6 ) 0 (4 - - - m) -
Transaction costs atirute o shere placing RORERERANE - - - - - - - (589)
Disposalldeemed disposal of partal equiy L& /BaLENIEAAL

Interest n subsidiaries without oss of control PomEmERERHE

(1ote 3) (Hir34) - - - - - - 60 0 1065 %
Fauity setled share-ased transactons IREESIRDBERARS

(1ote 40) (Hit40) - - - - 0 - - W - 0
At 31 December 2021 and | janvery 2022 M0ENRIBRE

IAIH 612 100922 Rl (149) 03 (101038 2193 Qo1 15752
Loss and ofal comprehensive expense FREERAERREE

forthe year - - - - - - (19744 (1974) (32 (3000
Cancelation ofshres repurchased (note 3) THREEARG () I I4 148 - - - - - -
Transactions with non-controling interests BRI (W)

(note 34) - - - - - - 108 108 (108) -
Disposl ofsubsicares note |4) HiEMBAT (i) - - - - - - - - 3 3
Eauity setled share-based transactons IWREESIRNBERARS

(1ote 40) (Hit40) - - - - 3l - S ] - 3l
At31 December 02 RODENR3 BER 1159 100774 Z - 60 1036 (06 6% (556) (84
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Notes:

(®)

@

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Other reserve mainly represents the aggregate amount of |) the differences between the
considerations received and the proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net
assets attributable to the relevant interests upon the deemed disposal of partial interest
in subsidiaries; 2) the differences between the considerations paid and the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the relevant interests upon
the deemed acquisition/acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries; 3) acquisition of
additional interest in a subsidiary by a controlling shareholder as deemed capital contribution;
4) reserve arising from the group reorganisation, which mainly comprises issue of shares by
Big Team Ventures Limited (“Big Team") and the Company to acquire equity interest in
subsidiaries and shareholders' loans of respective subsidiaries with an aggregate loan balance
of HK$48,330,000; 5) deemed capital contribution from shareholders through waiver of
amounts due to the then shareholders of HK$3,589,000; and 6) HK$1,825,000 upon the
waiver of inter-company loans to More Earn by group entities that caused an increase in net

assets of More Eam attributable to non-controlling interests.

On 18 June 2021, 134,280,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were
issued by placing at price of HK$0.135 per share.

The capital redemption reserve of the Company represents the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company repurchased and cancelled. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled was transferred from share premium to the capital redemption

reserve.

Treasury share represents the consideration paid for the shares repurchased by the Company

but not cancelled at the end of the reporting period.

REREBER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

HinEEEZHEUTSENEE - HERR
BRGALEHER RSN REEAEES
[EEEEFERTELANENZE B
FREEEBIRESUREENE R REMER
BREEREREGAEFEREDAELMNE
BZERE )~ BRERBRREKE BB AR
gREIMER (RIETE) ) EBEEHMES
2 #E - E2BFEBig Team Ventures Limited
([Big Team]) RAA A AU B 2 F &K
REEHBARNBRRER (BEREHA
48,330,000/ 7C) M & 1T < 5)FEBEKRIE
1 B R R SR 3,589,000 T M AR MR BE
& R6)EEERER TMore EamiEE
AR B E ZE BT R 25 B {5 More Eam
BEFER AN 8250007 °

20216 A 188 » BB EEFTHKO0.1358
TLHIBIR 3417 134,280,000 X G HZ0.0 1 75 TTHY)
AARFTLBERE

ARENBEARE FERBRREHENAR

BIRAMEE - —ERFNEHEBROHEERD
PR DR EE R EEAREOI A o

BRI ERAR R RERN & AR M A
AEHEBID X AHORE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nFENA3BLEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisr TER TET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES TEEe
Loss before taxation BRI R (22,409) (19,295)
Adjustments for: AT EIBEL AR
Interests income MEKA 8 @n (19)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB R ETE 12 13,040 12,209
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREENE 12 21,210 21,003
Finance costs BMEKAK Il 3,185 3,151
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y% - BFE &KX ENEE 9 1,250 18
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at BATEAABRNSREE
fair value through profit or loss, net AT EERFHE 9 1,105 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A Mk 9 (4,350) -
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment  #1% ~ BB R ERUR(EBE 17 5314 4961
Impairment loss of right-of-use assets ERAEEENRERSE 18 3,545 2948
Impairment loss of amounts due from related FE s BBt 5 SR IA R R E B 1R
parties 887 -
Share of results of associates il NI 14 307 -
Provision for reinstatement works BEIRER - 940
Equity settled share-based transactions VAR 45 B ARR 17 AR Tt
MR % 40 381 229
Gain on termination of lease ®IEEEN R 9 - (87)
Operating cash flows before movements in working ‘& B & @ HBAILERERE
capital 23,444 26,058
Increase in inventories FEEM (752) (770)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables, &5 R EAEIKIE - e &
deposits and prepayments R FIER D, (32 0) 1,922 (r2r
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 85 KEMENTIE R ETERA
and accrued charges 2,/ CRd) 3,753 (8,829)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHEE D),/ (3,131 13,143
Increase in amounts due to related companies JEE 1~ B ESE A B FRIEE AN - 15
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from e — B AR AR SR 5108
a controlling shareholder "L,/ (3Em) 608 (320)
Increase in provision BRI N 241 -
Cash generated from operations KREEEMNR S 26,085 28,176
Income tax refund REPTEH - 1,204
Income tax paid ERAER (469) (151)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ~ R&ZEBELNREFHE
ACTIVITIES 25,616 29,229
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERIMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

2022 2021
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 87t Fi5T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEY
Interests received B UFLE 21 19
Advanced to related companies ) NCIEE A (292) (387)
Acquisition of financial assets measured at fair value  WEEIR A FERT AR
through profit or loss TREE (2,868) (2,390)
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNRERAERE 14 2,238 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  BEK&E (9,269) (18,695)
(Advanced to)/repayment from associates B AT (BR),/ BN (386) 5
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BEERRITERRD 4,500 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEFMARS TR (6,056) (21,338)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Interests paid BEAAFLE 38 (358) (388)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRFITENR 38 (2,993) (4,007)
Advanced from a related company —BEB AR BR 38 234 1,297
Advanced from a controlling shareholder — AR B 38 939 -
Advanced from an associate —EHE AR BR 38 94 -
Payment for lease liabilities MEBERK 38 (21,060) (24,558)
Proceeds from placing of new shares Ao & 2 AR A0 PTG 508 - 18,128
Repurchase of shares A - (691)
Payments of transaction costs attributable to placing B2 ER D EHR HHA
of shares - (585)
Sales proceeds of disposal of interests in subsidiaries i & FiT/B A Bl iz A 1 &
FR1SHUR - 395
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES ~ BEEBFTARLFE (23,144) (10,409)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERRESENRL FE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,584) (2518)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENNRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 12,925 15,443
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RERNRERRESEY
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED BY BANK (RTHBRES)
BALANCES AND CASH 9,341 12,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B 3% SR B 5E

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nFENA3BLEE
1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (as revised) of
the Cayman Islands on 21 August 2015 and its shares have been listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 8 February
2018. Its immediate and ultimate holding company is Giant Mind International
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") and is
controlled by Ms. Wong Pui Yain (“Ms. PY Wong"). The address of the Company's
registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the corporate

information section to the annual report.

The Company acts as investment holding company and the principal activities of its

subsidiaries are set out in note 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. ERETBMEREER T8k
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) mEmEE D
(@)  Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (@) BRI RETERUBRE
28
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the following RAFE  AKECHAKER
new or amended HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified 20224 1 A1 B2 BRARNEE
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") to the Group's financial statements for the MR B RKRERNEAATH
annual period beginning on or after | January 2022: ERgMAg ([EEGHEA
2 EMEF T RGBT EBY
BRELER -
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use
B ERIZE 165k (IBRTA) M -~ BB RER A — IMEREE FIE A 2 PSR
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BEGFTERIZE37R (BETA) EEMEEH —BITAH KA
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework
FBMEHREERIZE 3 (BRI A) BUSEZR 2 52t
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 -2020
BB BREE (ERTA) BRI SIS ZERI2018F E2020F 2 FE U
The adoption of the amendments to HKFRSs has no material impact on the BB BB REENET AL
Group's consolidated financial statements. BUREENGRMBRREN
BARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Cont4)

(b)  New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group's
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group's current intention is to apply

these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS | and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
ERGTERSE |5 BB BREER
EEEAER (BRIA)

SRR BB

2. ER
Bk

(b)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

BEMBREE (TFEH

S8 &)
BB R ERNH T BB
AERMEHREER

DA BN SR B B 75 SRR B T AR
ZHE BRI ERIBREE
RIBE®M - BRARER - BR
BARKERPRM - AEEE A
ATEIN R AR B B R

589 -

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB SETERESS: (5] A)
Amendments to HKAS 12

BERGETERE 1258 (1BF] )
Amendments to HKAS |
vt EAEACCH RN
Amendments to HKAS |
FEEHERIZE 5% (BRTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 16

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

SEHAETZEE

Deferred Tax Related To Assets and Liabilities Arising from
a Single Transaction'

HE-QFEANEENMBEABAETENIEA

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

BESBRARESIFRE?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

iR Em S ERB R E?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

BB BEHMELERZE 658 (IBFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

EREONEERE?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture?

EAPKREERE 05 R E B S ER
EVELACCHEY) EELESREAS

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2024

REEFREBENRIRAERRZHEN

20235 | A1 Bz BRBE
FEHR £

2 20245 | A1 Bz BRAE

FEHHEN
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 W& B 2 BB EE
determined BRI AR

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all above
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs")
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured

at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The COVID-19 pandemic and the related measures imposed by
government in Hong Kong to contain the spreading of COVID-19 pandemic
had resulted in operating hours restriction and temporary closure of the
restaurants during the year. These had negatively impacted the results of the
Group during the reporting period and its liquidity position. There has been
relaxation of certain of those measures but the situation in which the Group

operates is still precarious.

During the year, the Group was still suffered from various restrictions
imposed by the Hong Kong Government to contain the speeding of
COVID-19 pandemic and a net loss of HK$23,000,000 was incurred. As at
31 December 2022, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by HK$50,741,000 and the net liabilities was HK$2,864,000. In addition, the
Group breached the covenants of borrowings amounted to HK$8,191,000
included in the current liabilities as at 31 December 2022. The lender had
the right to declare the outstanding principal amount, accrued interest and all

other sums payable under the loan immediately due and payable (note 28).

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

3. mREEE

(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

The above events or conditions indicate that a matenial uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore, the Group may not be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. For the purpose of
assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period of |5 months from
the end of the reporting period of these consolidated financial statements
("Forecast”). The past performance and liquidity as well as the future
economic outlook have been taken into account in the preparation of the

Forecast, which includes the following major measures and assumptions:

a)  Up to the approval date of the consolidated financial statements,
the Group is still in the negotiation process with the bank to resolve
breach of the financial covenants in order to maintain the existing

banking loan facilities utilised (note 28);

b)  The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls over staff costs
aiming at improving the working capital and cash flow position of the

Group; and

c¢)  Closely monitoring the development of COVID-19 and future

development of catering industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Contd)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern assumption (Cont d)

In consideration of the Group's current operation and business plan, the
directors are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its financial

obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable future.

In addition to the above, Ms. PY Wong, being the controlling shareholder
and a director of the Company, has undertaken to provide financial support
to the Group to enable the Group to have sufficient working capital to meet
its liabilities and obligations as and when they fall due and to continue to
carry on its business over the period covered by the Forecast. Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going

concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to reduce the carrying values of the Group's assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments has

not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company, and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise

indicated.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control

until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

@)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full

on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control of the subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets

or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(b)

Associates

Where the Group has the power to participate in (but not control on) the
financial and operating policy decisions of another entity, it is classified as an
associate. Associates are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost. Subsequently, associates are accounted for using
the equity method, where the Group's share of post-acquisition profits and
losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income (except for
losses in excess of the Group's investment in the associate unless there is an

obligation to make good those losses).

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate's profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of

the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in

the same way as other non-financial assets.

140 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBAERA T

4.

e

sHBCR (8)
BN
Eﬁ‘iﬁﬁéﬁ B (B2 Hl)
‘éﬁi‘fﬁﬁﬁﬂ“ R ERENE
>RT' ZERDDBERBED
A c BB DB RERE BIEIR
MR NIERAHER © LREE D

BIDRA R A AR - AR AR
BRENEBRESREM2E
BaEnmaBak e mia
KR (R RBE KBNS

DRHBRERN  BRIFBREH
HREER)

AEBEEABENR AN
FEE’UT@T\E[@E’%T\@E@&%%
REE DR A RS T R
R RERHEENREENE
B2 A Am A R R B R ]
BRI B 5 -

B E ARENmERNE KR
BARERGABEE  AF
LA B EHATENEMEE
TERER - WEt ABE R BIH)
REE - WEBERERNEZ
ARHBRERBAE - AREN
FRERRAENAEMIFSRE
ERRE T SETTRIERH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

©

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that

are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits

provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset that the

customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an altemative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

©

Revenue from contracts with customers (Cont d)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer

obtains control of the distinct good or service.

The Group's revenue from catering, restaurant consultancy and other

services are recognised over time as such services are rendered.

Revenue from membership services and sponsorship from promotion
services are recognised on a time-based method over the subscription

period/sponsorship period respectively.

License fee income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreement. License fee income is determined by

reference to the gross revenue generated by licensee under the agreement.

Consultancy service income is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or

an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) 4, FTEEIHER#E)
(d)  Property, plant and equipment d) V¥ BRERRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the costs

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its estimated residual value

over its estimated useful life, as follows:

Leasehold improvements HEMHEEE
Furniture and fixtures AL K2 [ 7 5%
Equipment and tools REhkTE
Computers B

The assets’ estimated residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each

reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

()  Impairment on assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss, or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- Right-of-use assets; and

- Investments in associates and subsidiaries

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated individually, when
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

@)

Impairment on assets (other than financial assets) (Cont d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant
financing component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely

payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two measurement categories

into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(8)  Financial instruments (Contd)

()

Financial assets (Cont d)
Debt instruments (Cont'd)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective
interest method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for
debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial recognition if

doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

()

Financial assets (Cont d)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for
trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI") are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments
are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends and

interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL")
on trade receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases; (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period

over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets' original effective

interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade receivables using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based on
lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont d)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the 12 months
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECL, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group's historical experience and informed credit assessment

and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has

increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when: the
debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to action such as realising security
(if any is held); or the financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to

demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont d)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual or a collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk

ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:

. significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms

that the Group would not consider otherwise;

. it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Cont d)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their

carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.

White-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised

in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable

costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(g)  Financial instruments (Contd)

(i)

(iv)

)

Financial liabilities (Cont d)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other payables
and accrued charges, amounts due to related companies, controlling
shareholder and an associate and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The

related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are

derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset

or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

(®

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(vi)  Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights
to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or
when the financial asset has been transferred and the transfer meets

the criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in

the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a creditor to
settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a result of renegotiating
the terms of that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect
the fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss

for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

(h)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit plans (including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme™)) are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already

paid.

Leasing

The Group as a lessee

Al leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not
contain purchase option. The lease payments associated with those leases

have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Leasing (Cont d)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

()

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate of costs to
be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the

lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an investment
property or a class of property, plant and equipment to which the
Group applies the revaluation model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date
of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

@)

Leasing (Cont d)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont d)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflect revised in-

substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because,
for example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or
termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount
of the lease liability to reflect the payments to make over the revised
term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying
value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is revised,
except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases, an
equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the
remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
()  Leasing (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

(i)

Lease liability (Cont d)

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with
the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets
being leased for an amount commensurate with the standalone price
for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the modification is accounted
for as a separate lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated
increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to
the lease term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the
same amount. With the exception to which the practical expedient
for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies, if the renegotiation
results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying
amount of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by
the same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the
lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability
is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the
amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the

same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects any uncertainty related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of the business
combination which affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised, provided that the deductible
temporary differences are not arises from initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction other than in a business combination that affects
neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

0]

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

Income taxes (Cont d) )

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be

recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also

recognised directly in equity.

Borrowing costs (k)

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.
Government grants ()]
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance

that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that

the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

()

Government grants (Cont d)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis

over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable and are recognised as

other revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to

be received from the contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contq)

()

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of

historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of the services received is measured by reference to
the fair value of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value is recognised
in profit or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding increase in the

share option reserve within equity.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services received,
except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service. The fair values of the goods or services received are recognised as

expenses (unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Conta)
(p)  Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:
() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel of the Group or

the Company's parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

I e entity and the Group are members of the same grou
i Th ity and the Group b f th group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)
(p)  Related parties (Contd)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply: (Cont d)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

the employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or

to the Company's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic

partner.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

EREFBRA)

BB (&)

b) WIIERBERER - A
ZERNAREARERR
& (&)

V) HEBRAE 4
AEBEMENERS
S =3=EE=pNi]

Bie@REtEl

Vi) ZEBX(QBEMRTE
B A TR S R
il o

M) @OBEFATMAL
HZEBEEAYE
N RRZEE (K
ZEBRNELAM
BRERAE

(i) ZEBIEMBEE
HE N EfRIK B AR [A
ARESARANE
DERHEEEEA
B IR -

R ALHITBRF R 85

ERRPERMAFEZALS
XANITRENREKRE &
T

() ZATHFREEGBHK
R

iy ZATHEREBIRENE
BFL &

(i) FZALTHZATHEBRK
FEHEHZBA -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 %% | 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. METHERKR

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note RERAEEN G ER (WM T45T
4, management of the Group is required to make judgements, estimates and MR REEEIRERLIRELEM
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily %ﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁ’ﬂgﬁ KEBENEREEELH
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based (AT RRER o BRAEET KA RR
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. J«Xi@&i‘“%ﬁ&ﬁ@?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgE’\]ﬁ%ﬂ
Actual results may differ from these estimates. K5 - BRAERATREA R UL S EET -

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. st RABRI R AR BT o HREE
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the SrEREF E2ELERTRERE - RIF
estimates is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the FER] S ARERR - siE R 43R
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. R ARG ETE - AITEERIEE]

HOBARE SR AR R R

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources UTREBRENEEZRR  UEWE
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant BRI HARENEMFERR
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the HABBHARMBFEEANEENERE

next financial year. BEHRAERBNEARRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd)

(@)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(i)

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation method in determining the related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the management's experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions and will take
into account the lease term (including any renewal option) of the
Group's restaurants. Management of the Group will accelerate the
depreciation charge where the economic useful lives are shorter
than previously estimated due to removal or closure of restaurants.
The management of the Group will also write-off or write-down the
carrying value of the items which are technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual economic useful

lives may differ from estimated economic useful lives.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd)

@

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(i)

Estimation of impairment of property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets

Assessing impairment of the property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets requires an estimation of its recoverable amounts which
is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that the property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets allocated to each individual restaurant cash generating
unit (“CGU") may be impaired, such as restaurants operated with
operating loss, recoverable amount shall be estimated for such
restaurant CGU. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
CGUs of each individual restaurant and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value to those cash flows. When
fair value less costs of disposal calculations are undertaken, the fair
value was estimated using relevant valuation technique and make
reference to recent market comparative for similar assets and adjusted

for difference in condition in order to determine the fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd) 5. METNERKR 2
(@)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd) @) RIATHBEENTERR(E)
(ii})  Fair value measurement (i) AFETE

A number of assets included in the consolidated financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value. The fair value
of financial assets designated as at fair value at profit or loss that are
not traded in an active market is based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair value, the
valuers have based on variety of methods and makes assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting
date. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions
used in the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions could affect the reported fair values of
these financial assets. Further details are contained in note 36 to the

financial statements.

HIRGEMBRELZ
HEEARATEFE
B/ SEH A FERE
BEBELFEFABR
BV EAERMSEERR
CRMEENATEDER
BUEEBEMETHRN
B -HETATER &
BEMBEERZEBRAILE
HEZEREREAHA
BEMARANBE - ARAEE
EERBEERSELH
BT W= M EATE AR
RRBEERTR - HER
R U ERENSE
TREENEREATF
B E—FFHBHENUB
M6 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 %% | 169



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Contd)

(b)  Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
(i) Going concern

Management makes an assessment of the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern when preparing the consolidated financial
statements. As disclosed in note 3(b), the validity of the going
concem assumptions depends upon the series of measures and the
continuing financial support from Ms. PY Wong, who is the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company. In the preparation of the
cash flow forecast of the Company, the directors have taken into
account of the probability of recall action from the bank in regarding

to the outstanding bank borrowing due to the breach of covenants.

(i) Power to exercise significant influence

Where the Group holds less than 20% of voting rights in an
investment but the Group has the power to exercise significant
influence, such an investment is treated as an associate. More

information is disclosed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable from restaurant
operations including income from catering services (net of discount). The Group's

revenue from external customers based on their nature are detailed below:

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

AR5 ERE R
KA

WA 3B A B B M (2
EEHRBEKA (BIT) - AEEE
REFHE R ARSI AR
0 :

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET

Revenue recognised over time SISIEOAL R N

Catering services BEHRRTE

— Fine dining — =R E R 152,503 138,174
— Mid-market dining — IR E R 21,236 28210
— Specialty coffee — FE ook 7,470 15571
— Casual dining —REERK 35,796 39,389
217,005 221,344
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Conta)

Segmental information

The Group applies the practical expedient of HKFRS 15 which allows the Group
not to disclose the information of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contract with customers, as the original expected
duration of the performance obligation arising from the catering services are all

within one year.

The Group's revenue is solely derived from the operation and management of
restaurants in Hong Kong. For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the chief operating decision maker (being the executive directors of
the Company) reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group as
a whole, which are prepared based on same accounting policies set out in note
4. Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment and no further

analysis of this single segment is presented.

Geographical information

The Group's operation are located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets and financial assets) of
approximately HK$45,356,000 (2021: HK$73,155,000) are located in Hong Kong
based on the physical location of assets or location of operations.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual external customer contributes over 10% of total

revenue of the Group for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Director's emoluments for their services in connection with the management

of the affairs of the Group were as follow:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

7. EEREEMS
@ ESRTFETBAEME

EE RS EEAEEEHAR
REHMEAT :

BZE202F 12831 HiFEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
YTES BUFHTES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun,  Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry ~ Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
& BER 2RI @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET  FER  TER  FER TR TER
Fees e - - 13 13 13 339
Other emoluments: Ethiie :
Salaries and other benefitsand  ¥r& RE MR 2R,
allowance 710 803 - - - 1,513
Share-based payments (notea)  MABRIDBERAIFH
(Bf&a) 53 53 21 21 2l 169
Retirement benefit scheme SRR
contributions 15 18 - - - 33
Discretionary bonus (note b) & TEAL (Fiftn) - - - - - -
778 874 134 134 134 2,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(2) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Contd)

7. EERESME @)
@ EBFRTETRAEME(#)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZ2021 12531 HILFE
Executive directors Independent non-executive Directors
HTES BUFHTES
Wan Devin Leung Wee
Wong Suet Yee, Nijanthan Yuk Lun, ~ Keng Hiong,
Pui Yain Cherry  Chanmugam Ulric Tony Total
& BER RER @it

HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FERL

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FERL TR TR TR

Fees ik - - 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments: Hthfe -
Salaries and other benefits and e REMBHRZE
allowance 852 692 - - - 1,544
Share-based payments (note ) AR BERAFH
(Fit&ta) 53 5 2 ] ] 168
Retirement benefit scheme RINERIFTEIESN
contributions 8 18 - - - 36
Discretionary bonus (note b) g TEAL (Fftn) - - - - - -
923 762 171 171 171 2,198
a) These amounts represent the estimated value of share options granted to the a) ZECHEERBEAAAM

directors under the Company's share option scheme. The value of these share
options is measured according to the accounting policies for share-based
payments as set out in note 4 to the financial statements. Further details of

the options granted are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

b) The bonus was determined on a discretionary basis with reference to the

individual's performance.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the Company
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office during both years. During the year ended 3| December 2022,
one executive director and 3 independent non-executive directors waived
HK$ 144,000 and HK$ 112,500 emoluments respectively (2021: none).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

7. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Contd) 7. EEREEMEZ)

(b)  Employees’ emoluments b)) EEMS
No director of the Company was included in the five highest paid individuals BERARDEEBEBNEE202F
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 whose emolument RA3IBLEFERAEELERR
is reflected in the analysis presented above (2021: one Director). The HMAL (20215 - —BESE) -
emoluments of the five (2021: remaining four) individuals are set out below: HeR EXHTPRE - 5f
(20214« HERM%)EARNME
I -

2022 2021

HK$°000 HK$'000

87 FET

Salaries and other benefits and allowance e MEMRN KR 5,109 4,051

Share-based payments VARR 19 " B R 60 - 3K 525 -

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRRERNET IR 90 72

5,724 4,123

The number of the highest paid individuals who are not directors of the THMEeHENIERA N EESHRSTMAL

Company have their remuneration falling within the following bands: gZemR
2022 2021
Number of Number of
employee employee
EE#¥E EE#H
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 L% 1,000,000/ 7T | 2
HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 87T 2 1,500,000/ 7T 4 2

During the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021, no emoluments were REBEZNELRNIFNAIBIEE

paid by the Group to the five (2021: four) highest paid individuals as an YERAEEZ Q0 E : OEZ)ReHMA LTS

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss NEMBE - (EARSIEMAKRERSMA

of office. None of the five (2021 four) highest paid individuals waived any REFRHEE S (EAREME - T4 (2021

emoluments for both years, F : ME)BEHALHREEE NS
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. EAthlt A
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Government grants (note) BT B (BsE) 10,978 2,650
Sponsorship income BRA 708 400
Membership income gBRA 243 272
Interests income M EHA 21 19
Insurance claim RRRE 229 -
Consignment income of wines and cigars BEEREMTERA - 23
Restaurant consultancy service income Z BRI IRFUA 1,748 660
Forfeited credits from vouchers and gift cards ReFhkEm~EDRK - 206
Others HAl 495 392
14,422 4,622

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised government
grants of HK$10,978,000 (2021: HK$2,650,000) in respect of COVID-19-related
subsidies, of which HK$5,898,000 (2021: Nil) relates to Employment Support Scheme
and HK$5,080,000 (2021: HK$2,650,000) relates to Subsidy Schemes under the
Anti-epidemic Fund, both of which were provided by the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions and other
contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies.

Bzt B ZE2002F 12A31BILFEE A&
B 320197 ik m H m AR B FE R
7B 10,978,000 7T (2021 4F :
2,650,000 7T) + E 5,898,000/ 7T
(20215 « Z)BEBEF R THEBAT
REARIZEFTEIEE - &%5,080,000
T (2021 4F 12,650,000 70 ) E2FT&
NEESEEIER - WZEH
BB AR PR 1A AR P O IR R E sk

SAEIF
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hitli=RER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
T8 Fi7
Net exchange gain ME 3 e 5 9 3
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - MEMRENEER
equipment, net RER (1,250) (18)
Fair value loss on financial assets measured at BAHEFABSHNEREE
FVTPL, net WA EEEFE (1,105) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note |4) HE T E A Al EWEs (FTEE14) 4,350 -
Gain on termination of lease #FFRE MR - 87
Others HAth 159 178
2,163 250
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

10. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 10. HEEMX

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Audit fee BHEM 880 850
Bank charge RITIE 354 371
Business and license fee ES YNGR 339 557
Carriage and freight BERhEE 877 838
Cleaning and laundry BB KR 4,782 4,404
Consultancy fee Sk 2,229 2,130
Credit card commission HiRiikn 4,737 5,001
Decoration =& 640 515
Event expense TEEIFX 799 37
Insurance IRER 651 651
Legal and professional fee FREMNEXER 2,897 2,055
Machine rental WS 700 694
Operating supplies K& A m 4,234 4,685
Other expenses H 1,851 1,282
Recruitment cost FREER AR 93 5
Repair and maintenance HIERRE 3,178 3,009
Samples/food tasting i/ BaEe 741 688
Stationery and office supplies X AR ARAD 327 389
Travelling expense ZIRFA 394 240
30,703 28511

FINANCE COSTS 1. WERR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note |8) HEABEMNEMX (ME18) 2,044 2411
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEFFE 358 388

Others — Interest accreted on contract liabilities ~ E i — & #9 & EHEFTF S

(note 27) (PE27) 783 352
3,185 3,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 12. BRFAIEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after BRAATEEE IR TS IE ¢

charging:
Auditor's remuneration BRI 2 B 880 850
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  BE M@ & (H3E17)
(note 17) 13,040 12,209
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 18) EREEERE (M:318) 21,210 21,003
34,250 33212
Directors’ remuneration (note 7) EEHB (PIEE7) 2,054 2,198
Other staff costs: HA 8 TR
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMEN 86,290 81,553
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RURAERET IR 3,522 3,353
Total staff costs (note) BTk A s (M) 91,866 87,104
Lease payments in respect of: BT EENEERMNK
— Short-term lease expenses (note 18) — SR (HFE18) 1,246 963
— Low-value lease expenses (note |8) —KEEHER (FiF18) 90 12
— Variable lease payment (note |8) —AEAEN (HEE18) 3,399 2,958
4,735 4,033
Note: During year ended 31 December 2022, share-based payments of HK$798,000 (2021: Piiet - 220225 12 A31 BIEFE - AR
HK$229,000) was included in the total staff cost. AERR3X798,000/8 7T (2021 F -

229,000 70 )5t A B TR A 4B %8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FRiSHIRAX
The amount of taxation charged/(credited) to profit and loss represent: Rk GEA)BFES I
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TET
Hong Kong Profits Tax: EBENEHR
Current tax BNEATR 18 608 282
Deferred tax (note 31) EIERIA (FTEE31)
Origination and reversal of temporary difference B RO R (17) (773)
Write-down of deferred tax assets WOREE T T & B - 2,458
(17) 1,685
591 1,967

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of BEMEFFEHESE  2EREEEE

the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million  H)E 2 5 & 78 704 F 5 A 8.25% M B R F+ -

will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities in Hong Kong not qualifying for B2 B &8 T2 a i A 16.5%M =k

the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%. B AEENEHMAH cERAEEEE L
i F A HE B IR | 6.5% A B, ©
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mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contq)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

13. FiB#iRX% (&)
REGHMERAY TEGEEERE
tEEMWMERATTIBR AT E R Y RN
T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAT

Loss before taxation B A 18 22,409 19,295

Tax at the income tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) RPTSTTE 16.5%(2021 5F -

16.5%) st E BV THIA (3,698) (3,184)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose N AJ N S B ER IS 2 &8 2,151 1,538

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERBW AT IS & (2,004) (495)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised WEERRIBEEN R E 3,983 3628
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences I R ] O F E R ZE R Y

not recognised M2 589 (780)

Write-down of deferred tax assets WORRIER A & 2 - 2458

Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised B) R SE I R SR Y A T T 1R (430) (1,198)

Income tax expense for the year FARMEHRX 591 1,967

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Following with the group re-organisation as disclosed in note 34, the Group hold
60% effective interest in Between Hong Kong Limited.

In August 2022, the Group entered into a share purchase agreement with Colour
Bright Global Limited, a Company wholly owned by Ms. PY Wong, to dispose
of its 41% equity interest in Between Hong Kong Limited at cash consideration
of HK$2,722,000. Between Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively,
“Between Group”) are principally engaged in the business of providing specialty
coffee in Hong Kong. The disposal was completed during the year ended 31
December 2022 and the Group recognised a gain on disposal of subsidiary of
approximately HK$4,350,000. Upon the completion of the disposal, the Group's
retained interests in Between Hong Kong Limited is 19%. This is a related party
transaction.

The net liabilities of Between Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

14, HEWEBQT

ETHE 4T REA EEEAE - KE
5 A Between Hong Kong Limited 60%
M B o

R202268H - AEEHEEMELL 2
B A 72 7] Colour Bright Global Limited
IR - LR 2K E2,722,000
BT & H 5 E HBetween Hong Kong
Limited 41%X#& ° Between Hong Kong
Limited &2 E [ /B2 7] (5378 [ Between s
BNFEEEBNEREBIMBEE
%o HEEBEREE202F12A3181E
FETK  AEBRALEMNB AR
2 494,350,000 7T © FEACHE R - A
& B/ Between Hong Kong Limited #){&
BEEAI19% WA BB AIRS -

BetweenEE R L EHEHEEFEN
T~

2022
Notes HK$’000
M TER
Property, plant and equipment e ] 17 14
Right-of-use of assets EREEE 18 30
Deferred tax assets BT IAE E 31 2
Inventories FE 195
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 484
Trade and other receivables, deposits and BH5MEMEWTIE - e M
prepayments TERTFRIAE 1,773
Amount due from a related party JE L BBt 77 FRIE 28
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B 5 N E M B B K ERTE (1,749)
Contract liabilities = ON=Kr 27 (2)
Lease liabilities HEaE (541)
Tax payable JER B8 (26)
Provision B 29 (215)
Net liabilities disposed of HEAEFHE )
Cash consideration ReERE 2,722
Fair value of interest retained recognised as cost #ERA /AR EHEE N Al K AR
of investments in associates REBEZNATE 20 1,624
Non-controlling interest FEVERR M = (3)
Net liabilities disposed of HEREFHE 7
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A/ 9 4,350
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

14. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont ) 14. HEHWBLR &)
2022
HK$’000
TERr
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRESMEFHE -
Cash consideration RERE 2,722
Bank balances and cash disposed of HEMRTTARKRS (484)
2,238
15. DIVIDEND 15. B2
No dividend was paid or declared by the Company for the years ended 3| BZE2022F R2021 F12A31 HIEF
December 2022 and 2021. B ARRWTERNHEIRARS
The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of an interim and ARARIEETEAREE02F 1243
a final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2022. A FRIRMNEATARRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. LOSS PER SHARE

e EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

16. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the owners of ARAEEANEEGRERREEER
the Company is based on the following data: T A T 8URE &
2022 2021

Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss AN ESREAREETEHEEN

per share BiE
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the ~ ANAFIHEB AEIRFEEE

Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 19,744 19,476
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares UG ERER RS EEL

for the purpose of basic and diluted loss BRI E (TAR)

per share ('000) 1,159,882 1,102,904
Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for the years ended 31 HE20202FR2021F12A31BLEF
December 2022 and 2021 since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss & ARETEESHERERRD

per share.

R EERASRENEBERMER -
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e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture Equipment
improvements and fixtures and tools Computers Total
HENXEE GRARETRE RBRIA BNl @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TEn ThR TEn
CosT S
At | January 2021 R0 IFIAIB 70,194 17,550 28815 3175 119,734
Additions AE 9942 1,533 5,152 682 17,309
Disposals/written-off HE /s - - - (19) (19)
At 31 December 2021 R0IF 1 A3 80,136 19,083 33967 3838 137,024
Additions AE 4527 | 466 3,109 167 9,269
Disposalshwritten-off e /M (6300) (1672) (5.208) (573) (13753)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERBAR (HFE14) - - - (15) (15)
At 31 December 2022 R00F 124318 78363 18877 31,868 3417 132525
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT RERAE
At | January 2021 IIES D= 54636 10959 21,144 2403 89,142
Provided for the year EREE 6329 1,853 3548 479 12,209
Eliminated on disposalsiwritten-off RIEE /R - - - (1 (1)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RERNEZRESE
(note 19) (Fit3E19) 2,145 1,079 1711 2% 496
At 31 December 2021 R0 128318 63,110 13891 26403 2907 106,311
Provided for the year FREE 6,848 1,981 3810 401 13,040
Eiminated on disposalshwritten-off RIEE /W (5557) (1,586) (4839) (522) (12.503)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) WERBLRRE (HF14) - - - (1) (1)
Impaiment loss recognised in profit or loss RERARRAEES
(note 19) (Fit5E19) 5216 10 84 4 5314
At 31 December 2022 RONFNA3IA 69617 14296 25459 2,789 112,161
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 3| December 2022 R0NEI12AR3IA 8,746 458] 6409 628 20364
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 124318 17,026 5192 7564 93] 30713
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 18. FHEBSERHEEAE
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE

RIARMEERRE D WEREEENEK

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset

is as follows: EFEDTWT
Buildings
B
HK$’000
FERT
Cost B
At | January 2021 202141 A1 H 91,866
Additions NE 15010
Lease modification HEER] 7,684
Expiry of lease terms HHEAE (41413)
Termination of lease RIEEE (608)
At 31 December 2021 R2021 512831 H 72,539
Lease modification HEEET 6,018
Expiry of lease terms HEHAE (8915)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEMB AR (MisEi4) (1,049)
At 31 December 2022 202241231 H 68,593
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RitTEREE
At | January 2021 20211 A 1R 47,998
Depreciation provided for the year FRFHRITE 21,003
Impairment for the year (note 19) FARME (FIEE19) 2,948
Expiry of lease terms H ERfEm (41,413)
Termination of lease BRIEHE (439)
At 31 December 202 2021412431 H 30097
Depreciation provided for the year FRFHRITE 21,210
Impairment for the year (note 19) FRRE (FIEE19) 3,545
Expiry of lease terms A HAE (8915)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERT B AR (MisE4) (1,019)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 H 44,918
Net book value BRTERE
At 31 December 2022 2022 12 431 B 23,675
At 3| December 2021 F2021F 12 4318 42,442
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Contd) 18. FHREBEERHEAE®)

Lease liabilities HEEE
The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdiction in which it operates. AEBERELEMERZRRHEESZE
The values in the table below reflect the current proportions of lease payments ME - TREERMEHBETNHEE
that are fixed over the lease term. RNEREIBNERER S ©
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: AREENFTHREIWTAOT -
2022 2021
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Current liabilities nBBE 26,126 25,550
Non-current liabilities JEREBALE 10,116 24,23
36,242 49,781
Future lease payments are due as follows: KRIRMAENZDEBERINT
Future lease Present
payments Interests value
AREENRK FE BE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FigT TER TER

3| December 2022 202251283318

Not later than one year —FR 27,217 (1,091) 26,126
Later than one year and not later than two years —&F&{EMFA 9,010 (269) 8,74
Later than two years and not later than five years MF&BRFR 1,539 (164) 1,375

37,766 (1,524) 36,242
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont )

Lease liabilities (Cont d)

e EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

18. EREEERBESE®)
HERE#E)

Future lease Present
payments Interests value
ARFHERK FE BiE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TAET TAET

31 December 202| 2021124318

Not later than one year —FR 27437 (1,887) 25,550

Later than one year and not later than two years —FHRERFA 19,637 (740) 18,897

Later than two years and not later than five years MERBRFRA 5436 (102) 5334
52510 (2,729) 49,781

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

RIS RSN

2022 2021

HK$000 HK$'000

TER TAET

Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note | 1) HEABMER (M) 2,044 2411
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets EREEETERX 21,210 21,003
Short term lease expense (note 12) RHAE &R S (HEE12) 1,246 963
Low value lease expense (note 12) KEEHEERS (M 12) 90 12
Variable lease payment (note 12) FIEAENR (HEE12) 3,399 2,958
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEBREZANEE 27,989 27,447
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

19.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

The management of the Group concluded there was indication of impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of certain property,

plant and equipment and right-of-use assets associated with the restaurants.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the management of the Group covering the remaining lease term
with a pre-tax discount rate is 10.3% (2021: 11.50%). The annual growth rate used
is 3% to 18% (2021: 1.8% to 13.0%) as at 31 December 2022. The assumptions of
annual revenue growth rates are determined based on expectation for the market
development and is not expected to exceed the average long-term growth rate for
the catering industry in Hong Kong. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross profit and operating expenses, which is determined

based on the recent performance of the relevant restaurants.

Based on the result of the assessment, management of the Group determined
that the recoverable amount of the CGUs is lower than the carrying amount. The
impairment amount has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets such that the carrying amount of each individual
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its
value in use and zero. Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation, an
impairment of HK$5,314,000 (2021: HK$4,961,000) (note 17) and HK$3,545,000
(2021: HK$2,948,000) (note 18) has been recognised against the carrying amount
(before impairment) of property, plant and equipment of HK$13,662,000 (2021:
HK$5,659,000) and right-of-use assets of HK$9,082,000 (2021: HK$12,600,000),
respectively. As the CGUs has been reduced to its recoverable amount of
HK$13,885,000 (2021: HK$10,350,000), any adverse change in the assumptions
used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in further impairment

losses.
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BERBEFERSE 9% K
B R ErBREE ORERAT) 13,662,000
AT (20214 1 5,659,00078 7T ) A K 5 B
REEMREE ORER) 9,082,000%8
7t (2021 4F : 12,600,0007% 7T) 2 5

JR{ES,314,0007% 7T (2021 5F © 4,961,000
L) (BF#E17) % 3,545,000/ 7T (202 |
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/LOAN TO AN 20. REFEDTNIRE FEBE DT
ASSOCIATE L€
Details of the Group's investments in associates are as follows: AEERBEARNREFFNT -
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Share of net assets BB EFE 1,317 -
Place of
incorporation Issued and Proportion of equity interests Proportion of voting
or registration/ fully paid held by the Group as at power held by the
Name of associates operations share capital 31 December Group Principal activities
ARy BRAR ®I12A318 REEAE
BENAER it EEBE BERE FREFRLA RERLA TERE
2022 2021
Potato Head Hong Kong Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 30% 30% 30%  Investment holding,
(“Potato Head (HK)") (note a) (note a) operates a mixed-use
entertainment venue

which comprises
retail shop, cafe, bar

and restaurant

Potato Head Hong Kong Limited ~ &8 10078 7T 30% 30% 30% RERR &%
(Potato Head (HK)]) (PizEa) —E%RBRE
(Ffta) G BRTE

JE# - Mo -
ECRERE

Between Hong Kong BVI/Hong Kong  US$100 19% N/A 19% Investment holding
Limited (note b) (note b) (note 14) (2021: 100%)  and specialty coffee

Between Hong Kong Limited ~~ RBRZEE,/ 100X 19% TiEf 19% REERE
(&) BB (f3Eb) (rsE14)  (2021% :100%) KEmunE
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BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES/LOAN TO AN 20. REFELDTINIRE MHELT
ASSOCIATE (Contd) BEXE)
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FB7 Fi57E
Potato Head (HK) Potato Head (HK)
Cost of investment in an associate, unlisted KEBERRIKNA - RET - -
Loan to an associate MBS A FIER 6,900 6,900
Less: share of post-acquisition losses that are in  J&, © E(LERIBIZE K AR BEEE
excess of the cost of investment BB (6,900) (6,900)
Between Hong Kong Limited Between Hong Kong Limited
Cost of investment in an associate KB LR EIRA 1,624 -
Less: share of losses o FE(RETE (307) -
1,317 -

Notes:

(@)  The Group subscribed 30% interest in the associate at subscription price of HK$30

on 13 January 2016. Pursuant to the shareholders agreement entered into by the

Group and the other shareholder of Potato Head (HK), an independent third party

to the Group, the Group has the right to appoint one out of the three directors of

Potato Head (HK). Accordingly, the Group is able to exercise significant influence

over Potato Head (HK).

(b)  Although the Group's ownership interest in Between Hong Kong Limited is less than

20%, the Group has appointed one director in Between Hong Kong Limited. The

directors of the Company therefore considered they have the power to exercise

significant influence and have treated the interest in Between Hong Kong Limited as

an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVTPL

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

1. BERFEFABSNEMEE

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT
Convertible notes (note a) AR R (f5Ea) 1,783 390
Future equity investments (note b) RRAAEIRE (MH5Tb) 1,122 1,365
Fund investment (note c) E&E (o) 588 399
Unlisted preference shares AETELER 371 -
Unlisted shares R EMREA 1,066 1,013
4,930 3,167

Analysed as: SHWT
Current BN EA 1,783 —
Non-current FEBNHA 3,147 3,167
4,930 3,167

Convertible notes were acquired from private companies, the principal
amount was US$380,000 (202 1: US$50,000) and will be matured within
| year from the reporting date. The notes bear interest at 0% — 9%
(2021: 3.5%) per annum and are unsecured. Subsequent to 31 December
2022, two convertible notes with principal amount of USD330,000 were
matured in January 2023. These convertible notes are overdue (“Overdue
Convertible Notes") and the Group has been following up the repayment
with the investees. As at 3| December 2022, the fair value of these Overdue
Convertible Notes amounted to HK$1,349,000 and the fair value loss of
HK$ 1,225,000 was charged to the profit or loss for the year then end.

Certain investments were acquired through Simple Agreement for Future
Equity ("SAFEs") on certain private companies in the United States of
America (the "USA™), Singapore and Cayman Island. A SAFE is an investment
contract between a start-up and an investor that gives the investor the
right to receive equity of the company on certain triggering events, such as,
qualified financing (next equity financing) or sale of the company.

The balances represented a fund investment on a special propose vehicle in
the USA with a maturity in 10 years and a fund investment focuses on food,
agricuttural science in the USA with a maturity in 5 years respectively.

b)

IREEBEEELART  Ae
%8/5380,0003 7 (2021 4F : 50,000
L) - BRmEABHR—FRE
Hi o ZERFFEF0%ZEI%(2021
F :35%) + EEA o BEEN2022
FI2A318 » AE&5E330000E T
HRMIE AT B ER B R 2023 |
AR - ZERRERCD S
((aHABRER]) A58
HREREEFTHNETBER - B
2002F 128318 ZEFUHRRE
BRAFER349,00087T © A
FEEE 12250008 T AERA

oz
B o

ETREABBAMRLIFES
FE([RE]) - 3o R 28
UGG ER 30
((ERREE R Z])EE -
BERRBEHZLNAEXER
BEZBN-—BREAN BT
REEERLEEREN (AR
B(TRBERE )L ERR)E
BEDRIRENER -

B B EEXER KB MDA
MESRE  RIOFRIIE - I

BERBEFINRGREERN
EERE - NoFRIE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVTPL (Contq)

As at 31 December 2022, the above financial assets were stated at fair value
based on the valuation performed by OCF Corporate Advisory Limited (2021:
Valtech Valuation Advisory Limited), an independent firm of professional valuer.
The valuers conducted the valuation based on binomial pricing method, discounted
cash flow method, equity allocation method and underlying assets method (2021:
binomial option pricing method and underlying assets method) (level 3 fair value
measurements).

Financial assets at FVTPL are denominated in the following currencies:

21. AT EHABSNEREE (&)
R2002F 128318 @ LileBEERE
ERBEEZRABRAR(Q021F : 5
R ARAR) B BEMERM)E
IREERAFESE - HEMRE=
BATEL  BRBELREE  BE5H
AR BEEEER. (2021 F « —1HH
BEEBEMMEBEES) (FE=RATE
FTE)ETHE -

BAFEH AR BAEN TS
A

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

HK$ BT 1,066 1013
Us$ ETT 3,864 2,154
4,930 3,167

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

22, HEREMBWNRIE - BERTE
(RE ]

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Trade receivables from restaurant operation 2R B ZEE4E & 0 E 5 FENGRIA 1,772 1,969

Rental deposits Heks 15,365 16,344

Other deposits HEhize 3,898 6,445

Other receivables E h FE W RIE 1,340 [,255

Prepayments and others TR RRIE R EA, 1,388 ,445
Total trade and other receivables, deposits and 2 5 & H M EWFIE - & RIER

prepayments TR 23,763 27,458

Analysed as: ST

Current BER 9,656 13,524

Non-current JERNEA 14,107 13,934

23,763 27,458
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22, ESREMEWTIE - HERTE

PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

As at 31 December 2022, net amount of trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$ 1,772,000 (202 1: HK$1,969,000).

Usually, there is no credit period for the restaurant operation except for certain
customers in which credit period ranging from 4 to 30 days is granted by the
Group. The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly by cash or credit
card settlement. The settlement terms with credit card companies are usually within

7 days after the billing date which is also the service rendered date.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables from restaurant operations
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated the service rendered

date, at the end of the reporting period.

HFIE ()

R20202F 128318 - BRFINEE
HE 5 RN RIE TR A 1,772,0008 7T
(2021 4F : 1,969,000/7T) °

B BEBLETEEED  HAKE
RE4E30RGEERNETEFRI -
AEBHREEFPNESBRRETENRS
EEARARINEED
Hy (MMRR AR B #) 12
7HR -

AT RRHERRRERA D (EEEH
IR R EAEE) 2R B EREEN
E AR IR DT

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRET TAT

0 to 30 days 0&30H 1,377 1,506
31 to 60 days 31260H 104 78
61 to 90 days 61 Z290H I 1]
91 to 365 days 91 &365H 280 274
1,772 1,969

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$395,000 (202 |: HK$463,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, HK$280,000
(2021: HK$274,000) has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered
as in default as the amounts are due from counter-parties with good history of

repayment. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

R2022F 12831 B P& B H@
H - BRI 458 4395,00078 7T (2021 4
463,000/ ) NEBEMAREERE
SRENGIBESRA - REBHERD
280,000 7T (2021 5 : 274,000 7C)E
BEIORFA LATRAEY B
EAEKERTERCHENRZE AR
o REBWEBZ A TR
Hm e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

22,

23.

24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSIT AND
PREPAYMENTS (Contd)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no loss allowance has been
recorded as the Group considers the default risk of the amount is immaterial.
Details of impairment assessment policy of trade and other receivables and deposits
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are set out in note 36.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2022, pledged bank deposits represent a bank deposit of
HK$5,000,000 (2021: HK$5,000,000) pledged to a bank to secure the bank loan
facilities of the Group (as set out in note 28).

As at 31 December 2021, another bank deposit of HK$4,500,000 was pledged to
a bank for a bank guarantee for rental deposit. The pledged bank deposit and the

bank guarantee have been released during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate ranged from 0.05% to 0.35%
per annum as at 3| December 2022 (2021: ranged from 0.08% to 0.35% per

annum).
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held and short term bank deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less and carry interest at prevailing market rate
at 0.001% (2021: 0.0019%) per annum at 31 December 2022.

Details of impairment assessment policy for the year ended 31 December 2022 are

22,

23.

ESREMEWTIE - RERTE
ARE#)

HZE2002F 2021 F 12831 HILEF
B BEELEERE  REALEE
REBBFEZELNEMN - M002FR
2021 F 12 A31 BB 5 R A M REBGRIE
PAR ¥52 & B R AT A BOR R IR S B 3T
360

RITHBRAE CEIPRITE
i
R20202% 128318 - BEBFITEX
EARBASLERITHEMKA TR
1TRIER 7773 345,000,00078 7T (2021 &
500000078 7T) (#HAHIEE28) o

R2021F 128318 » B—FETHER
4,500,000/ LB A 2K S HRMITER
MK FIRIT o ZEWPRITF TR
TERENEZ2002ENRA3IBIEEE
Rk o

EHERITEIN20245E 12 831 BiRE
TFEMZER005%E0.35%(2021 F : F 7
&0 08%E035%) 5 & °

RITREBRIRESBEN202F12A318
FIERe RRIBER=EAIIAT
WIRBITHIZEFE0.001%(2021 5
0001%)5t SRR EIRITIER ©

HZE20202F 12831 BILFERRETE

set out in note 36. PR FIFEMIEE36
INVENTORIES 24. 78
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Food, beverages and other consumables B~ R R EMEER 6,283 5726
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/ASSOCIATES

Amounts due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder and

associates

The amounts are unsecured and interest-free. Other than those trade nature
balances as disclosed below, the remaining balances have no fixed repayment term.
In the opinion of Directors of the Company, the amounts are expected to be

recovered within twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2022, no amount due from a controlling shareholder is trade
nature. As at 31 December 2021, the amount due from a controlling shareholder
of HK$608,000 is trade nature with credit term of 60 days from the date of
invoices and aged within 60 days based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period. The maximum amount outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2022 is HK$608,000 (202 1: HK$608,000).

Amounts due from/to associates

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed
repayment term. The directors of the Company expected that such balances will

be recovered/settled within |2 months from the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, loss allowance of HK$602,000 (2021:

nil) was made against the gross balance of amounts due from associates.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

25.

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

Py RS ERNE A E),—RIER
IR BE A RFE
EY, EREBAR - —RERRRR

L PR

ZEFEREEMLRE o BT XAAH

BOESMEESRI  BRUEETE
T ARBEERR 0 ZFHEEH

RRREHARE+ —EARKE -

R0 12A31 B - BiEEK—RER
BREFIBEBESHIEE - R2021F 1273
B - B — 2 ARAR R #) /I8 4608,000
AT ZREBESNE  FEHAR
B HHEOKXBRRAORA (B
MEMKREZAIME) - HE2002F
RAIBLFENGERABESER
608,000 7T (2021 £ : 608,000787T) °

W FEAT B A RRRE

ZRREFEHIE  EEA 2R
EETESHR - ARREFRBLF
REERIE PR BRARET 1 218 A AR EL
AN

HE2002F 12831 BILFE - shrElkE

SN RIFIB RS E L BB RE 602,000
BIT (2021 6 - &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/A
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/ASSOCIATES (Contad)

Amount due from/to related companies

Details of the amounts due from related companies are as follows:

25. W BB AR, —RIER
IRRBHEDERE ()
g NG
FEW BB A RFURRREBINT -

Maximum amount outstanding during

the year ended 31 December

HZNA3BLEEMN

BEABEER
2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
H AT TH 57
Non-trade nature: HEHUE
Cigarro Limited ("Cigarmo”) (note a) Cigarro Limited([ Cigarro |) (Fif3¥a) 8 7 8 7
Bilion Huge Asia Pacific Limited (“Bilion Huge")  EXEABRAR ([Bk])
(note b) (Fitszb) 345 346 346 38|
Mutiara (HK) Company Limited (“Mutiara”) Mutiara (HK) Company Limited
(note d) (MMutiara]) (FitEd) 3% 415 679 415
747 768
Details of the amounts due to related companies are as follows: FENEEE AR ZIENEEST ¢
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB7 FiET
Trade nature: BH1EE
Cigarro (note a) Cigarro(fff5Ea) (43) 43)
Non-trade nature: FBHIE -
Billion Huge (note b) B (Fitstp) (129) (270)
Golders Way Company Limited (“Golders Way") Golders Way Company Limited
(note ) ([ Golders Way ) (FifzEc) (2,227) (1,852)
(2,399) (2,165)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED COMPANIES/

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

25. W ENRBAE—RER

A CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER/AN ASSOCIATE/A

NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER (Cont )

Amount due from/to an related companies (Cont d)

Notes:

@

Amounts due to Cigarro of HK$43,000, which is controlled by Ms. PY Wong, are
trade nature, with a credit period from purchase of goods of 30 days. These trading
balances with related companies are unsecured, interest-free and aged within 30 days
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. The remaining balance

with Cigarro is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment term.

Balance with Billion Huge, which is 100% owned by Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade

nature, which is unsecured, interest-free and with no fixed repayment term.

Balance with Golders Way, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade

nature, interest free and with no fixed repayment term.

Balance with Mutiara, which is 50% owned by Ms. PY Wong and 50% owned by
Mr. KS Wong, father of Ms. PY Wong, is non-trade nature, interest free and with no

fixed repayment term.

During the year ended 3| December 2022, loss allowance of HK$285,000 (2021:

nil) was made against the gross balance of amounts due from related companies.

IRERBHE A RRIE ()

e, FEAS B A RIROA ()
PaE

()  FEH Cigarro(FEME Z 12 5]) &
B000BTHEBESILE - HiEE
HAREERIE30R - W EHEEHA
AN E SEHRARER RS RNR
SHRIZER R 2T RRIRE30H
A o ECigarroM &S AEER - £8
KA [E]E E FREAR

b) BEK(EEMEALLTESI00%)H
EHREEHHE  BER R RE
ElFEE TR

() HGolders Way(BEMBE L THA
SO%)REHBIEE HIEE - RENE
Bl g

(d) BEMutera(BEMEZTREMEX
TARHKS Wong 542 BB 50% K
50%)MERBIFESHNE - RERE
ElTEEFAR

HZE20202%F 12831 BIEFE © 5LAEWE

Bt R SRR AR A A FE L S 1R 1 285,000
BT (20216 - ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 26. ESRHEMEMREREAER
CHARGES
Trade and other payables and accrued charges B RHAMEARERESER
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
i85t FE7
Trade payables Z ZRENIA 14,460 15233
Accrued staff related costs JEET B THERAR AR 3,449 3,528
Rental, rates and building management fee e ZMRREERE 2,516 2,084
Restaurant construction work and repair and BEERATRE MBS ERE
maintenance 3,483 3,482
Audit and professional fee BRENREXRE 3,137 2213
Marketing, advertising and promotion TIHHE - BERIEH 2,640 1,573
Utilities charges HERX 550 537
Receipts in advance TR 750 750
Other payables HoAth 1< /1A 2,898 2,479
33,883 31,879
The credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The following is an ageing EEEQNEEHAI0E - RIWEH
analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the R REZAHZE7NE FHEMNTIER
reporting period: AT
2022 2021
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TAET
0 to 30 days 0&30H 6,942 7921
31 to 60 days 31260H 4312 4,177
61 1o 90 days 61 290H 1,679 765
Over 90 days #8390 B 1,527 2,370
14,460 15233
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27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES aEaE
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAET
Non-current FRE
Credit consumption programme EREETE 9,082 10,267
Current B
Deposits received for catering services at restaurants ~ EBEFIRBKM A RS 2,501 3,821
Cash coupon payables ERRE % 379 567
Prepaid membership fee B8 E 160 263
Credit consumption programme EREEE 1,922 1,476
4,962 6,127
14,044 16,394

The Group's typical payment terms which impact the amount of contract liabilities

recognised are as follows:

Deposits received for catering services at restaurants

The Group normally receives approximately 50% deposits in advance from
customers for catering services in relation to events to be organised at the Group's
restaurants. The Group also receives deposits in advance from members of a
restaurant of the Group and the members will in retum be granted equivalent cash
value of food and beverage credits for the catering services at that restaurant during
the subscription period, which is normally within one year from the date on which
the annual membership card was issued to the member. All of these deposits and

credits are non-transferable and non-refundable.

REBYECHACHEESBNATNK
ES N/,

EERSRBUEmNES

RAKEEEERNEDNE - A5
BERL AP UEE KRS 50%H)
Be ARENELRYAEE-HE
ENgBEE  MERE®R ZFEE
KR RERRESLERERREER
BANEFERS  RABH-—KRLAEEE
ERgEFREYRA —FR - ZFR

ERBEIHIAEZANARK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e

Br RS AR MY EE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

27.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Conta)

Prepaid membership fee

The Group receives annual membership fees in full amount at the beginning of the
annual subscription period. Prepaid membership fee will be recognised on a time-
based method over the subscription period which will normally be one year. The

prepaid membership fees are non-transferable and non-refundable.

Credit consumption programme

In 2021, an arrangement has been entered into with the shareholders of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Advance Shareholders”)
pursuant to which the Advance Shareholders are agreed to make advances
(the “Advances”) to the non-wholly owned subsidiary for funding the operation
of a new restaurant (the “New Restaurant”). The Advances will be settled by
way of food and beverages credits (the “Credits”) to be enjoyed by the eligible
person duly appointed by Advance Shareholders (the “Credit Users”) solely at
the New Restaurant commenced from | August 2021 (i.e. Credit Consumption
Arrangement). As a monthly settlement of the Advances, the Credit Users of each
Advance Shareholder can enjoy a maximum of 30,000 Credits (I Credit equivalent
to HK$1.00) at the New Restaurant. If the available monthly Credit of HK$30,000
is not fully utilised in that particular month, the unused Credits for that particular
month would be forfeited and cannot be carried forward. The Credits are non-

transferrable and non-refundable.
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aHaR®)
ANE

A
b

AEENFERERVUBEEE S

Z -BNEEBENABENAEA
—F)UEREENFAER - BNE
BETAEZEETARER -

EREEE

2021 5 - BALNFFZENB AT
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NBRRAERFEZEMBATRR([E
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RHES - ENREAB2021F8A |
ARUABNERREXZENEERAL
((ERAPEBEFEEZENRDR
FRERE(EREDNFAEE (A
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RrE EEMRENERRFPAIEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Contq)

e EHRRME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

27. AHEEE)

Movements in contract liabilities BHEBNES
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000
THET FET
Balance as at | January RI1A | BEY4EER 16,394 2,899
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FARARBRABHSNEBRD
recognising revenue during the year (6,127) (2,899)
Interest accreted on contract liability (note 1) BRBENEAE (M) 783 352
Increase in contract liabilities as a resuft of receipts in ~ FEHHHR B ER ARTS URER
advance of catering service to be provided YIRS R A OB EEM 2,996 16,042
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HENMB AR (ME14) (2) -
Balance as at 3|1 December RI2A31 BHv&EeR 14,044 16394
28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITER
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Bank borrowings RITER 8,191 11,184
Carrying amounts repayable of the bank FERB BT ENREE
borrowings*:
Within one year —FR 3,333 4,000
More than one year, but not exceeding two years —FU LB EBME 2,000 3333
More than two years, but not more than five years M IA LA BBAF 2,858 3,85
8,191 I1,184
Less: Amounts due within one year or repayable on & : REVEE T TP —F A HigkiZ
demand shown under current liabilities ERIEEKIE (8,191) (11,184)

Amount shown under non-current liabilities

FRBEBETAIIFR

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements.

o AMFOANERERBHRMBETE
HEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Contd) 28. RITIEER(4)

As at December 2022 and 2021, the bank borrowings are subject to variable
interest rate of the higher of 2.5% per annum over HIBOR or the bank's cost of
funds and 2.5% per annum below Prime Rate or the bank's cost of funds. The
weighted average interest rate is 2.8 1% per annum as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
2.80% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings of the Group of HK$6,858,000
(2021: HK$7,883,000) are secured by bank deposits of HK$5,000,000 (2021:
HK$5,000,000). The remaining balance of HK$ 1,333,000 (2021: HK$3,351,000)
are unsecured. The bank borrowings of the Group are guaranteed by corporate
guarantees provided by the Company and the director of the Company as at 3|
December 2022 and 2021.

One of the Group's bank loan agreement are subjected to covenant clauses,
whereby, the Group is required to comply with, among others, the covenant that
restricts the Group to maintain certain financial ratio (the “Loan Covenant”). As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not fulfil a financial ratio as required
in a bank loan agreement and therefore the bank may declare the outstanding
principal amount, accrued interest and all other sums payable under the loan
immediately due and payable. As such, the bank is contractually entitled to request
for immediate repayment of the outstanding loan amount of HK$6,858,000 (2021:
HK$7,833,000). Such events of defaults which resulted in cross-default of certain
borrowings with carrying amount of HK$1,333,000 (2021: HK$3,351,000) as at
31 December 2022. These bank loan agreements also contained repayable on
demand clause. The outstanding balances are presented as repayable on demand

under current liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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R20202F K2021 5128 + RITERTY
REFIELS%ME BRI TRER B HR
TESMABRENEREBFRFH25%
HRITE S MANE = E LFBF E5T
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£281%(2021 F - FFIE280%) °

R202F 128318 - AEBERIRITHE
76,858,000/ 7T (2021 4F : 7,883,000/
JT) LASRIT13 305,000,000 7T, (2021 4F -
5,000,00078 70 ) fEHE#R » AEER 1,333,000
770 (20214F 3,351,000/ 7T) BER
o AREMRITERBRRARARAA
AEER2002FR2021F12A31 B
HER D BRREITER -
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HEE)RANEEER —TENREL
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EMEFRETREERAETE « B S
K FTE H o AT AR RE RN B H R A o
Bt - REHLE - RITARERKAE
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F :7,833,00087T) - ZFENEMHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Contd) 28. SRITFIEE(#)
The Group has been communicating with the bank to resolve the breach of the AEEREERITETER  URRR
aforesaid bank covenants in order to maintain the existing banking loan facilities. As HPFRBRITERRE MER LR
of the approval date of these financial statements, the lenders have not made any ZAMBER - BELFHBHRRAER
demand for immediate loan repayment. 5 MR AR ARIELEIREEE R E
DESS
29. PROVISION 20. #fE

Reinstatement

works

EEIR

Note HK$°000

fi FET

At | January 2022 2022 1 A1 A 4,450

Addition NE 400
Reversal 24l (159)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT 14 (215)

At 31 December 2022 72022412 A31H 4,476

HK$’000

TER

Current ENE 2,119

Non-Current FEENEA 2,357

4476
The provision for reinstatement works related to the estimated cost of reinstating BEIRERERSAEHAETNEE
the rented premises to be carried out at the end of respective lease periods. These BEMERNGERAEE - ARFEY
amounts have not been discounted for the purpose of measuring the provision for TEK - T EGS(8E TREER

reinstatement works as the effect is not significant. B EHIE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. BgA
Number of shares Amount
Rt #E Ex

HK$ HK$'000

BT TR
Authorised: ERE
At | January 2021, 31 December 2021, R20215 1 AR ~ 2021 F 124318 »

I January 2022 and 3| December 2022 20024 | A1 BR202% 124318 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 50,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At | January 2021 2021 FI A8 1,031,910,000 10319,100 10319
Placing of new shares (note a) B ERR (fiiTa) 134,280,000 1,342,800 1343
Repurchase of shares (note b) BRI (fatb) (5,000,000) (50,000) (50)
At 31 December 2021 and | January 2022 20215 12 A31 B R202F1 A IR 161,190,000 [1,611900 [1,612
Cancellation of shares repurchased RRcEAEE )

(note b) GREDY) (1,410,000) (14,100) (14)
At 31 December 2022 R002FNA3IA [,159,780,000 11,597,800 11,598
Notes: PR
(@  In May 2021, the Company issued a total of 134,280,000 ordinary shares with par @  R2021F57 - ARANEERO.1357%

value of HK$0.01 each at a price of HK$0.135 each. Further details were mainly set TR BIEE1TH 134,280,000 B
out in the announcement dated 25 May 2021 and 18 June 2021. BREEOOIETH ERAR - #—H5F
BEEHNAM/2021F5A258 K
2021 F6AI8HEDE o
(b)  The Company repurchased a total of 6,410,000 shares of the Company at an b) EER021912A31BILFE - ARF

aggregate consideration of approximately HK$691,000 during the year ended
31 December 2021, in which 5,000,000 was cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2021, while the remaining 1,210,000 and 200,000 were cancelled on 10
January 2022 and |3 May 2022 respectively.

All shares issued rank pari passu with other existing shares in all aspects.
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AR EL691 000BTERANRA
#£6,410,000/% %5 + EH 5,000,000
AR EREZ 2021 F12A31 BIEF
EAES + M&T1,210,0008% K 200,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. BEHIEA
The following is the deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and movements UWTARAREE R E—EFEARRNE
thereon during the current and the prior year. TEHBEE (BE) RHZE -

Accelerated

depreciation

allowance

IR ERE

HK$000

FHET

At | January 202 | 20211 A1 A 3,492
Charge to profit or loss (note 13) BRI (FEE13) (1,685)

At 31 December 202 2021512431 H 1,807

Credit to profit or loss (note 13) st A (FEE13) 17
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 14) HERBAR (HFE14) )

At 31 December 2022 202241231 H 1,822
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position,

the following is the analysis of the deferred taxation:

31. REHIE(Z)
AT ARERIEA - 2540
ARz 2

As at 3|1 December

®I12A31A
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets REFIRE E 2,327 | 858
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIBAE (505) (5h
1,822 [,807

At 31 December 2022, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HKS$ 111,044,000 (2021: HK$89,509,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax loss of
approximately HK$111,044,000 (2021: HK$89,509,000) at 31 December 2022,
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.
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R202F 128318 - AEEERHH
RIIBESEAY 111,044,000 7T (2021 FF
89,509,000/ 7T) + A] AR S5 R SR
) o BRI MR AT TER - 85742022
FI12A31 HARBBIEEEL 111,044,000
77 (2021 5 : 89,509,000/ 70 ) HERRIE
ERIAEE - TIBERAEREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had

the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

BB X 5

FRiR & B A R BT REES) -
TR AEEREEBTETUNTIR
0

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Catering income from Ms. PY Wong REME 2 T PTFERIA 218 297
Catering income from Mr. Alan Lo (note a) ftAlan Lo %t 4 FTISE SR IA
(PFit5Ea) 188 344
Purchases of goods from Cigarro M Cigarro B E & M 14 I5
Restaurant consultancy service income from H—REE AR MG EREM
an associate ARFSUA 605 660
Lease payment to a company with 50% owned  [A)E & Z2 - A 50%
by Ms. PY Wong NAEIZNHEERRK 900 900

Note:

(@  Mr. Alan Lo is the spouse of Ms. PY Wong.

Details of the balances with related companies, a controlling shareholder and
associates at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position and note 25.

Compensation of key management personnel

The compensation to key management personnel of the Group representing

individuals appointed as directors of the Company is set out in note 7.

Bt

(@  Alan Lot EAEMELTHERE -

R|EMKR - BB AR - —REBRR
RR—EBERRNEHRF B NERS
ARBARE KT
TEEBAESNHE

AEETRERASREZRERETLF
ESNAL  HFSHMET -
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BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33. RIREFIFHE

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except for voluntary contribution,
no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from the MPF Scheme
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid or payable to the above retirement benefits schemes by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 is approximately HK$3,555,000
(2021: HK$3,389,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BE200nF 12831 ALEE

34. kREMBLEAFE
TRITERERNF DA E

has material non-controlling interests: 2 BB R RIS :
Place of
incorporation  Proportion of ownership
and principal  interests and voting rights Profit/(loss)
place of held by allocated to Accumulated
business  non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
A
HERTE FERBREEN PEEFERERN
EXE  HAARERRRELA R/ (B8) 2RFERER
For the year ended
As at 3| December 31 December As at 3| December
RI2A31R BENA3ALEE RI2A3IH
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR AT TER TR
Profit Holder Limited BRARAT Hong Kong 32.1% 30% 555 557 (4n (503)
(‘*Profit Holder") (I&#)) BB Notefd)
(Fiita)
Express Star Express Star Corporation Hong Kong 57% 57% (3,867) (2617) (6,648) (2,781)
Corporation Limited Limited ([ Express Star ) &b
(“Express Star”)
Hidden Glory Limited Hidden Glory Limited BVI 20% 20% (24) 3) 1,222 246
(‘Hidden Glory") ([Hidden Glory)) EERAES

Summarised financial information for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

in respect of each of the Company's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling

interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BHEARARSHEBRENFERIERD
HEBABREZ20202F %2021 FI12A
3B IEFEMNMBEERBZEIMT -
ATHBERMSEREERNEHENS
o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES  34. %2 Z[B QTS (&)

(Cont'd)
Profit Holder &
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TAT
For the year ended 3| December BZI2A31BLEE
Revenue WA 39,698 44,420
Expenses 53 (37,970) (42,565)
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMREERAERE
income for the year 1,728 1,855
Profit and total comprehensive income AT BB (R F W0 F &
for the year attributable to: FEALERE
— owners of the Company e VNCIE 2PN 1,173 1,298
— non-controlling interests of Profit Holder — BRI IR S 555 557
1,728 1,855
For the year ended 31 December BZNA3BLFE
Cash flows from operating activities LTSRN E 6,978 8,724
Cash flows from investing activities KEETHMBIRERE (3,313) (4,760)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEEBAMFHRSRE (3,605) (3.871)
Net cash inflows WEMRAFHE 60 93
As at 31 December ®I12A31H
Current assets MEEE 22,488 19,520
Non-current assets ERBEE 9,723 15,619
Current liabilities mEAE (33,994) (35,073)
Non-current liabilities JEmEBAE (527) (4521)
Net liabilities BEFH (2.310) (4,455)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR FIHEA AL R (2,269) (3952)
Non-controlling interests of Profit Holder BIER FEE R E S (41) (503)
(2,310) (4,455)
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34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 34. k2BMEBLATIMNGEE &)

(Contd)
Express Star Express Star
2022 2021
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
For the year ended 3| December BZNA3IBLEE
Revenue WA 26,066 9,638
Expenses X (32,851) (r4511)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FAEBBREERS B
for the year (6,785) (4,873)
Loss and total comprehensive expense UTRERAEFABEREE
for the year attributable to: s 485 -
— owners of the Company e \VNCIE ZS PN (2,918) (2,256)
— non-controlling interests of Express Star —Express Starf) 3E1E AR 2 (3,867) (2,617)
(6,785) (4,873)
For the year ended 31 December BZ12A31BLEE
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMSEHRSNRE 2,512 18,775
Cash flows from investing activities REZDAEHERE 1,746 (17.966)
Cash flows from financing activities MERDAEHEERE (4,488) 531
Net cash (outflows)/inflows Be ORl), /AT (230) 1,340
As at 31 December RI12A31H
Current assets mBNEE 6,411 8,446
Non-current assets SEMBEE 8,060 18,547
Current liabilities nBBE (9,247) (16,438)
Non-current liabilities JEmBIAE (16,888) (15434)
Net liabilities BEFHE (11,664) (4.879)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANARIHEAB AELER (5,016) (2,098)
Non-controlling interests of Express Star Express Starff) 3E1E M AE 2 (6,648) (2,781)
(11,664) (4,879)
Note: The date of incorporation of Express Star was 4 December 2020 and it was 100% MSE - Express Start)E AKX A #2020
r =
held by the Group in 2020, It was 60% held by Absolute Abundant Limited (*Absolute 12848 > RAR2020% i AR Bl
Abundant”) since from 18 June 2021. Absolute Abundant was incorporated in 22 B 100% ) i - 52021 F6 A 18H
February 2021 and was a wholly owned subsidiary. Absolute Abundant was 72% held JE + HdAbsolute Abundant Limited
= 0, o
by the Group since from 30 June 2021. Effectively, the Group held 43% interest in (T Absolute Abundant |)#5 75 60%HIf
Express Star since then. & ° Absolute Abundant 74202142

AnBaEfiy  TA2EWBAR
Bl e B2021F 6 A30B#E + Absolute
Abundant FRZASEEIIE A T72%H IR
B - REE B ERHER B Express
Star 43%H)FELS ©
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34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 34

. FEBEMBATNFE 2

(Contd)
Hidden Glory Hidden Glory
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
For the year ended 3| December BZENAIBLEE
Revenue WA - -
Expenses Fx (121 @21
Loss and total comprehensive FABBLEEEFAX AR
expense for the year (2rn (21)
Loss and total comprehensive income UTERERGFABER
for the year attributable to: ENEL NG
— owners of the Company — ARREBA (97) (18)
— non-controlling interests of Hidden Glory — Hidden GloryH)3E 1k i 25 (24) 3)
(121) 21
For the year ended 3| December BZNRANABLEE
Cash flows from operating activities REEBMERERE (18) (20)
Cash flows from investing activities REZDMEHRERE (293) 12
Cash flows from financing activities HEFDMERERE 294 -
Net cash outflows BenHFE (17) (8)
As at 31 December RMI12A318
Current assets MEEE 6,465 6,482
Non-current assets FERBEE 189 -
Current liabilities EI=RET (552) (259)
Net assets BERE 6,102 6223
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRRIER NEIEHER 4,880 4977
Non-controlling interests of Hidden Glory Hidden GloryHI3EZE AR #E 21 1,222 1,246
6,102 6,223
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34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 34. k2BMEBLATIMNGEE &)

(Contd)
Change in ownership in non-wholly owned subsidiaries FREMBAREERED
During the years ended 3| December 2022 and 2021, without loss of control, BHE20202FK2021F12A31BIEF
the Group completed the deemed partial disposal of the equity interests in - AEETKE RIS HERETH
certain subsidiaries. Following the completion of the disposal transaction and the B AR MR ML R EIEGIE - HE
deemed disposal transactions, the Group remained control of the subsidiaries. RHRBR/EER G THE - REER
The transactions have been accounted for as equity transactions with the non- REMNBARNEGE - BEXHEA
controlling interests as follows: RO ER RS 1T
FITR
Increase/
(decrease) in equity
Consideration  Net assets/(liabilities) attributable to
received for attributable to owners of the
the disposal of the disposal of ~ Company (included

ownership interest  ownership interest in accumulated losses)
LERARER FORAERARE
HERRERR FEEE/ EEEN/ (YD)
FrigERB B (BR)FE  GrARHER)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZ20NENA3IBLEE
Between Group (note a) Between & B (Fff3Fa) - (15) 15
Profit Holder (note b) B (Mizn) = (93) 93
- (108) 108
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR

For the year ended 3| December 202 BEIFNAIBILEFE
Express Star (note c) Fxpress Star(fff#c) —* (164) 164
Absolute Abundant (note d) Absolute Abundant (FffsEd) —* —k _k
Hidden Glory (note e) Hidden Glory(F{zEe) (395) 1249 (854)
(395) 1,085 (690)

* represented balance less than HK$ 1,000

* FBEEERTE 1000787

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 %% | 213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
BZE2002F 12831 BLEEE

34. DETAILS OF THE NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
(Contd)

Change in ownership in non-wholly owned subsidiaries (Cont d)
Notes:

(@) In January 2022, Between Hong Kong Limited, the then wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a share swap agreement with Hanneng Limited
(“Hanneng"), which is wholly owned by Mr. Alan Lo, the spouse of Ms. PY Wong.
Prior to the share swap agreement, Ever Creation Asia Investment Limited (“Ever
Creation”) was owned as to 40% by Hanneng and 60% by Big Team Ventures
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the share swap
agreement, the Company disposed its 40% equity interest in Between Hong Kong
Limited in exchange for Hanneng's 40% equity interest in Ever Creation, which
resulted in the Company holding 100% interest of Ever Creation through Between
Hong Kong Limited. Upon the completion of this re-organisation, the Group hold
60% equity interest in Between Hong Kong Limited. In August 2022, the Group
further disposed 41% interest in Between Hong Kong Limited (note 14) and Between
Hong Kong Limited was not the subsidiary of the Company as at 3| December 2022.

(b)  In January 2022, the Group granted 3% of existing share of Profit Holder to the
employee as an award for past year's performance and the non-controlling interest of
Profit Holder was changed from 30% to 32.1%. The fair value of the share award at
the date of grant is HK$417,000.

() The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Express Star by the Group without
loss of control was due to the allotment of an aggregate 999 new shares of Express
Star at HK$999 to Absolute Abundant, Ever Able Investment Limited, Chung Po Yan,
Constance Global Limited, Ryley Investment Holding Limited respectively. Except
Absolute Abundant, others are all independent third parties to the Group.

(d)  The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Absolute Abundant by the Group
without loss of control was due to the allotment of an aggregate 283 new shares of
Absolute Abundant at US$283 to Merone Antimo Maria, an independent third party
to the Group.

(e)  The deemed partial disposal of equity interest in Hidden Glory by the Group without
loss of control was due to the sale of 20 of Hidden Glory at US$50,000 to Tam Joy
Yee Joyce, who is an independent third party to the Group.
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BE200nF 12831 ALEE

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 35. BAREKREE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt balance and equity balance.
Debt balance mainly consists of bank borrowings and lease liabilities (details as
set out in note 28 and note |8). Equity balance consists of equity attributable to

owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on an on-going
annual basis. As part of this review, the management of the Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well

as the issue of new debt or repayment of debts.

The net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

REBRERNEE 5 ERERAEE AN
REROURHELE RANERELE
BRERRES  SERRRTREA
[ - AEEHNBERIKEEFAR -

REBNEARBORERESR RES
e o ERERTIBRERRITERLAE
B aE (FEHRHE28 KM I8) - #
HERBREARAERARGESR (2
REBTRALGERE)

AEBERERESFRIENER
R BT REBEREROKARE
Rk  REAKEEEENESR K
SERBBINRE - BITHREE
THEREREBATEELRRERE
B

RBEHRNERFEEERLEMN
T

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEx FET

Total debt (vt 44,433 60,965

Less: Cash and cash equivalents B ReERIREEED (9,341) (12,925)

Net debt &R FRE 35,092 48,040

Total (deficit)/equity (B4, HE = 4asE (2,864) 19,752
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B F R RABERLE N/A

TERA 243%
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 36.

(@)  Categories of financial instruments

€MTA
(@) €I EMER

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAHET A BN EMEE 4,930 3,167
Financial assets at amortised cost R ER AT ENSREE 39,777 50,561
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEBHEKATTENESREE 81,748 95,009

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) EHREREEENRBE

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables
and deposits, amounts due from related companies, a controlling shareholder
and associates, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables and accrued charges, amounts due to related companies,
a controlling shareholders and an associate and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to

mitigate these risks are set out below.

Management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

()

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to floating-rate bank borrowings, and fair value interest rate risk in
relation to pledged bank deposits and non-interest bearing amounts
due from/to related companies, a controlling shareholder and non-

controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, amount due from an associate.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, management of the Group closely monitors its exposure to
future cash flow risk as a result of change on market interest rate and
will consider hedging changes in market interest rates should the need

arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the

fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group's bank borrowings.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are

detailed in the liquidity risk section of this note.

Sensttivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis is provided on bank balances and floating-rate
bank borrowings as the management of the Group considers that
the interest rate fluctuation on bank balances and bank borrowings is

minimal.

e M BRHE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont d)

(i)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the maximum exposure to credit
risk of the Group which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as

stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Trade and other receivables

The Group trades with a large number of individual customers and
trading terms are mainly on cash and credit card settlement. In view of
the Group's operation, the Group does not have significant credit risk
exposure to any single individual customer. The Group measures loss
allowances for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
which is assessed on collective basis. As the Group's historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customers, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group's different customers. At
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the lifetime ECL
for the trade receivables and |2-month ECL for the other receivables
and considered that the expected credit loss allowance for these

receivables is immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRNME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd)

(ii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont d)

Amounts due from related parties

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on amounts
due from related companies, a controlling shareholder and associates.
The management of the Group considers the counterparties have
continuous repayment history. Except for one debtor which the
Group considered as significant increase in credit risk as at 3|
December 2022 (2021: nil), the Group measures loss allowances for
amounts due from related parties at an amount equal to [2-month
ECL, which is assessed on an individual debtor basis. As at 31
December 2022, the management of the Group assessed that the
expected credit loss allowance for these receivables is HK$285,000
(2021: nil) under 12-month ECL basis and HK$602,000 under lifetime
ECL (2021: nil).

Bank balances and pledge bank deposits

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk associated
with bank balances and pledged bank deposits since they are
substantially deposited at medium to large-sized Hong Kong listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be any significant
losses from non-performance by these counterparties. The Group has
concentration risk on its liquid funds as the pledged bank deposits and
bank balances are placed with three banks in Hong Kong.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont d)

(i)

Liquidity risk

In view of the factors mentioned in Note 3(b), a series of measures to
mitigate the liquidity pressure have been taken to improve its financial

and liquidity position of the Group as a whole.

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a

level of cash and cash equivalents.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables below, which
presenting the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities, have
been drawn up based on the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount

is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reported a net
loss of HK$23,000,000. As of that date, the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$50,741,000 and the net liabilities
was HK$2,864,000. In view of these factors, the Group seeks for the
financial support on its controlling shareholder, Ms. PY Wong, and
takes certain measure to mitigate the liquidity pressure by improving

its financial and liquidity position as a whole.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 36. £ETA%)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) b) SRMEREBEORBEZ)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (i) HEHELEE (&)
In more In more
Weighted than one than two
average  Less than year  yearsbut
effective  one year or butnot  not more Total Total
interest ~ repayable  more than than five  undiscounted carrying
rate  ondemand  twoyears years  cash flows amount

mEFE HR-£4 BB-FE BBEREFE AERRE
ERAE ZEREE TEEREF TEELF RBER REAR
% HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEx  TEx  TEn  TEr  TER

As at 31 December 2022 RWNENA3IA
Non-derivative financial liabilities ¥TEEHEE
Trade and other payables and BHREMENTIER NIA
accrued charges it BR TER 33883 - - 33883 33,883
Amounts due to related companies BB ARTE N/A
ki 2399 - - 239 239
Armounts due to controling TR R 008
shareholders 939 - - 939 939
Amount due to an associate A2 YNFE 9% - - 9% 9%
Bank borrowings - floating rate BITER-ER 281% 3407 2,056 2911 8,394 8,191
Lease liabiites HEARE 5.00% 7217 9010 1,539 37,766 36242
67,959 11,066 4450 83475 81,748
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

36. €mITH %)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Cont'd) b)) SHEREEENRBRE)
(iii)  Liquidity risk (Contd) (i) HEELEE (E)
In more In more
Weighted than one than two
average Less than year  years but
effective  one year or butmot  notmore Total Total
interest ~ repayable  more than than five  undiscounted carrying
rate ondemand  two years years  cash flows amount
mER IR-F3 BE-FE HERFE AMHER
BRME REKER TRAME THBLE REEE  RELR
% HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000
T T TAT T AR
As at 31 December 2021 R021%12A31R
Non-derivative financial liabilities Fitemas
Trade and other payables and B REMEN N/A
accrued charges BEREER il 31,879 - - 31,879 31879
Amounts due to related companies ERBBATE N/A
ER 2165 - - 2165 2165
Bank borrowings - floating rate TR 28% 4256 3483 3833 11572 11,184
Lease liabilities HEERE 5.00% 2437 19,637 5436 52510 49,781
65,737 23,120 9,269 98,126 95,009

The amounts included above for variable interest rate non-derivative
financial liabilities are subject to changes if variable interest rates differ

from those determined at the end of the reporting period.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

©

(d)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are

measured at amortised cost

The management of the Group estimates the fair value of the financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost using discounted cash
flows analysis. The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments are measured at fair value. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial
instruments are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used), as well as the level of fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels | to 3) based on the degree to

which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable.

. Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices

(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

from prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

36. €mITH %)

(©

(d)

AEBERBENATTENESHE
ERERMABHATE

AEEEERANAMRRERE
AR E R A ENE R
BERERABHOATE KA
REERR  SEMBHRRAZ
BERAARNEREER SR
BEMNREEEEATERS

SRMIANATETE

AEEERTARAVEE -
TREHABRBELFETEN
BARBENABARENTEE
ZEEBMTAZAVEGRIZM
ERMHERTLBARE) - &
AFEFERED 2 RFHERS
KE(B—Z=R)2ER -

- F-RAVEAEDNEM
REEXRBENAEDS
B (REBE)FH

© BIRRAVEAEDIRE
—MEFARNRESIN  BE
EBEANER (AER)
FEE (BERITE)EE
BABESH R

+ FZRAVEHEDNES
ATAL AR BR 2T 5
HEREMNEEL AR
ZEARE (TABRR 2%
ABUR) 2 fHERMEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % | 223



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(d)  Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Cont'd)

36. £MITA#E)

(d)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market

is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques

maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as

little as possible on entity specific estimates. If one or more of the significant

inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in

level 3. Instruments included in level 3 comprise financial assets at FVTPL.

There were no transfers between Level |, 2 and 3 in the current and prior

years.

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs used in

determining the fair value measurement of level 3 financial instruments, as

well as the inter-relationship between key unobservable inputs and fair value,

are set out in the table below.

Financial instrument

£2RIE

Fr R ET

Valuation techniques used

Significant

unobservable inputs

EXFTEERARE

ERMIAMNAVEFEE)

TERNERTSEENEHBTA
HRFELERBEDEETE
ZEEA AR KR E AR
BABEMSREREN LR
RIKBEENARMER -8
REBERBARBL IFERNT]
BEMSEE - MTARRAR
ZHRNAE=ZZHTAARIKRA
HEFABZNEBEE -

RAEERBEFENE R
F_REE=HzAHESE -

ErF-feR I ANATET
ENMERANGERMEERT
ERGASBEARTETEE
BABBRATEZRNEER
RENTE -

Inter-relationship between
key unobservable inputs and
fair value
FEFTEHEERAREBR
AHEZENBEERRE

Convertible notes and future

equity investments

AR AR RBERE

Binomial pricing method,
discounted cash flow method
and equity allocation method

(2021: Binomial option pricing

method)

“HEATEE  BERS
e AR BAED BE (2021
£

— I HEES
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)

Discount rate:
26.25%-26.36% (2021 nil);

Value increase/(decrease) when

discount rate decrease/(increase)

Volatility: 70%-135.64% (2021

Volatility: 55.279-80.45%)

BRI -
26.25%-26.36% (2021 F :
B ORIE : 70%-135.64%
(2021 5 - JiZH& : 55.27%-
80.45%)

Value increase/(decrease) when
volatility increase/(decrease)
BT,/ (4B ) -
BEEM/Cid)

wisgin, GRd) - BEE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

36. £MTA#)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments (Contd) d) EMIANAFEHEE)

Inter-relationship between
Significant key unobservable inputs and

Financial instrument Valuation techniques used unobservable inputs fair value
FEFTEHEERARBR

$WMIA Fr R ET EXTTEERARE APEZEHEERE

Fund investment and Underlying assets N/A N/A

unlisted shares method
EeREMKEMRS HEEETA TER NER

Unlisted preference shares

R EMEER

’ .
Group's valuation processes

Equity allocation method

BED B

Volatility 70% (202 nil)

KIB70% (2021 5 © &)

The Group's finance department performs the valuations of financial assets

required for financial reporting purposes. For the years ended 31 December

2022 and 2021, the Group has engaged independent professionally

qualified valuers to assist the Group in determining the fair value of financial

instruments in level 3 for financial reporting purposes. The responsibility for

determining the fair value rests with the Group. At each financial reporting

date, the finance department reviews all significant unobservable inputs and

valuation adjustments used to measure the fair values of financial instruments

in level 3.

Value increase/(decrease) when
volatility increase/(decrease)
KiEE,/ CRd) -
BEEM/CH)

rEEGERSF

AEENBHRIBEREANE
KREeEMEELTHE -HE
2022F R2021 F12A31HIEF
B REEEZEBUEEXSE
RILEMHEASERMBRE
EMNEBETE=-fERIANQTF
B ERATFEMNEFERALRE
c REWEHKR  MBHER
MARGEE=-REBITAQYF
ERBEEXRTA B RE AME
RiLEHREE -
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BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

37. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 37. AR EHBFER
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMEARNRE 15,270 22,843
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and others TR RRIE R ELA 17 330
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE LA Bf B8 A R R 204 —
Bank balances and cash RITHESBR LIRS 16 1,554
237 1,884
Current liabilities ik =R
Other payables and accrued charges HAbERTFIB R ERTE A 2,553 917
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEA- B X B 3KIR 15,682 9511
Amounts due to an associate JE - B & A RIFRIE 72 -
Amounts due to related companies JE T RAES A RIFIA 100 100
18,407 10,528
Net current liabilities REEEFHE (18,170) (8,644)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) EEFE (2,900) 14,199
Capital and reserves BEXRFEE
Share capital (note 30) MRS (B45E30) 11,598 11,612
Reserves (e (14,498) 2,587
Total (deficit)/equity (E4t) RERBEE (2,900) 14,199
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37. A DEUBER (&)

Capital Share
Share redemption  Treasury option  Accumulated
premium reserve shares reserve losses Total
ey (o) RRE
R aE e EERH #E  RHBR #ct
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TEx TExr T TEr  TiERn
At | January 2021 M02FIAIB 85,265 - - - (60980) 24285
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ FRBERZAR S 2%
for the year - - - - (37486)  (37/486)
lssue of shares v 16,785 - - - - 16785
Repurchase of shares (note 30) BB (FiEH30) (593) 50 (148) - - (641)
Transaction costs attributable to BRIV E R FRA
share placing (585) - - - - (589)
Fquity settled share-based transactions ~ EREZE AR AEERNR 5 - - - 229 - 229
At 31 December 2021 2021 F 12318 100922 50 (148) 229 (98466) 2587
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ FABEREZERXEE
for the year - - - - (17480)  (17/480)
Cancellation of share repurchased TR AR (F130)
(note 30) (148) 14 148 - - 14
Equity settled share-based transactions AR B LARID AERAZ S - - - 38| - 381
At 31 December 2022 202212831 B & 100,774 64 - 610 (115946)  (14,498)
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38.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 38. MEREFIELAENHR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing TRIFIAEERETHAELREN
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing ZEFE  BERSIERSEY -®
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified BERBMELRBEEMELRERE
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing FRERERERELEREEE LR
activities. EXRFHEAREBZDMERERE
P
Non-trade
nature Non-trade Non-trade
amount due nature nature
toanon-  amountsdue  amount due
controlling to related toan Lease Bank
shareholder companies associate liabilities borrowings
EfFER e E BB
] NANE NARE
(¥EHME) (FEZME) (FEZUE) BERE BITEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FTER FER
(note 25) (note 25) (note 25) (note 18) (note 25)
(BirE2s) (FirE2s) (Fr&E25) (st 18) (FtzE25)
At | January 2021 B202IEIAIB - 853 - 49490 15,191
Financing cash flows RERERE - 1297 - (24,558) (4395)
Non-cash items: FREER -
Finance costs BEKK - - - 2411 388
Additions of lease lizbilties ENEEa% - - - 15010 -
Lease modification G4 - - - 7,684 -
Termination of lease ®IrHE - - - (256) -
Others At - 15 - - -
At 31 December 2021 and R2020F 128318 K
| January 2022 20251818 - 2,165 - 49,781 11,184
Financing cash flows HERSRE 939 234 94 (21,060) (3,351)
Non-cash items: FBLER
Finance costs (note 1) MERE (WEEI1) - - - 2,044 358
Lease modification i H] - - - 6,018 -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERBEAR (Ha14) - - (541) -
At 3| December 2022 R02%12A31A 939 2,399 %4 36,242 8,191
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BE20NENANBLEE

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEMBATAEE
Details of the principal subsidiaries comprising the Group at the end of the RBEHR  KEEETFEMBAR
reporting period are set out below: I
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
BRTR AEERI2A31A
WELAFER AR A 3 B BRI BERF i RA LAl FEEH
2022 2021
Big Team Ventures Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Big Team Ventures Limited ~ REEZEE BE 50,000 7T 100% 100% REZR
Brightsome Investments BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
KEREARAE RBRAES &R 30 100% 00% EELE
Capital Creative Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
ERBRAA A BA 100787 100% 00% EBEEE
Duddel''s Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Club membership services
Limited for one of the Group's

restaurants

Duddell's Hong Kong Limited 7% &R 100787 100% 100% RASEET-HEE

RAMALI SR RG

Gain Long Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited

ErERLA BB B 100078 7T 100% 00% EELE

deal Profit Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$50,000 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited

BEARLA A B 50000/&7C 100% 00% EELE
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contq) 39. ERMBATMFR A
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
BRTR AEERI2A31H
WELARER BRI EXRE BERF FrisRA LBl IERE
2022 2021
Kingswide Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
ZYERLA BB &R 100787 100% 00% EELE
Luck Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Luck Wealthy Limited Bh 5 100787 100% 0% EEBLE
Oman International Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3 100% [00%  Trademark holder
Investment Limited
REARKARRAR BB &R 3T 100% l00%  BIREAA
Profit Holder Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 67.9% 70%  Restaurant operation
Bz A A 100087 67.9% 0% EEgE
Rising Mark Development ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
AR ERERAT ERENES B 1000057 100% 100%  BRARK
Springlike Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Springlie Limited RERUEE Bk |%TT 100% 00% RERR
Top Glorification Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Top Glorffication Limited ~ EBRELEHE BE 100ETT 100% 100% BEBLE
Victory Rich Global Group ~ BVI Hong Kong US$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RRREEERAR  RBREIES &R 10000 T 100% 00% REEK
Dazzle Long Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Dazzle Long Limited EERUEE BE |%TT 100% 100% AR

230 |JIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED =R &EBARA T



39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
me KRR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 39. FEMBATMEE @)
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
BRTR AEERI2A31H
WEARER AR A 3t 2 BRI BHERF FrisRA LAl TERE
2022 2021
Maxmount Global Limited BV Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Provision of consultancy
services in connection
with the restaurant
operation
BERRERAR RERARS & S 100% 00%  ARBEERMER
R
Season Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$| 100% [00%  Investment holding
Season Luck Limited RERAHE &R B 100% 100% REER
Pure Love Limited BVI Hong Kong US$100 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Pure Love Limited RERAES &R 1007 100% 00% BBEE
Ultra Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS | 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
EERRAF A &R BT 100% 00% EELE
Fine Wisdom Holdings BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Fine Wisdom Holdings EERAES BE B 100% 100% REZR
Limited
Vantage Luck Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Vantage Luck Limited EERAES 5 E 100% 100% REER
King Access Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
FHEERLA A &R |7 100% 00% BEEE
Fit Asia Inc Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
REBRAT A &R 100077 100% 100%  RERR
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39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 39. FEMBATMFE 2
Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
BRTR AEERI2A31H
WEARER AR A 3t 2 BRI BHERF FrisRA LAl TERE
2022 2021
Hidden Glory BVI Hong Kong US$100 80% 80%  Investment holding
Hidden Glory EERAES BE 100 7T 80% 80% REER
Jolly Master Enterprises BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
Jolly Master Enterprises EERUES Bt B 100% 100% BREER
Limited
Champ Winner Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 80% 80%  Restaurant operation
Champ Winner Limited BE BE 1007 7T 80% 80% BELE
Loyal Talent Intemational Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 80% 80%  Restaurant operation
Limited
BRERERAA A & 100787 80% 80% EELE
Mighty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
(note (i)
geeaRra (M) &% 55 1 000,000 7T - 100% AR
Sure Big Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HKS | 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
EABRAA A B | BT 100% 00% EELE
Ever Brave Ventures Limited  BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Ever Brave Ventures Limited  RBRXEE &R Sk 100% 00% REEK
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39. XEMEATMFEE)

Proportion
Issued and of share capital
fully paid held by the Group
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation Place of operation  share capital as at 3| December Principal activities
BRTR AEERI2A31H
WEARER AR A 3t 2 BRI BHERF FrisRA LAl TERE
2022 2021
Star Glory Ventures Limited ~ BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
Star Glory Ventures Limited  REBRE XS BE B 100% 100% REER
Incredible Resources Limited BV Hong Kong US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Incredible Resources Limited  EBEX B S & 0007 100% 00% REEK
Express Star (note (ii)) Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000 43% 43%  Restaurant operation
Express Star (Fi7E(i)) Bh B 1 00077T 43% 3% ZEgE
Absolute Abundant BVI Hong Kong US$1,000 72% 72%  Investment holding
Absolute Abundant RERAES &R 100070 2% % BAER
JIA Restaurants Limited BVI Hong Kong US$! 100% 100%  Investment holding
JIA Restaurants Limited RERUEE B E 100% 100% REER
Profit Bright Corporation Hong Kong Hong Kong HKSI 100% 100%  Restaurant operation
Limited
Profit Bright Corporation &8 &R BT 100% 100% BBLE
Limited
Notes: et
) BMBARNEARHER -
(i) The subsidiary was deregistered during the year. 0 KB 2 RIR 4 PO
(i) Accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company because the directors are of the (i) BARAMBARAR RERER

opinion that the Group has power over the investee through control of the board of

the subsidiaries, exposure to variable retums from the investee and the ability to use

its power to affect those variable retums.

RBRAEEEBEHINBEARNESS
HRREHREREN  AARRE
HRAZOHABAE LK
ERERNYEZSTEORE -
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39.

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont )

The above table lists the entities now comprising the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Big Team is directly held by the Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held
by the Company. All subsidiaries now comprising the Group are limited liability

companies and have adopted 3| December as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the rules of the share option
scheme conditionally adopted by the resolutions in writing of all the shareholders
passed on 23 January 2018. The terms of the share option scheme are in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The share option scheme became
effective on 8 February 2018, and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will

remain in force for |0 years from that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d)

The purpose of the share option scheme is to attract and retain the best quality
personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide additional
incentives to the Qualifying Grantees (as defined below) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Company may offer to grant an option

to any Qualifying Grantees.

“Qualifying Grantee” means (i) (1) any employee (whether full-time or part-time
employee) of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates and any person who
is an officer of any members of the Group or any of its affiliates; (2) any person
who is seconded to work for any member of the Group or any of its affiliates; (3)
any consultant, agent, representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group
or any affiliates; (4) any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner, supplier
of goods or services to the Group or any of its affiliates or any employee thereof
(collectively the “Eligible Person™); or (i) any trust for the benefit of an Eligible
Person or his immediate family members or any company controlled by an Eligible

Person or his immediate family members.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 40. HBIRHERtEl(2)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d)

The limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the share option
scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under any schemes of the Company if this
will result in the limit being exercised. The maximum number of shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the share option scheme
and any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 0% of the
shares in issued following the completion of the capitalisation issue and the share
offer, i.e. 86,000,000 shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the share option scheme such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any |2-month period up to the date
of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to

time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme at any time during a period as determined by the board of Directors of
the Company and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.
Participants of the share option scheme are required to pay the Company HK$1.0
upon acceptance of the grant 28 days from the date of the offer (or such period
as the board of Directors of the Company may specify in writing). The exercise
price of the options is determined by the board of Directors of the Company in
its absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the highest of: (a) the
closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets
on the offer date; (b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (c) the nominal value of a share. The share option scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 8 February 2018, after which no

further options will be granted or offered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d)

On I'l January 2021, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 3,750,000 shares
of the Company had been granted by the Company to the existing directors and
employees of the Group under the Share Option Scheme. The option period of
the options shall be three years from the date of acceptance and the options shall

lapse at the expiry of the option period. The exercise price is HK$0.13 per share.

On 19 January 2022, options to subscribe for an aggregate of 7,600,000 shares
of the Company had been granted by the Company to the existing directors and
employees and consultants of the Group under the Share Option Scheme. The
option period of the options shall be ten years from the date of acceptance and
the options shall be lapse at the expiry of the option period. The exercise price is
HK$0.1 per share.

No fulfillment or vesting period condition were associated to the above options.

e M BRHE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3| DECEMBER 2022
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 40. HBIRHERtEl(2)
Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d) ERRUERLEENBRE S (2)
The movements of the outstanding options granted under the Share Option IR AT 2R O RITE B IRAER
Scheme during the year are as follows: FRANLEMT
For the year ended 3| December 2022 BZ202F12A31BILFE

Number of share options

BRERE

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Share | January during during during 31 December
option type 2022 the year the year the year 2022
R20225F R2022%F
BRE IAIH £ £R £R 128318
Vil RITHE &R BATE BRX RITHE
Directors = 2021 2,750,000 - - - 2,750,000
2022 - 3,200,000 - - 3,200,000
Employees =] 2021 500,000 - - - 500,000
2022 - 3,300,000 - - 3,300,000
Consultants S 2021 500,000 - - - 500,000
2022 - 1,100,000 - - 1,100,000
3,750,000 7,600,000 - - 11,350,000

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZEF A3 BLEEE

Number of share options
BREHE

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted  Exercised Lapsed asat
Share | January during during during 31 December
option type 2021 the year the year the year 2021
R2021 5 R2021 5
Bk IAIE R £R R 128318
<Yl RITE B&RH [EEyi:d [EP S RITE
Directors 5% 2021 - 2,750,000 - - 2,750,000
Employees = 2021 - 500,000 - - 500,000
Consultants ElGl 2021 - 500,000 - - 500,000
- 3,750,000 - - 3,750,000
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE200nF 12831 ALEE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company (Cont d)

Details of the share options are as follow:

Share option type Date of grant

40. BBIRHEGTE (2
ARARNESEENBRESR (E)

BREFBENT -

Exercisable period

Exercise price

fBREER RHAH T TEE
2021 I'l' January 2021 ['l January 2021 to 10 January 2024 HK$0.13
20211 A1A 2021 1 BITEZE20245 1 A108 0.137T
2022 19 January 2022 19 January 2022 to 18 January 2032 HK$0.1
202 1 A 19H 202F 1 B19BE20325F 1 A 188 0.1 87T

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The total fair value of the share options at the grant date on |9 January 2022
was HK$381,000 (2021: total fair value of the share options at the grant date on
I'l January 2021 was HK$229,000). The following information is relevant in the

determination of the fair value of options.

BRENAFERBRR

B EN R B (B12002F 1 A198)
48N B A381,00078 7T (2021 4F : B
RRRERN R BEI(BM021F1A11H)K

BN TEAE229,00087T) o LA N AR
EBTrBREATELR -

Share option type Bt R

Option pricing model used

Share price at grant date B A ERR(E
Exercise price 1T6EME
Contractual life BHHIR
Expected volatility TEERIR IR
Expected dividend rate TEEAAR B
Risk-free interest rate el e

P PR ) B SE (B AR AL

2021 2022

Trinomial option pricing ~ Binomial option pricing
BT E “HEAMIETEE
HK$0.122 HK$0.089
0.122787T 0.089787T
HK$0.13 HK$0. 1
0.13/87T 0.1787T

3 years 10 years

3F |05

90.78% 73.409%

0.00% 0.00%

0.11% 1.653%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns, is based on a statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three

years. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair

value estimate.

S 480
vE°

BIERR ARBRENROREEZEE )R
ENBE-FEARENORFIN - T8
HBAERRBCEHAFAERBTELEKX
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BZE2002F 1A BLEEE

40. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd) 40. BBpIREEsTEl (&)
Fair value of share options and assumptions (Cont d) BERENATERRBR(Z)
Share options and weighted average exercise price are as follows for the reporting WA B L T EE
periods presented: T
2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average

share options  exercise price  share options  exercise price

R REES R IHEFI

(| TEE 28 1728

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Outstanding at | January | AITABRTTE 3,750,000 0.13 - -
Granted [RE; i 7,600,000 0.1 3,750,000 0.13
Outstanding at 31 December 12A31 BRFTE 11,350,000 0.11 3,750,000 0.13

Of the total number of share options outstanding as at 3|1 December 2022, 2022 12 A31 B ARITES B RERE

11,350,000 share options (2021: 3,750,000) were exercisable and with a weighted ~ F * 11,350,00017 & A # (2021 5 : 3,750,000

average remaining contractual life of 6.4 years (2021: 2.03 years). )R FITE - IMETR T A KER R64F
(20214 : 2.03%F) °

During the year ended 31 December 2022, total share option expenses of ~ REIE2022F 12 A31 BIEFE - BRERX

approximately HK$381,000 (2021: HK$229,000) was recognised in expense in H8EE#)381,000/8 7T (2021 4F 229,000/ 7T)E
relation to share options granted by the Company. BRARBEANDRENBEREEHNRAX -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

BE20NENANBLEE

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41, BAREE
The Group had capital commitments as follows: AEEERARZNT
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Contracted, but not provided for, in respect of: EETAMBEARTE T HITE B 1F T8
property, plant and equipment M BE MR - 889
42. APPROVAL FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 42. HEEGSHBER
STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by EE20M03F3ABAERKE
the board of directors on 23 March 2023. Tz e M BERE -
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hF R IEHE

The following table summaries the consolidated financial statements of the Group in TREFIPATEFAEERN S T BRE -
respective year as indicated:

For the year ended 31 December
HENAIBLFE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(re-presented)
(#=71)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TR TR TR

Revenue KA 230,256 217,738 173303 221,344 217,005
Loss before taxation REiATE R (15673) (31,697) (19.737) (19,295) (22,409)
Income tax (expense)/credit e (%), e (753) (260) 637 (1967) (591)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEERAXEHE (16426) (31,957) (19,100) (21,262) (23,000)
Loss for the year attributable to: N EBEEFHEE :
— Owners of the Company YN Z-UN (15435) (31957) (20,407) (19476) (19,744)
— Non-controlling interests — R 991) — 1307 (1,786) (3,256)

(16426)  (31957) (191000  (2126)  (23,000)

Note: BifsT

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of profit or loss B E R IS A AREEHE 20184 ~ 2019

and other comprehensive income of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, F 0020 2021 ER20202F 12 B3I BILEE

2020, 2021 and 2022 which are prepared as if the current group structure had been in existence cAEEREMRENEE  BInIEE R EERE

throughout the years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 or since the date of REZ2018% « 20194 « 20204 ~ 2021 EF %2022

incorporation of respective group companies where there is a shorter period. FENA3BIEESELEE NS B
(ABEHRE AR BFHE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 % | 243



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEHMBEHRE

As at 31 December

RI12A318
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
FET TR FAT FAT FiEn
Assets and liabilties BERBE
Total assets BEBE 94772 120,140 138,056 136,026 98,557
Total liabilities BELE (33,640) (90965)  (114518)  (116274)  (l0l421)
Net assets/(liabilties) BE/(AfE)F8 61,132 29,175 23538 19,752 (2,864)
Equity attributable to: AT RIS
— Owners of the Company YN 2PN 61,132 29,175 25038 21953 2,698
— Non-controling interests —IEERER — — (1,500) (2201 (5,562)
61,132 29,175 23538 19,752 (2,864)
Note: FisE

The above financial information is extracted from the consolidated statements of financial position
of the Group as at 3| December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 which present the assets and
liabilities of the companies now comprising the Group as at the respective dates as if the current

group structure had been in existence at those dates.
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